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Scope of report
This integrated annual report of Accéntuate aims to provide a 
balanced, understandable and complete view of our business 
by reporting on the financial performance and non-financial 
aspects of the group. The report covers the identification of 
and reporting on material issues and stakeholder relations 
affecting the group as well as key performance areas of the 
business, and includes considerations which are undertaken 
to ensure the sustainability of the business. This document 
contains the  consolidated annual financial statements of 
Accéntuate Limited and its subsidiaries for the financial year 
from 1 July 2014 to 30 June 2015. 

The Accéntuate board confirms its responsibility for the 
integrity of the report, the content of which has been 
collectively assessed by the directors who believe that all 
material issues have been addressed. The annual financial 
statements have been audited by the independent auditor in 
terms of the Companies Act as indicated in their report, but 
no other information contained in the integrated report has 
been independently assured.

The financial statements were prepared under the supervision 
of the chief financial officer, Chris Povall, CA(SA).

Accéntuate is a group of 
companies involved in supplies 
to the flooring, maintenance, 
cleaning, metal treatment and 
water treatment sectors.

FloorworX is a market leader in 
the resilient flooring industry and 
supplies both the public and 
private sectors with resilient and 
carpet flooring solutions.

Safic has positioned itself as a 
significant supplier of specialised 
cleaning and metal treatment 
products to a variety of industries. 

Ion Exchange Safic is a joint 
venture which supplies water 
treatment chemicals, equipment 
and related solutions.

Who we are
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2014/15 was a year in which Accéntuate 
produced an encouraging performance 
despite the number of challenges the 
group faced.
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Features

Our value proposition 2014/15

The future of Accéntuate will be to remain 
engaged in the manufacture, sourcing and 
distribution of infrastructural supplies and 
maintenance solutions.

10
Our strategy

The fundamentals of the Accéntuate strategy 
will not change but will incorporate a focus to 
form global partnerships able to enhance the 
business and open various other markets.

Leadership

The company is led by experienced executive 
and independent directors.

Corporate governance

The position as a responsible corporate 
citizen is upheld and the rule of law is 
accepted across the group.

Contents
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For financial information and recent  
announcements please go to

www.accentuateltd.co.za

Easy Equities
Visit www.accentuateltd.co.za should you be 
interested in buying shares in fractions.
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Chairman’s letter

We do expect that the 
operating environment 
going forward will 
remain challenging 
and we will have to 
navigate smartly, and 
with true commitment 
shown by all at 
Accéntuate.

This is my first report as chairman of 
Accéntuate, having taken over the role 
from Dr Motlatla in May 2015. Firstly, 
I  would like to extend my thanks to 
Doc for the leadership shown to 
Accéntuate during his nine-year tenure 
as chairman, the position from which 
he retired having reached the 
mandatory retirement age of 75 this 
year.

Prior to taking on this role, I served as 
lead independent director on the 
board for three years and so do believe 
that the feedback contained in this 
report, despite only having served as 
chairman for two months of the 
financial year, is a true reflection of 
challenges facing the company, as 
well as the strategies that have been 
formulated to overcome these.

The most significant constraint 
currently is the sustained lack of 
government spending in the 
infrastructure space which the 
company targets. This has negatively 
impacted the public sector work done 
by the flooring division which reduced 
the factory loading and as a result, a 
lower factory overhead recovery rate 
was achieved. However, the division 
has done well to maintain market 
share, and this, coupled with a strong 
diversification drive into different 
flooring products to extend the range, 
as well as entering into additional 
partnerships with international flooring 
providers, has ensured that the division 
has maintained its relative position in 
the market. 

The chemical business is most 
severely impacted by fluctuations in 
the exchange rate as well as the oil 
price. Despite the latter having 
decreased, alleviating pressure on 
inputs as a result, the volatile exchange 
rate has negated much of the benefit 
of the lower oil price. Regardless of 
these external factors, the Safic 
business has been able to, once 
again, increase the annuity revenue 
base and cross-sell products into the 
flooring business.

Ion Exchange Safic, our partnership 
with Ion Exchange India, which is 40% 
owned by Accéntuate group, has 
again shown an increase in turnover. 
Breaking into the water market in 
South Africa has been a little more 
difficult than expected, with much 
effort being extended on ensuring 
companies have sufficient information 
to invite Ion Exchange Safic to a tender 
process. Despite this, we remain 
convinced that Accéntuate has 
partnered with the right business, 
given its access to water solution 
technologies and equipment that are 
valuable to South Africa. 

Notwithstanding the continued tough 
economic conditions, Accéntuate 
delivered a positive result of a 27% 
increase in normalised earnings per 
share. This excludes the R1,8 million 
once-off amount that was allocated to 
pay directors who had not been paid 
for the past three years (see note 5 of 
this integrated annual report for 
additional information relating to this 
matter).

Looking forward, the strategy is to 
increase volumes and throughput 
in both the flooring and chemical 
blending business. This will further 
be supported by entering into 
more strategic partnerships with 
international partners, either to sell 
additional flooring products and lines 
into the market, or to blend chemicals 
under licence in South Africa.

The water business is slowly gaining 
momentum and with a pending water 
crisis in the country, we are hopeful 
that both the public and private sector 
will embrace preventive solutions 
before a severe crisis hits. The 
Accéntuate solutions are primarily 
targeted at water purification, which is 
perfect for application in rural areas as 
well as for industrial applications where 
water can be recycled and conserved. 

We do expect that the operating 
environment going forward will remain 
challenging, and we will have to 
navigate smartly and with true 
commitment shown by all at 
Accéntuate. 

Ralph Patmore 
22 September 2015
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CEO review for the year to June 2015

Accéntuate has had an encouraging performance despite a number of 
challenges that the group had to face during the year under review.

Highlights in 2015

Normalised HEPS increase of 27%

  FloorworX launched its 
new carpet tile range 
targeting the corporate 
market and reported a 
4,9% increase in 
revenue

  Safic, through efficient 
cost containment, 
increased operating 
profit by 85%

  Ion Exchange Safic 
has a platform in 
place to secure water 
treatment and 
infrastructure projects

+ = ➜
HOW  

WE CREATE  
VALUE
PAGE 8

HOW  
WE DELIVER  

VALUE
PAGE 12

WHAT 
OUR STRATEGY 

DELIVERS
PAGE 10

OUR 
PERFORMANCE

PAGE 46
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Context
Accéntuate has had an encouraging 
performance despite a number of 
challenges that the group had to face 
during the year under review. July 
started off with the metal industry 
strike, which affected our 
manufacturing facility in East London 
as well as many of our customers in 
the steel and allied industries. 
Manufacturing came to a virtual 
standstill for the majority of the month, 
resulting in underrecoveries within the 
FloorworX division and reduced 
activity throughout the group. 

In addition, the group had to contend 
with ongoing currency volatility and 
lacklustre activity within both the 
private and public sector construction 
environment. Finally, increased and 
sustained load shedding negatively 
impacted all our operations.

The year under review can thus be 
divided into four very separate quarters 
that each had distinct characteristics 
as far as challenges and opportunities 
are concerned.

As mentioned, the first quarter started 
off with the strike, which impacted 
both demand and manufacturing and 

resulted in a major deficit that had to 
be recovered. The second quarter saw 
increased demand and much better 
recoveries, which led to a reasonable 
set of results being presented at half 
year. A steady increase in both activity 
and demand culminated in an all-time 
record production and sales month in 
March 2015. Unfortunately this 
momentum did not continue for the 
balance of the financial year, with 
activity tailing off from April and 
throughout the fourth quarter. 

The High Court vindicated the group’s 
interpretation and actions relating to 
the 2013 annual general meeting 
(“AGM”), which allowed for the 
payment of most of the fees owing to 
the non-executive directors and the 
adoption of the memorandum of 
incorporation (“MOI”). All the directors’ 
fees owing up to 30 June were paid 
and expensed in the year under review.

Turnover increased by 3,4% to 
R318,6  million and gross profit 
increased by 2,3% to R164,5 million.  
The continued focus on cost 
containment limited the increase in 
operating expenses to 2,4%, which 
included the directors’ fees of 
R1,8 million for prior years referred to 
above.  Operating profit of R9,5 million 

was only marginally lower than the 
previous year. HEPS of 3,97 cents 
were 11% less, attributable mainly to 
the arrear directors’ fees and the 
increase in the weighted average 
number of shares.
 
To give shareholders a better 
understanding of the true comparative 
performance of the group, we have 
reported normalised headline earnings 
per share which reflect the earnings as 
if the directors’ fees had been 
expensed in the correct year to which 
they actually related. The normalised 
result shows an increase in headline 
earnings per share of 27% for the 
2014/15 year.

Trading divisions
FloorworX
Considering the impact of the 
macroeconomy during the period 
under review, FloorworX showed 
its resilience in weathering major 
challenges, emerging stronger and 
more focused than ever before. 

Factors that negatively impacted the 
division’s performance included the 
month-long metal industry strike in 
July 2014 that affected the production 
facility in East London, sluggish 
domestic demand, extreme volatility in 

Load shedding
Costing the South 
African economy 
1% in GDP growth
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CEO review for the year to June 2015 continued

currencies and the major impact of 
load shedding on production 
efficiencies and recoveries. The effect 
of load shedding was felt beyond the 
manufacturing process, adversely 
impacting production planning, 
inventories and customer demand.

Management responded to these 
challenges by focusing on costs, 
flexible work practices as well as 
exploring additional markets for the 
supply of domestically manufactured 
products.

The final phases of the integration of 
the Suntups acquisition was 
implemented successfully and this 
business has become a valuable part 
of the comprehensive product range 
offered by FloorworX. We remain 
confident that this sector will become 
an increasingly significant contributor 
to the profitability of the group. Other 
strategic initiatives include the 
introduction of a corporate carpet tile 
range that is progressing well. 

Overall revenue increased 4,9% to 
R251 million, while margins were 

placed under pressure due to the 
factors highlighted above. However, 
effective cost containment and a 
strong focus within this business 
resulted in operating profits being only 
marginally lower year on year.

While many challenges faced the 
division, these factors along with a 
dedicated management team ensured 
that FloorworX further entrenched its 
leadership position within the resilient 
flooring market during the period 
under review. 

Safic
Safic showed encouraging progress in 
its turnaround strategy, despite having 
had to deal with a number of 
challenges. These included the 
spillover of the platinum sector strike, 
the metal industry strike, currency 
volatility and load shedding.

Safic has for some time been pursuing 
a strategy to focus on sustainable, 
recurring business within the 
commercial market segments as well 
as increasing the range of more 
specialised chemical products utilised 

in production process. As a result, 
there has been a shift in the business 
to a targeted, professional and 
sustainable marketing approach. 

This strategy is showing rewards as 
demonstrated by the fact that while 
volumes sold to the division’s 
traditional markets such as mining, 
engineering and manufacturing 
reduced during the period under 
review, the increased sales in the 
newer markets ensured Safic’s 
performance was more sustainable 
and resilient. This bodes well for the 
business going forward.

The Degrachem acquisition has been 
effectively bedded down and we are 
particularly pleased with the results, 
notwithstanding the fact that this area 
of business was severely exposed to 
the Numsa strike in July 2014. The 
acquisition also forms the basis for 
further expansion into the related 
process chemical sector.
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The provision of screeds and 
adhesives to FloorworX, as well as 
sales of related maintenance products 
and equipment, continues to show 
good growth and places the 
Accéntuate group in the unique 
position where it can supply a 
comprehensive range of flooring 
solutions, including preparation and 
maintenance products and equipment. 

Although Safic’s revenue declined 
marginally to R74,9 million and 
margins were under pressure, 
operating profit almost doubled due to 
very efficient cost containment and 
efficiency improvement measures.

The provision of water treatment 
chemicals to Safic customers remains 
a great opportunity, and the Ion 
Exchange joint venture delivers 
technical back-up that provides the 
basis for sustained growth in this area 
of the business.

A greater marketing focus, increased 
contract-based business, process 
chemical supply, and the return of 
traditional markets to some form of 
normality will see Safic increase its 
contribution to the performance of the 
group.

Ion Exchange Safic
As mentioned in previous discussions, 
water is increasingly becoming a major 
area of focus within the domestic 
economy. The joint venture with India’s 
leading water solutions company, Ion 
Exchange India, provides Accéntuate 
with a unique strategic platform for 
securing a number of lucrative water 
treatment and infrastructure projects 
in South Africa. The year has seen a 
number of exciting developments, 
including the awarding of a number of 
sizable contracts as well as a focus on 
building the necessary capacity to 
deal with the projects envisaged as 
and when they are awarded. 

Although this area of the business is 
still in its early stages, management 
remains of the opinion that this has the 
potential to become a major 
contributor towards the growth and 
profitability of Accéntuate in the future.

Shareholding
Post the financial year end, on 
27 August 2015, Accéntuate informed 
the market that Trustee Board 
Investments (“TBI”) had acquired a 
25,23% interest in Accéntuate. We 
welcome TBI as a shareholder and 
look forward to a constructive and 
mutually beneficial relationship. This 

marks a pivotal moment for 
Accéntuate, as the company enters an 
era in which the vast majority of 
shareholders are fully aligned to the 
strategy and vision which management 
and the board have for the group.

Strategy
An updated strategy is provided  
on pages 10 to 11 of this report,  
elaborating on how we plan to take the 
company to 2020. 

Prospects
The difficult economic conditions are 
not expected to ease in the foreseeable 
future. However, all the trading entities 
within the group remain focused on 
expanding their customer base and 
product offerings, and are well poised 
to take advantage of every possible 
opportunity to increase revenue and 
profitability. The group continues to 
assess possible acquisitions which fit 
in with the approved strategy, and with 
the support of the shareholders, it will 
be able to implement a number of key 
initiatives which are planned.

Fred Platt
22 September 2015



Accéntuate is a group 
of companies involved 
in supplies to the 
flooring, maintenance, 
cleaning, metal 
treatment and water 
treatment sectors. 

FloorworX is a market leader in the 
supply of products and services to 
both the public and private sectors in 
most forms of floor covering materials, 
with a 26 000 m2 manufacturing facility 
and  warehouse in East London and 
a  recently extended warehouse 
in Johannesburg. 

Safic, with a manufacturing facility, 
warehouse and laboratory in 
Johannesburg, is a significant supplier 

of chemical cleaning and adhesive 
material to the public and private 
sectors. They also supply a broad 
range of cleaning equipment.

Through a joint venture with Ion 
Exchange India, Accéntuate provides 
a comprehensive range of water 
treatment chemicals, equipment and 
technologies into the southern African 
market. 

Group profile
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Environmental solutions FlooringEnvironmental solutions Flooring
ION Exchange  

Safic
Ion Exchange Safic

Managing director: 

Gourish Chakravorty

Brand offering:

 Full spectrum of water 
treatment chemicals 
and equipment

Business description:

 Specialists in all forms of water 
and waste water treatment and 
management

Products:

■■ Water treatment chemicals
■■ Ion Exchange resins
■■ RO chemicals
■■ Floculants
■■ Membranes
■■ Waste water treatment plants
■■ Sewage treatment plants
■■ Design and consulting
■■ Comprehensive turnkey  
solutions

■■ Water installations

Managing director: 

Eric Platt

Brand offering:

Your total chemical and 
cleaning equipment 
solutions provider

Business description:

Safic is a specialist chemicals 
business which provides 
customised, environmentally 
acceptable chemical, equipment 
and adhesive solutions directed 
at the industrial and commercial 
markets.

Products:

Managing director: 

Donald Platt

Brand offering:

Your ultimate flooring 
solution

Business description:

As the only South African 
manufacturer of vinyl flooring, 
FloorworX supplies almost 70%  
of the resilient flooring market in 
South Africa. They also supply a 
comprehensive range of wood, 
laminate, luxury vinyl and carpet 
products.

Products:

Cleaning chemicals and 
equipment specifically for use in: 
■■Food and beverage industry
■■Commercial property
■■ Industrial and mining
■■Specialised and vehicle care
■■Floor care
■■Water purification
■■Metal treatment
■■Enhanced cleaning equipment 

and parts washing

■■Floor coverings
■■Accessories
■■Self-levelling screeds
■■Vinyl maintenance
■■Wood maintenance
■■Engineered wood floors
■■Laminated wood floors
■■Textile flooring
■■Transport flooring
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Our value proposition

The board of Accéntuate is committed to profitable growth as the primary 
generator of value. Accéntuate has not deviated from its stated 
commitment to growth. However, macroeconomic conditions have made 
growth extremely difficult over the course of recent financial years. Growth 
will continue to be targeted through organic expansion, the acquisition of 
appropriate new business platforms, new product ranges, cross-selling 
within the group and joint ventures into economic sectors that are aligned 
to our business strategy.

Vision
As a truly African company operating within 
the global economy, we strive to provide 
comprehensive, innovative and cost-effective 
solutions to accentuate sustainable development 
and maintenance of infrastructure on the 
African continent.

Mission
We strive to be the partner of choice to our 
targeted industries through the provision of world-
class infrastructural solutions. This will be done 
within a framework embracing global benchmarks 
while taking cognisance of local realities.

Values
We accept our position as a responsible corporate 
citizen and therefore uphold and respect: 
■■ the rule of law;
■■ responsible and sustainable development; 
■■  trust and respect for individuals and 
communities; and

■■ conducting business with uncompromising 
integrity.

■■ The future of Accéntuate will be to remain 
engaged in the manufacturing, sourcing and 
distribution of infrastructural supplies and 
maintenance solutions.

■■ The continued focus of expanding the non-
government-related opportunities within 
FloorworX will allow Accéntuate to concentrate 
on organic growth and identify further product 
expansions and joint venture arrangements, 
while targeting strategic acquisitions.

■■ The repositioning of Safic to facilitate growth 
without any increase in fixed costs.

■■ The ongoing engagement with an ever-
broadening range of customers to create 
further opportunities for Ion Exchange Safic in 
the water treatment market.
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Our DNA 

The eight strategic pillars of our business 
are based on 8és
Accéntuate strives to ensure sustainable and accelerated growth by 
focusing on both organic and acquisitory growth within the infrastructure 
development and maintenance sectors in the southern African markets. 

Building 
capabilities

éxcellence in 
products and 

services
Strong innovative 

products, services and 
solutions and a unique 

customer  
experience

équitable individual 
development

Attract and develop 
exceptional talent

émpowerment of 
communities

Taking cognisance of  
the distinct challenges 

within the South African 
context

énsured 
sustainability

Responsible production 
and management of risk 
to the organisation and 

environment

énforced corporate 
governance

Compliance in terms of  
good corporate 

citizenship

éarnings and 
shareholder value

Above-average returns 
for shareholders

éngaging 
stakeholders and 
the value chain

Leveraging of market 
knowledge, supplier 

relationships and 
communities

émployment of 
resources

Optimising working  
capital, investments and 

human resources
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Strategy continued
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Accéntuate strategy 

Due to less than desired circumstances out of 
management’s control, it was harder than initially 
anticipated to conclude acquisitions as 
management was limited in its execution due to 
various resolutions voted against in annual 
general meetings. However, two acquisitions 
were bedded down and benefited both FloorworX 
and Safic, improving cash generation and 
assisting with the strategy to expand into new 
markets. The acquisitions were made in the 
previous financial year:

■■ Suntups Wooden Flooring, a business with a 
well-established customer base, has allowed 
FloorworX to become a major supplier to the 
solid wooden flooring segment and expand its 
operations in the commercial segment of the 
market.

■■ Degrachem, a business involved in the supply 
of speciality metal treatment products, which 
has allowed Safic to advance a strategy already 
in place to provide more speciality products. 
This strategy has ensured sustainable annuity 
income for Safic. 

 

While the fundamentals of the 
Accéntuate strategy have not 

changed dramatically, it would not 
be appropriate to present the 

modified strategy going forward 
without looking back over the past 

five years and highlighting the 
successes of the strategy.

The success of these acquisitions was as a result 
of adherence to the acquisition criteria, namely 
being cash generative, correctly priced and a 
cultural fit. 

The Safic Ion Exchange partnership aided the 
group by providing a new discipline and market, 
namely water, to the business. However, its true 
potential is yet to be unlocked and forms part of 
the group’s new and extended strategy.

The updated strategy below is in place to counter 
the reality of reduced government spend. While 
the company is fully prepared for when 
government spend comes on stream again, its 
main focus over the next five years is to form 
global partnerships that could further enhance 
the business and open various other market 
areas. 
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Acquisitions and joint ventures to be evaluated

 Cash generative   I   Correctly priced   I   Cultural fit

Acquisitions 
and joint ventures 

to be evaluated
Cash generative 
Correctly priced 

Cultural fit

One to three  
years

Product and  
market expansion 

through partnerships

■■ ■Growth in factory volume 
throughput with new product 
ranges

■■ ■Increase international 
partnerships

■■ ■New product development with 
international partners to benefit 
from cost efficiencies

■■ ■Implementing alternative energy 
sources as a solution to ongoing 
negative impact of load 
shedding

Immediate
Continue to position 

Accéntuate for 
long-term growth

■■ ■Water and chemicals to 
be more prevalent part 
of the business

■■ ■Therefore there will be 
three significant 
contributing pillars 
– water, chemicals 
and flooring

■■ ■Global partner of choice

FloorworX
■■ ■Focus on strategic international 

partnerships:

– Australia – Africa
– USA  – Asia
– Europe

■■ ■Diversification of markets into 
private sector:

– Corporate
– Upmarket residential
– Private health

■■ ■Increasing manufacturing volume 
locally and through partnerships – 
therefore reinforcing market share 
and increasing efficiency and 
profitability

Safic
■■ ■One-stop global partner of choice in 

flooring maintenance chemical 
solutions

■■ ■Increased focus on water and 
process chemicals

■■ ■Solidifying product ranges 

■■ ■Enabled by strong global 
partnerships and increased 
manufacturing 

■■ ■Supported by FloorworX and its 
partners
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Business model 

Water treatment 
chemicals

Water treatment 
equipment

Water treatment 
engineering

Screeds and  
adhesives

Maintenance  
solutions

Resilient flooring 
solutions

Specialist industrial 
and cleaning 

chemicals

 Cleaning and 
maintenance 
equipment

Leading  

international  

agencies

ION Exchange  
Safic

ION Exchange  
Safic

ION Exchange  
Safic

JV with Ion  
Exchange  
India drawing  
on international 
network

26 000 m² 
manufacturing and 
warehousing facility 

International  
partnerships  
with global leaders

6 600 m² 
manufacturing and 
warehousing facility 

International  
partnerships  
with global leaders

Ion Exchange Safic

Environmental solutions

Flooring solutions
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Healthcare

Education

Industrial and mining

Food and beverage

Transport

Commercial

Public sector

Solutions

Private sector

Infrastructure development
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Key statistics

Accéntuate continuously 
focuses on operational 
excellence, process 
improvement and industrial 
leadership. In addition to our 
R&D initiatives, we also 
partner with global leaders  
in our areas of operation  
and benchmark ourselves 
against these. 

We continuously strive for  
zero safety incidents, zero 
customer claims, zero quality 
defects and zero waste.

Operational excellence 
In determining our product offering and positioning, 
Accéntuate focuses on the current and future needs 
of our customers. 

Attention is paid to ensure:
■■ the best materials are used in the design and 

production of our products – ISO 9001;
■■ responsible use of materials in all operations – 

ISO 14001; and
■■ health and safety of our staff, customers and the 

environment – OHSAS 18001.

2
factories

Turnover

> R315 
million

±1,5 million m²
of flooring 
produced

5
regional 
offices

±25
agency 

agreements

3,3 million kg
of chemicals 

produced

4
showrooms

2
laboratories4

warehouses  
with recent 

expansion at 
Steeledale

Servicing 

10countries

Accéntuate has a strong footprint across the region with offices 
in all the major cities across South Africa and representation 
in a number of other African countries through agents 
and distributors.
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Footprint

Accéntuate has strong relationships  

across SADC with distributors in Namibia,  

Botswana and Angola, and agents and  

resellers representing our products across  

a number of other African countries.

Western Cape
Cape Town

Eastern Cape
East London

KwaZulu-Natal
Durban

Gauteng
Johannesburg

Free State
Bloemfontein











Regional offices

Factories

Warehouses 

Showrooms

Laboratories

Key
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Leadership

1

Non-executive directors

1. Ralph Bruce Patmore (63)
Independent non-executive chairman 

BCom (Wits), MBL (SBL) Stanford Executive Programme 
(Stanford University, USA)

Ralph was appointed as lead independent non-executive 
director and head of the remuneration committee in 2011. He 
has an impeccable management career in the South African 
industry, having most recently served as the chief executive 
officer of Iliad Africa Limited for 10 years, stepping down in 
2008. This experience in the building material supply area is 
benefiting Accéntuate as the company moves forward to 
develop new markets. Ralph currently holds non-executive 
directorships in a number of other companies listed on the 
JSE. His experience in management, strategy, mergers and 
acquisitions and accounting matters, coupled with his vast 
knowledge of the construction, building and retail 
environment, has allowed Ralph to make a significant 
contribution to the group.

Value to Accéntuate
An illustrious career as a CEO of a leading company on 
the JSE has given Ralph broad exposure to the 
requirements and challenges of a company listed on 
the JSE. This experience has given him a balanced view 
of the executive function while at the same time 
understanding both the challenges and opportunities. His 
knowledge and access to systems, processes and 
procedures add enormous value to the organisation while 
his humour and EQ ensure engagement on sensitive 
issues.
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2

3

2. Ntendeni Eric Ratshikhopha (64)
Independent non-executive director 

BA (Hons) Sociology, University of the North Developmental 
Programme in Labour Relations, University of South Africa 
Advanced Programme in Labour Relations, University of 
South Africa Master of Management, University of the 
Witwatersrand Senior Executive Programme, Harvard 
School of Business

Eric was appointed as an independent non-executive 
director and as chairman of the social and ethics committee 
in 2011. He currently holds a number of directorships on 
foundations and serves as a trustee on a number of trusts. 
His background includes vast work experience in the mining 
sector, having been involved in industrial relations, health 
and safety, strategic management and corporate social 
investment. Eric has worked at Gencor, Genmin, Billiton SA 
and most recently as corporate development director at 
Xstrata. His wealth of experience in transformation, 
stakeholder relations and community development, as well 
as general management practices, is a massive advantage 
to Accéntuate.

Value to Accéntuate
Extensive experience in the mining sector with emphasis 
on human capital management and corporate involvement 
has ensured that Eric is well placed to act as the 
conscience of the  board. The belief in constructive 
engagement with stakeholders permeates his thinking 
and ensures that all strategic stakeholders are considered 
when the board addresses issues. His corporate 
experience adds further value to the process.

3. Pieter Slabbert Kriel (56)
Non-executive director 

BAcc (Hons) (Stellenbosch), CA(SA), Certificate in Senior 
Management

Pieter joined Thebe Investment Corporation in an executive 
capacity in January 2011 to establish and head its new 
power and infrastructure division, having served on the 
Thebe board as a non-executive director for 12 years. During 
this period he was also a member of the Thebe Investment 
Committee and has chaired this committee in the past. 
Pieter co-founded Sanlam Private Equity in 2003 and he was 
CEO from 2005 until June 2009. Pieter joined Sanlam’s 
investment division in 1987 after qualifying as a chartered 
accountant and completing his articles with Ernst & Young. 
During his 24 years of investment management with Sanlam, 
he gained experience in various roles including financial 
control, compliance, structured products, equity 
underwriting, portfolio management, the structuring and 
management of black economic empowerment investments 
and finally private equity. Having previously served as 
an  alternate director, Pieter was appointed a director on 
1 July 2014.

Value to Accéntuate
An accomplished businessman with a strong financial 
background sees Pieter playing a critical role on the 
board. Pieter is both respected and recognised for his 
broad business experience. His knowledge of transactions 
within the private equity space and his extensive 
experience in mergers and acquisitions adds enormous 
value to the effective functioning of the board. His gentle 
but persuasive nature ensures effective and constructive 
engagement.
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Leadership continued

4

4. Andile Mjamekwana (38)
Alternate non-executive director to Pieter Kriel

BCom (Hons) Acc (University of Natal), BCompt (WSU), 
CA(SA)

Andile is a qualified chartered accountant with over seven 
years’ investment banking experience. Andile currently 
works at Thebe Investment Corporation in the business 
development and strategy division dealing mainly with power 
and infrastructure projects. He is a board member of Jeffreys 
Bay Wind Farm (RF) (Pty) Limited, De Aar Solar Power (RF) 
(Pty) Limited and Droogfontein Solar Power (RF) (Pty) Limited. 
Andile previously worked at Absa Capital’s Investment 
Banking Advisory for two years as an associate director, 
where the transactions he was involved with included the 
sale of Cipla Medpro SA by Cipla India, the sale of Absa 
Bank’s stake in Absa Private Equity and an empowerment 
transaction for the DeBeers Diamond trading division. Prior 
to this Andile was an associate director at HSBC’s Investment 
Banking Advisory division for five years. Primary transactions 
worked on there included the sale of MTN Nigeria by local 
partners to MTN Group, the privatisation of Gabon Telecoms 

and the sale of Transnet non-core assets. He previously 
worked at PricewaterhouseCoopers’ corporate finance 
valuation and strategy division and he articled at 
SizweNtsaluba VSP.

Value to Accéntuate
A strong investment banking and accounting background 
will see Andile contributing positively to the growth of 
Accéntuate, particularly when it comes to the targeting 
and assessment of potential acquisitions. Andile is the 
newest member to the board and will chair the audit 
committee. 
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Executive directors

5. Frederick Cornelius Platt (48)
Chief executive officer

BA (Industrial Psychology), MBA (Brunel University, UK)

Fred began his career in human resources management in 
1990 at Fram Footwear, a division of Conshu Holdings 
Limited, later progressing to human resources director. He 
represented Conshu on the South African Breweries human 
resources committee before joining Safic in 1997. He moved 
rapidly through the corporate ranks serving as operations 
director in 1998, managing director in 2000 and finally group 
managing director for Safic in 2003. His vision for the 
organisation facilitated the strategic acquisition of Marley 
Flooring in 2004 and the consolidation of the various 
companies into Accéntuate Limited, which culminated in the 
listing on the AltX of the JSE in 2006. Fred is chairman of the 
Accéntuate group executive committee and is a member of 
the Institute of Directors.

6. Christopher John Povall (57) 
Chief financial officer

BCom, HDip Acc (Wits), CA(SA)

Chris began his career at Coopers & Lybrand (now part of 
PricewaterhouseCoopers) where he progressed to the 
position of senior audit and computer audit manager. His 
wealth of experience in working for listed companies began 
with his appointment as finance manager at Impala Platinum, 
after which he spent eight years with Times Media Limited, 
as group financial manager and group financial director. 
Chris thereafter served for more than 12 years as CFO for 
the Chemical Services group within AECI. Chemserve was 
listed until the end of 2003 whereafter AECI took 100% 

ownership. Most recently, he was divisional director of Protea 
Chemicals, one of the largest divisions of the listed Omnia 
Group. Chris is a member of the Accéntuate group executive 
committee and a member of the Institute of Directors.

7. Dr Donald Ernest Platt (56)
Executive director

Degrees in Business Administration and PhD in Management 
(Pacific Western University, California), Senior Executive 
Programme (Harvard Business School), course in Moral and 
Political Philosophy (Oxford), Global Management – INSEAD, 
France

Donald started his working career in sales and marketing, 
spending 12 years in the industrial gas industry and thereafter 
served as a director of a subsidiary of Conshu Limited. He 
joined Marley SA as sales and marketing director in 1998 
and was promoted to managing director of Marley Flooring 
in 2001. The division was acquired by Accéntuate in 2004. 
Donald is managing director of FloorworX Africa (Pty) Limited 
and serves on the Accéntuate group executive committee.

Operational management
Details of the operational management teams can be found 
in the operational review on pages 20 to 27 of this integrated 
annual report. 

5

6

7
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Review of operations – Ion Exchange Safic

The provision of a comprehensive range of water treatment, waste water 
treatment and water recycling products, technologies and solutions 
for industry, communities and for the home in the southern and 
South African markets.

Performance

Key indicators

Positive
  Cost-effective technology relevant to the 
geography

Negative
   Lack of references compared to the 
established local players 

Highlights

  Established superior process application for mine water 
treatment and sugar colour removal 
  Export business in Zambia and Mozambique 
established
  Commissioned containerised drinking water treatment 
plant and a sewage treatment plant in Mozambique
  Qualified as preferred vendor at Sasol, Columbus, 
Coca-Cola, PPC and the Illovo Group
  Developed new application/customised solution for 
water and waste water treatment including recycling

Challenges

   Competition from established local 
companies
   Reluctance of companies to try new vendors
   Slowdown of economy and sluggish market 
growth 
   Weakening of rand causing higher cost of 
imports

Outlook

   Awareness and focus of government for 
recycling and reuse of water provides 
expectation in future  
   Engaging with municipalities to refurbish and 
augment capacities of the water and sewage 
treatment plants 
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Three years ago, Accéntuate formed a partnership with Ion 
Exchange India, the largest water treatment company in 
India, to launch Ion Exchange Safic. The business is 40% 
owned by Safic and is equity-accounted as an associated 
company within the group. The company is growing its 
customer base and creating a base in the market for 
extended growth in the near future. Many years of practical 
experience and knowledge enables Ion Exchange to supply 
superior technology into the local market. Since the 
partnership began, a large amount of ground work has been 
done and marketing undertaken, not only to establish the Ion 
Exchange Safic name and credibility in the local market, but 
also to understand the array of water solutions needed by 
the private and public sectors in South Africa and further 
afield in southern Africa.

The list below reflects projects currently in place:
■■ Jindal Africa – the supply of drinking water plant and 

water recycling plant.
■■ Ergo Gold – the supply of speciality chemicals for pipeline 

protection.
■■ Illovo Sugar for the supply of process chemicals and 

other clients in the food and beverage sector.
■■ Columbus Steel – supplied Ion Exchange resins for the 

demineralisation plant.
■■ Water treatment chemicals for water utilities across South 

Africa and Zambia.
■■ Supplying products and intermediate/raw materials for 

water treatment chemicals.

The focus for the year was to penetrate the small and 
medium segments with appropriate and affordable 
technologies and products. To an extent this has been 
achieved. The strategy is to further target water purification 
services and technologies aimed at the private sector.

During the year the management of Ion Exchange Safic, 
Accéntuate and Safic spent considerable time negotiating a 
large potential acquisition for Ion Exchange Safic. The 
transaction came down to price and Ion Exchange Safic’s 
offer was not successful as we were not prepared to pay the 
excessive multiple which the other bidder offered. This 

process did assist the partners in clarifying the way forward 
for the Ion Exchange Safic partnership.

2016 strategy and prospects
The joint venture is positioning itself as a total solution 
provider to the water and environmental sectors. The 
process of identifying partners in various sectors to promote 
the concept of total water management is well under way. 
The focus will be to concentrate on EPC projects – engineer, 
procure and construct – as this is where much expertise lies 
within the partnership, and opportunities are apparent in the 
marketplace.

Ion Exchange Safic is well positioned with an extensive range 
of products and technologies. Furthermore, it has 
experienced and trained manpower in place to be deployed 
to assist clients in the application of water technologies.

The product portfolio to be marketed in this region includes 
softener, demineralisation plants, and membrane-based 
plants – reverse osmosis and ultra-filtration plants, packaged 
sewage treatment plants with water recycling options, 
speciality chemicals for reverse osmosis membrane and 
cooling water, chiller and boiler water treatment chemicals. 
Ion Exchange Safic can provide an extensive range of resin 
products for special applications such as arsenic removal, 
fluoride removal, nitrate removal, and heavy metal removal. 
The single largest challenge to water in South Africa remains 
water infrastructure upkeep, maintenance and improvement. 
Ion Exchange Safic is well positioned to work across the 
private and public sectors to ensure clean water across 
southern Africa

Gourish Chakravorty
CEO: Ion Exchange Safic

Ion Exchange 
management structure

Gourish Chakravorty
Chief executive officer



Jose da Silva
Sales manager
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Review of operations – Ion Exchange Safic continued

The process of water utilisation can be broken down as follows:

Water utilisation chain

Municipal/bulk water treatmentSource

In
du

st
ry

/e
nd

-u
se

r

No guarantee that water is clean

Input Processing Pre-treatment (effluent)

Price of water is increasing

Now being regarded as a commodity 
which has value

Water treatment chemicals

Water treatment plants

Sewerage works

Purification plants

Chemicals, treatments and purification 
plants which minimise surcharges 

(penalties) and assist the company to 
reuse its water resources

Water quality must be of a certain 
standard to minimise wear and tear 
on expensive machinery/processes

Water must be treated to minimise 
surcharges and fines in disposal

Bu
lk

 s
up

pl
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rs

Reuse

Chemicals, products and resins

Equipment

Design and consulting
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Review of operations – Safic

Our chemicals division supplying environmental solutions is well 
positioned to benefit from a revitalised structure coupled with a focused 
sales and marketing drive into defined channels.

Performance

Key indicators
Positive

  Drive towards greater proportion of contract-based income
  Entry into water purification, metal treatment and enhanced 
cleaning equipment ranges

Negative
  Depressed economic climate
  Load shedding
  Exchange rates
  Industrial action

Highlights
  Forward-looking order book of approximately R37 million
  Approximately 21% of revenue is secured contractually 
(annuity) 
  Cash operating costs reduced by 2,2% and total operating 
overheads decreased by 3,3%
  EBITDA increased by 14,0%
  Delivery costs contained to 5,8% of revenue
  Full integration and growth of the Degrachem metal treatment 
range of products
  Innovative range and product solutions
  Traction of new equipment introductions namely the Cleanfix 
and SRI ranges

Challenges
   Continued depressed economic climate and labour strikes
   Weakened and fluctuating currency
   Relatively high cost of petrochemical derivative raw material 
inputs
   High cost of distribution
   Increasing costs of electricity and water

Outlook
   Greater specialisation and targeted approach to the industrial, 
commercial, hospitality, metal treatment and water treatment 
sectors

   The further positioning of the Cleanfix cleaning machinery, the 
SRI biological products, the comprehensive metal treatment 
and Ion Exchange Safic water treatment product ranges to 
bolster current product and market solutions
   Increase innovative and environmental product solutions to 
defined market sectors
   Expansion into Africa through identified distributors with 
capacity to support our vision
   Focus on revenue growth, cash flow and return on investment
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Review of operations – Safic continued

Overview
The division provides sustainable, customised, 
environmentally acceptable cleaning and maintenance 
solutions, process chemicals for metal and water treatment 
as well as confidential blending services to the primary/ 
manufacturing, commercial, food and beverage, construction 
and government sectors.

Market conditions
Market conditions remained extremely challenging during 
this financial year. Revenue was flat at R74,9 million (2014: 
R75,5 million) and operating profit improved to R1,3 million 
(2014: R0,697 million). The gross margin percentage 
decreased slightly by 0,71% as a result of increases in input 
costs. Total operating overheads decreased by 3,3% year 
on year. Safic continues to focus efforts to extract profit from 
inter-group opportunities, namely the supply of adhesive and 
cementitious products to FloorworX, grow our presence 
within identified markets, maximise efficiencies in operations 
— all underpinned by excellent product quality, service 
delivery and environmental, health and safety standards.

Economic pressures felt in Safic is the relatively high cost of 
petrochemical derivative raw material inputs, weakened and 
fluctuating currency, load shedding the further increase in 
energy and water costs as well as the high costs associated 
with the distribution of our products. 
 
The Degrachem range of chemical products and solutions 
for the metal treatment market, has allowed Safic to enter 
this sector, in which it has not historically operated, with a 
significant market share. Safic has also decreased costs in 
many areas and simplified its range of products which has 
allowed a greater strategic focus on items and segments of 
the economy to target.

A range of cleaning machines is also sold to support 
contracts into which a wide range of chemicals are supplied. 
The major focus remains on the growth of sustainable 
revenue within the division. This has forced us to further 
redefine our product and market solutions and realign our 
sales and marketing structures to support this objective. 
New innovations included the offering of a full spectrum of 
water and environmental solutions through our joint venture 
with Ion Exchange India, the inclusion of a specialised metal 
treatment product range, and the further adding of a broader 
range of cleaning equipment to support the offering of a 
comprehensive solution package for key clients, allowing 
them overall cost savings.

Has our strategy been successful?
Although progress in this division has been slower than 
anticipated, we are confident that the division will become a 
major contributor towards the profitability of the group within 
the foreseeable future. This will be done through focused 
attention on building strong relationships with identified blue-
chip clients and the systematic exploitation of further 
synergies that exist between itself and FloorworX, especially 
in the areas of adhesives, maintenance products, and 
equipment to the flooring industry. The metal and water 
treatment sectors offer good growth potential. The division 
will fast track new product introductions, as well as complete 
solution packages which will result in long-term beneficial 
relationships with identified clients. Further focus will be 
placed on increasing order volume, improving our distribution 
network, growing our revenue and moving away from the 
supply of commodity cleaning materials to one of a value-
added solution provider. We will be able to increase 
throughput in the factory without a change in the fixed cost 
structure and will continue to focus on growth of annuity 
income. We have once again set ourselves high goals for the 

new financial year and believe that, with the commitment 
shown by all our employees and a focused approach, we 
can achieve these.

2016 strategy and prospects 
The strategy for the division includes:
■■ revenue growth within the industrial, commercial, food 

and beverage, metal, and water treatment sectors; 
■■ expansion of our key account initiatives with the intent of 

ensuring stronger secured annuity income;
■■ packaged offerings of unique product solutions to 

identified markets;
■■ the Africa market is a huge opportunity (specifically with a 

weak rand), and this will be expanded by offering water 
treatment and environmental solutions through identified 
distributors that have the capacity to support our vision;

■■ further extraction of synergies within our group and Thebe 
invested companies;

■■ comprehensive and packaged offerings of unique product 
solutions to identified markets; 

■■ major focus on further reducing operational overheads; 
and

■■ identification of suitable acquisitions.

Eric Platt
Managing director

Safic (Pty) Limited
senior management

Eric Platt
Managing director



Luke Quinn
Financial director

Doug Cutter
Operations director

Hannes Joubert
Head: Industrial strategy and sales

Neels de Graaff
Head: Metal treatment strategy and sales

Jenny Haefele
Human resource manager

Rika le Maitre
Sales administration manager

Victor Rajarathnam
Operations manager

Lizanne Sharp
Marketing manager
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Focus sales and marketing efforts on:

Mining | heavy
industry | industrial

dealerships | 
trucking, 

petrochemical and 
construction
companies 

Food manufacturers | 
food processing |  

hotels
Ion Exchange India 

partnership FloorworX

Major contractors, 
cleaning and facility 

management 
companies

 Expanding base of 
customers in mining, 
powder coating and 

defence industry 

•  Chemical cleaning and 
sanitation products

•  Cleanfix range – floor 
maintenance 
equipment, vacuum 
cleaners, single disc 
machines, scrubbers 
and sweepers

• Janitorial equipment
•  Dilution and 

dispensing units
• Training

•  Environmental parts 
– washing machines

• Spill absorption kits
• Car wash units
•  Heavy duty 

environmentally 
acceptable degreasers

•  Comprehensive range 
of chemicals for 
maintenance, repair 
and overhaul 
industries

•  Dilution dispensing 
systems

•  Pressure washing 
systems

•  Chemical cleaning and 
sanitation products

• Dosing equipment
• Monitoring

•  Metal surface 
preparation chemicals

•  Latest in technology in 
duplex coatings and 
surface preparation

•  Zinc and iron 
phosphating

•  Water treatment 
chemicals and 
equipment

•  Screeds, adhesives 
and other related 
products

•  Floor maintenance 
chemicals

•  Floorcare cleaning 
and maintenance 
equipment

0

2

4

6

8

Intergroup sales (products produced by 
Safic for FloorworX) (Rm)

June 
2010

June 
2011

June 
2012

June 
2013

June 
2014

June 
2015

Significant projects 
Important projects undertaken during the year 
under review include the supply of cleaning and 
maintenance solutions to:
■■ Sasol;
■■ FloorworX;
■■ hospitals and municipalities;
■■ Eskom;
■■ Mittal;
■■ City Power;
■■ Supercare and Compass Group;
■■ Bidvest Group;
■■ Spar;
■■ Transnet;
■■ mining industry;
■■ Thebe Investment-related companies; and
■■ Prometeus Serviços Angola.

Industrial
Institutional/

commercial cleaning 
industry

Hospitality Metal treatment Water treatment Construction

Supply of chemical cleaning and sanitation product solutions to the following market sectors

Safic strategy

Each of the above sectors include:
A dedicated team and product champion

Strategic applicable product range
Targeted blue-chip companies and industry leaders

Institutional-commercial / Industrial / Hospitality / Metal treatment / Water treatment
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Review of operations – FloorworX

FloorworX is a major player within the resilient flooring market in southern 
Africa and continues to expand and enhance its presence as the supplier 
of choice in the South African market and elsewhere in the world.

Performance

Key indicators

Positive
  Estimated market share of around 65% of 
the vinyl flooring market in South Africa
  Government commitment to infrastructure 
development

Negative
   Lack of government spend on infrastructure
 Currency fluctuations

Highlights

  Better than expected performance in 
extremely challenging market
  62 years of innovation and experience in 
South Africa
  Strong local production coupled with access 
to the best international products

Challenges

   Tough economic conditions impacted local 
manufacture
   Increases in energy and fuel costs impacting 
margins
   Slow roll-out of government infrastructure 
programme
   Four-week industrial action impacted factory 
output

Outlook

   New competitors entering the South African 
resilient flooring market
  Enhanced growth dependent on government’s 
roll-out of infrastructure, including the building of 
school classrooms, clinics and hospitals and the 
upgrade of existing facilities
  Growth expected in the corporate market 
segment including private healthcare
  Opportunities in rest of world for quality VCT 
products
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Market conditions
FloorworX's turnover was satisfactory considering the 
depressed state of the construction industry. Profitability 
was, however, eroded due to increased costs and the fact 
that certain production lines were running at reduced 
capacity due to lower demand.

Revenue for the year increased to R250,6 million (2014: 
R239,0 million).

The deterioration of the rand negatively impacted the 
division. The wood and laminate division continued to grow 
and the acquisition of Suntups continues to strengthen 
FloorworX position in the hard flooring market. 

Significant projects
Despite the lack of implementation of certain government 
projects as described above, important projects undertaken 
during the year under review included:

Project Size Product

Reduit University Campus 
Mauritius

1 020 m² Norament Grano 
Tiles

NIPAM Building Namibia 1 425 m² Sarlon Sparkling 
Sheeting

Saldanha Bay Military 
Academy

12 000 m² Superflex Sheeting

Cape Metro Council Rental 
Units (CRU Upgrades)

24 000 m² Superflex Sheeting

Asidi Group Schools Western 
Cape

36 000 m² Floorflex Tiles

Waterfront Shed 17 3 500 m² Marmoleum Sheeting

St Joseph’s Home 3 000 m² Marmoleum Sheeting

Chief Albert Luthuli Hospital 18 000 m² Superflex Sheeting

Empangeni Hospital 3 636 m² Superflex Sheeting

Steve Biko Campus – DUT 
Residences

13 425 m² Floorflex Tiles

Rhodes Life Sciences 
Building

1 886 m² Eclipse Sheeting

Addington Hospital Theatre 
Block

1 748 m² Eclipse Sheeting

Netcare Polokwane Hospital 12 000 m² Eclipse Sheeting

Bophelong Psychiatric 
Hospital

2 040 m² Sports Floor 
Sheeting

Mogwasa Community Health 
Centre

3 082 m² Eclipse Sheeting

Reserve Bank 1 132 m² Surestep Sheeting

Helen Joseph Hospital 3 500 m² Superflex Sheeting

UJ Soweto Doctors and 
Nurses Residences

5 500 m² Floorflex Tiles

Capricorn FET College Head 
Office

1 920 m² Eternal Wood

Anglo De Beers 1 525 m² Sarlon Traffic 
Sheeting

Charlotte Maxeke Hospital 7 667 m² Superflex Tiles

Witrand Psychiatric Hospital 3 480 m² Canvas Sheeting

2016 strategy and prospects
The following areas will be focused on during the coming 
year:
■■ Geographic expansion of the distribution network, 

including further expansion on the continent and beyond.
■■ Ensuring maintenance of margins through effective 

pricing, cost control and productivity initiatives.
■■ Wherever possible, minimising the volatility of global 

commodity and currency fluctuations.

The outlook for the foreseeable future will depend on 
government’s capacity to roll out the much publicised 
infrastructure programme. Positive government spending 
within the areas of healthcare and education will have a 
material impact on the profitability of FloorworX. Despite our 
unique positioning to supply and install product to 
government infrastructure projects, the strategy of expanding 
into other markets has resulted in approximately 40% of our 
revenue now being derived from the private sector. The drive 
to introduce our VCT tile into the US and Australian markets 
will have a positive impact on our future profitability.

Management remains optimistic about the continued positive 
performance of FloorworX. Our strategy is to ensure that 
FloorworX remains the supplier of choice, that our product 
offering remains comprehensive at competitive prices and 
that we continue to focus on service excellence.
 

Donald Platt
Managing director

FloorworX  
management structure

Donald Platt
Managing director



Louis Schreuder
Financial director

Andy Halls
Operations director

Francois du Toit
National sales manager – vinyl

Peter Geyer
National sales manager – wood and laminate

Theresa Venter
Marketing manager

Ken Boardman
Logistics manager

Lynette Scheepers
HR manager
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Sustainability report

A continued focus on ensuring 
the business is sustainable 
despite the tough trading 
conditions
Accéntuate views sustainability within 
the context of the well-being of the 
company and the environment within 
which it operates over the long term. It 
encompasses the concept of 
stewardship and the responsible 
management of resource use. We 
understand and respect our 
responsibility towards the 
transformation of the organisation and 
the society within which we operate in 
aspects where we have some influence. 
The communication of our governance, 
social and environmental performance 
to all stakeholders is thus of critical 
importance and this sustainability 
report offers us the platform to advise 
stakeholders of the aspirations that we 
hold for the organisation in a context 
broader than just shareholder value 
and our achievements in this regard. 

Accéntuate continues to view itself as 
a good corporate citizen and is 
therefore committed to not only 
complying with regulations but also 
striving to a leadership position within 
the realms of responsible business 
practices. Our commitment is to 
transparently disclose information that 
is material and relevant as part of the 
group’s reporting process.

Skills development and 
training
The development and maintenance of 
the identified and required skills base 
have always been leading priorities 
within Accéntuate and therefore formal 
structures have been established to 
monitor progress in this regard. 
Management, together with the 
employment equity committees, 
strives to uplift staff by ensuring that 
they are equipped with the necessary 
skills and competencies to perform at 

their best. In addition to this, there is 
an active programme to identify and 
eliminate the effects of past 
discriminatory practices, should they 
exist within the group, in order to move 
towards an organisation that 
adequately reflects the racial 
demographics of the various regions in 
which we operate.

Accéntuate is a learning organisation, 
relying heavily on the collective human 
capital of its workforce to respond to a 
highly competitive and dynamic 
environment. Its learning culture starts 
at the top of the organisation, with the 
commitment to continuous 
improvement permeating through the 
various echelons of management 
down to shop-floor level. The group’s 
commitment in this area was reflected 
by direct expenditure of R744 000 on 
staff and customer training during the 
year, as well as considerable in-house 
training. FloorworX falls within the 
domain of the Metals and Engineering 
Related Services Seta (“MERSSETA”) 
which, guided by the National Skills 
Strategy, has identified critical skills 
shortages within the industry, such as 
management, engineering, finance 
and sales. FloorworX focuses many of 
its skills development initiatives around 
these disciplines, thereby not only 
satisfying the business need for 
specific skills, but also contributing to 
the economy at large. FloorworX 
currently has six previously 
unemployed apprentices studying 
towards their electrical and fitting 
trades. FloorworX has recently also 
taken on 12 female, previously 
unemployed, learners on a production 
technology one-year learnership. In 
addition, FloorworX continues to 
facilitate the practical training of 
students in the completion of their 
National Diploma in Mechanical 
Engineering. Finally, FloorworX has 
three bursars studying towards 

qualifications in accounting and 
computer science. 

Staff in a number of areas have 
continued studying at postgraduate 
level. The FloorworX sales force is 
kept abreast of the latest sales 
techniques and market trends through 
continuous training and development 
initiatives. Safic belongs to the 
Chemical, Industrial, Educational and 
Training Authority (“CHIETA”) Seta 
where there is a strong focus on 
improving skills of all individuals in the 
related industries. Three learnerships, 
funded through the CHIETA 
discretionary grants system, are 
currently being carried out with the 
training provider called Institute for 
Quality Training, Education and 
Development. A further five 
learnerships have been applied for 
and we await a favourable response 
from CHIETA. A well-prepared training 
matrix identifies the various skill 
requirements and forms the basis of 
manpower planning. Training 
requirements are integrated into 
management performance measures 
and include continuous identification 
of needs managed and recorded for 
WSP, ATR, ISO and B-BBEE 
purposes.

Our learning culture starts at the 
various echelons of management and 
permeates throughout the 
organisation. As well as being 
responsible for building the capacity of 
their various departments, 
management is actively encouraged 
to enhance their own knowledge and 
skills through continuous learning. 
Personal development plans are in 
place, resulting in most managers 
being involved in learning, whether 
studying towards a formal qualification 
in their field of expertise, postgraduate 
studies or through attending 
continuous professional development 
programmes.

The essence of Accéntuate revolves around responsibility, care and quality 
in everything we are, in all that we do, in the products we manufacture and 
distribute, in the service we deliver and in the manner in which we treat 
our staff, stakeholders, customers and the environment. It is all this that 
underpins our sustainability.
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In addition to the internal training 
initiatives, Accéntuate contributes 
greatly to the upliftment of skills 
broadly within the flooring and cleaning 
industries. A number of initiatives are 
embarked upon whereby our 
customers and their staff are trained 
on the efficient and effective use of our 
products. This training is conducted to 
the highest international standards 
and within a framework embracing 
quality, safety, environmental 
awareness and ultimate customer 
satisfaction and service. A fully 
operational training centre has been 
established at our Steeledale facility 
that constantly trains and uplifts the 
skills of floor fitters within the southern 
African region.

Succession planning has been 
identified as an important aspect of 
sustainability and systems have been 
implemented to monitor progress in 
this area against predetermined 
objectives.

Enterprise development
Accéntuate is committed to enterprise 
development which is defined as 
“contributions of monetary and non-
monetary recoverable and non-
recoverable contributions actually 
initiated in favour of a beneficiary entity 
by a measured entity with the specific 
objective of assisting or accelerating 
the development, sustainability and 
ultimate financial independence of the 
beneficiary. This is commonly 
accomplished through the expansion 
of a beneficiary’s financial and/or 
operational capacity.”

The operations in Accéntuate are 
committed to a number of enterprise 
development and corporate social 
investment programmes in various 
areas. The indicative spend in these 
areas was more than R790 000 which 
was further complemented by 
substantial non-monetary assistance. 

Accéntuate views preferential 
procurement as an effective tool to 
facilitate transformation of society and 
to this end Accéntuate has developed 
effective preferential procurement 
strategies that are implemented at 
divisional level. These procurement 

policies are integrated as part of the 
ISO 9001 system. A number of factors 
are evaluated before awarding orders 
which include price, quality, customer 
service and B-BBEE status. The 
availability of certain raw materials 
from limited sources does, however, 
constrain our preferential procurement 
initiatives around many of our high-
value procured items. Continuous 
improvement in this critical area of the 
business is encouraged and monitored 
on an ongoing basis. Accéntuate 
measures preferential procurement of 
B-BBEE and the objective is to deal 
preferably with companies that have a 
score of level 4 and better. The group’s 
goal is to achieve the full 20 points 
from this area within the BEE 
scorecard. Within FloorworX and Safic 
the companies spent R51,8 million 
and R19,8 million with their top-10 
suppliers respectively.

Environmental issues
Serious attention is also given to 
environmental issues. This has 
become a critical issue for the group 
for a number of reasons, including the 
need for conservation of energy, as 
well as the focus on “green building”. 
Accéntuate has for many years taken 
the lead in the area of responsible 
manufacturing and the development 
of environmentally acceptable 
products. Safic was voted the Mail & 
Guardian’s “Greening the Future” 
company for two consecutive years 
for developing an environmentally 
acceptable range of chemical products 
that comply with the highest EU 
environmental directives.

Accéntuate is committed to minimising 
the impact of its activities on the 
environment. The key points of its 
strategy to achieve this are:
■■ Minimise waste by evaluating 

operations and ensuring they are as 
effective as possible.

■■ Minimise toxic emissions through 
the selection and use of its fleet and 
the source of its power 
requirements.

■■ Actively promote recycling both 
internally and among customers 
and suppliers.

■■ Source and promote a product 
range to minimise the environmental 
impact of both production and 
distribution.

■■ Meet or exceed all the environmental 
legislation that relates to the 
company.

Both FloorworX and Safic have been 
awarded and retained the ISO 14001 
certification.

Safic is a signatory to the responsible 
care campaign, the largest initiative 
worldwide aimed at ensuring that 
chemical producers operate within 
very stringent environmental and 
safety standards. A number of other 
awareness initiatives have been 
supported by Accéntuate including 
the Arbor Day and the 1 billion tree 
campaign.

Accreditations 
FloorworX and Safic both hold the 
following accreditations:

FloorworX Safic 
ISO 9001 ISO 9001
ISO 14001 ISO 14001
OHSAS 18001 OHSAS 18001
SANS 786 SANS 825
SANS 581 SANS 1828
 SANS 1853
 CAIA 
 Responsible Care
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Management of risk

ISO 

Certifications

ISO 9001 

ISO 14001

OHSAS 18001

ISO 

Certifications

ISO 9001  

ISO 14001  

OHSAS 18001 

Awards,  
certifications  
and recognitions

FloorworX 

Awards,  
certifications  
and recognitions

Safic 

Products  
manufactured  
in South Africa 

certified to carry 
SABS mark

50 Years 
Certificate  

of Recognition  
(SABS) (2009)

Signatory  
to Responsible  

Care Public 
Commitment 

Greening 
 the Future  
Chemical  

Safety Award

Description of risk Mitigating strategy Progress

Strategic

B-BBEE
■■ Building relationships with strategic BEE partners
■■ Careful management of the transformation process
■■ Promotion from within is prioritised

■■ Succession planning
■■ Ongoing engagement with potential BEE partners

Financial

Loan covenants
■■ Managed by group finance
■■ Tight control of working capital
■■ Hedging of exposure

■■ Borrowings remain within agreed facilities

Foreign currency 
exposure ■■ Ongoing monitoring and management by group finance ■■ Success in maintaining margins by covering all significant 

foreign currency exposure

Operational

Safety ■■ Strict safety codes and continuous monitoring ■■ No fatalities and almost zero injury rate

Cost of energy
■■ Electricity price increases mitigated through careful management of maximum demand 

in manufacturing
■■ Efficiency enhancement programmes
■■ Fuel cost managed and reviewed

■■ Major reductions of peak demand despite and 
reductions in total energy consumption

■■ Ongoing improvements to delivery processes

Inputs
■■ Rising commodity costs
■■ Variable sourcing methods and suppliers
■■ Timeous supply of finished goods and raw materials

■■ Strategic inputs managed on a continuous basis

Information technology ■■ Data and equipment protected through appropriate access control
■■ Information disaster recovery programmes in place, with off-site duplication ■■ Implementation of IT governance model – COBIT

Human resources

Change management ■■ B-BBEE development managed 
■■ Succession planning

■■ Monitored and evaluated via social and ethics and 
remuneration committees

Skills development
■■ Focus on recruitment of young staff and developing their skills for the long term
■■ Retention career planning
■■ Skills development and training (formal and informal)
■■ FloorworX Academy for the training and development of certified installers

■■ Long-term strategy to provide learnerships and 
apprenticeships

■■ High priority with good results and very low staff turnover
■■ Academy continues to make a significant contribution to 

the industry skill levels

Reputation

Stakeholder
■■ Continual communication to and with all stakeholders
■■ Continuous quality control measures in place to ensure standards are maintained  

and/or exceeded

■■ Ongoing exercise through various levels of management
■■ Internal and external audits are done and non-

conformances addressed
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South Africa’s  
Top Empowerment 

Companies  
(2009)

Daily  
Despatch  

Business Award  
(2009)

Products  
for use in food and 
beverage industry 
certified to carry 

SABS mark

Various 

product 

registrations

Accéntuate has identified issues 
that could have a material impact 
on the group within five risk 
categories, namely strategic, 
financial, operational, human 
resources and reputational. 
Management continually analyses 
the risks affecting the business and 
the control processes in place to 
mitigate against such risks. 
Accéntuate does not have a group 
risk officer, but the board of 
Accéntuate and the group’s risk 
committee review and assess 
issues, together with the plans to 
reduce risk, on a regular basis.

Description of risk Mitigating strategy Progress

Strategic

B-BBEE
■■ Building relationships with strategic BEE partners
■■ Careful management of the transformation process
■■ Promotion from within is prioritised

■■ Succession planning
■■ Ongoing engagement with potential BEE partners

Financial

Loan covenants
■■ Managed by group finance
■■ Tight control of working capital
■■ Hedging of exposure

■■ Borrowings remain within agreed facilities

Foreign currency 
exposure ■■ Ongoing monitoring and management by group finance ■■ Success in maintaining margins by covering all significant 

foreign currency exposure

Operational

Safety ■■ Strict safety codes and continuous monitoring ■■ No fatalities and almost zero injury rate

Cost of energy
■■ Electricity price increases mitigated through careful management of maximum demand 

in manufacturing
■■ Efficiency enhancement programmes
■■ Fuel cost managed and reviewed

■■ Major reductions of peak demand despite and 
reductions in total energy consumption

■■ Ongoing improvements to delivery processes

Inputs
■■ Rising commodity costs
■■ Variable sourcing methods and suppliers
■■ Timeous supply of finished goods and raw materials

■■ Strategic inputs managed on a continuous basis

Information technology ■■ Data and equipment protected through appropriate access control
■■ Information disaster recovery programmes in place, with off-site duplication ■■ Implementation of IT governance model – COBIT

Human resources

Change management ■■ B-BBEE development managed 
■■ Succession planning

■■ Monitored and evaluated via social and ethics and 
remuneration committees

Skills development
■■ Focus on recruitment of young staff and developing their skills for the long term
■■ Retention career planning
■■ Skills development and training (formal and informal)
■■ FloorworX Academy for the training and development of certified installers

■■ Long-term strategy to provide learnerships and 
apprenticeships

■■ High priority with good results and very low staff turnover
■■ Academy continues to make a significant contribution to 

the industry skill levels

Reputation

Stakeholder
■■ Continual communication to and with all stakeholders
■■ Continuous quality control measures in place to ensure standards are maintained  

and/or exceeded

■■ Ongoing exercise through various levels of management
■■ Internal and external audits are done and non-

conformances addressed

Strategic
The strategic risk considers the business model, 
brand, reputation and B-BBEE.

Financial
Financial risks pertain to compliance with 
regulations, reporting structures, accounting, 
taxation, foreign currency exposure and loan 
covenants. 

Operational
Operational risks include factors which influence 
the effective operation of the two segments 
including, but not limited to, safety, the cost 
of  energy, input costs, information technology 
and the trading environment.

Human resources
The human resources function, including change 
management and skills development, is  crucial 
to the Accéntuate group.

Reputation
Stakeholder and product quality control are 
essential.
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day-to-day management and are not 
full-time employees. The non-executive 
directors are individuals of high calibre 
and credibility, and have the necessary 
skills and experience to bring 
judgement to bear, independently 
of  management, on issues of 
strategy  formulation, performance 
management, resources planning and 
allocation, transformation and 
employment equity, standards of 
conduct, and other important 
decisions. The executive management 
is the responsibility of the CEO and the 
other executive directors. The executive 
directors are involved in the day-to-day 
management and operation of the 
group’s activities and are full-time 
employees.

The board meets at least quarterly, with 
additional meetings convened if 
necessary. The board is responsible for 
ensuring there is effective management 
and control of the group and sets the 

Corporate governance report

Statement of compliance
The board ensures that the group 
complies with all relevant laws, 
regulations and codes of good 
business practice. It communicates 
with its shareholders and relevant 
internal and external stakeholders 
openly and promptly. Internal 
governance structures and roles are 
regularly reviewed and improved at 
board and management levels. 
Accéntuate accepts its position as a 
responsible corporate citizen and will, 
wherever possible, contribute towards 
enhancing its role as such. The board 
is satisfied that the group has applied 
virtually all the principles of the King III 
Code, including all the principles which 
are mandatory in terms of the JSE 
Listings Requirements. A report on the 
application of these principles and 
explanations of the exceptions is 
available on the Accéntuate website. 
The group endeavours to incorporate 
into its actions the best possible mutual 

interests of all stakeholders, including 
investors, employees, suppliers, 
customers and the community in which 
it operates. The board has reviewed 
the information contained in the 
integrated annual report and believes it 
would not be cost-effective to have 
independent assurance of the 
information contained therein apart 
from the annual financial statements.

Board of directors
The group has a unitary board which 
during most of the year under review 
comprised four non-executive 
directors, three of whom were 
independent, and three executive 
directors. One of the independent non-
executive directors retired in March 
2015 upon reaching the mandatory 
retirement age. The roles of the 
chairman and the CEO are separate. 
The chairman is an independent non-
executive director. The non-executive 
directors are not directly involved in the 

Accéntuate Limited board of directors

Audit and risk committee Remuneration committee
Social and ethics 

committee

Group chief executive officer

Accéntuate executive committee

Group operating entities

Group  
internal  

audit

Independent 
auditors
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detailed report from each of these 
committees is set out later in this 
section. The board does not have a 
permanent nominations committee 
due to the limited number of board 
members and the infrequent changes 
in composition, but the chairman of the 
board convenes this committee from 
among the non-executive directors 
when it is required to consider the 
appointment of a new director. The 
board has from time to time appointed 
an ad hoc investment committee to 
evaluate possible investments and 
acquisitions.

strategic direction and policies. The 
board approves all acquisitions and 
disposals, major capital expenditure, 
oversight of financial and administrative 
activities, and other matters that may 
materially impact the business of the 
group. Directors are entitled to seek 
independent and professional advice 
relating to the affairs of the group. The 
board and its committees are supplied 
with full and timely information which 
enables them to discharge their 
responsibilities and they have 
unrestricted access to all company 
information, records, documents and 
property. Non-executive directors have 
access to all staff and may meet 
separately with management of the 
operating entities without the 
attendance of executive directors.

Board responsibility
The board of directors is responsible 
for the proper management and 
ultimate control of the group, in order 
to meet this responsibility to the 
members and all other stakeholders. 
The board is responsible for setting the 
strategic objectives, determining 
investment and performance criteria 
and taking responsibility for the proper 
management and ethical behaviour of 
the business of the group. There is a 
clear division of responsibility at board 
level that ensures a balance of power 
and authority. The board has appointed 
three permanent sub-committees to 
assist in fulfilling its governance role: 
the audit and risk committee; the 
remuneration committee; and the 
social and ethics committee. A more 

Directors’ attendance at meetings

Name Designation
Meetings 
attended

Meetings held in the 
period while a director

MDC Motlatla* Independent non-executive chairman 2 3
RB Patmore** Independent non-executive director/chairman 4 4
NE Ratshikhopha Independent non-executive director 4 4
PS Kriel Non-executive director 4 4
A Mjamekwana Non-executive alternate director to PS Kriel 4 4
FC Platt Chief executive officer 4 4
CJ Povall Chief financial officer 4 4
DE Platt Executive director 4 4

*Retired as a director 7 March 2015

**Appointed chairman 27 May 2015
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Corporate governance report continued

The board is satisfied that the chairman 
of the audit committee during the year 
under review was the most appropriate 
member of the committee to fulfil this 
role and that all the members of the 
committee have the required 
knowledge and experience. Although 
the social and ethics committee does 
not consist of a majority of non-
executive directors, the board is 
satisfied that the members are suitable 
and appropriate. This committee has 
no executive directors as members. 

The board has ultimate responsibility 
for the internal financial controls and 
operating systems of the group and 
for monitoring their effectiveness. 
These systems are designed to 
provide reasonable assurance against 
material misstatement and loss. 
Nothing has come to the attention of 
the board to indicate that there has 
been a material breakdown in the 
internal systems of control during the 
year. Various policies and procedures 
exist to address conflicts of interest. 
These cover areas such as full 
disclosure of all the interests of 
directors of Accéntuate and in strict 
approval requirements for the trading 
of Accéntuate shares.

Board charter
The board has adopted a board 
charter, the salient features of which 
include:
■■ Demarcation of the roles, functions, 

responsibilities and powers of the 
board.

■■ Terms of reference of the various 
board sub-committees.

■■ Matters reserved for decisions by 
the board.

■■ Policies and practices of the board 
on matters such as corporate 
governance, board meetings and 
documentation, disclosure of 
conflicts of interest and trading by 
directors in the securities of the 
company.

Evaluation of the board
An evaluation of the board, its 
committees and the individual 
members is undertaken annually. The 
evaluation is mostly overseen by the 
chairman of the board and portions 
where the chairman may have had a 
potential conflict of interest are 

overseen by one of the non-executive 
directors. Issues identified from this 
process, none of which were significant 
in the overall effectiveness of the 
board, and other areas identified for 
improvement are addressed on a 
continuous basis.

Appointment and re-election 
of directors 
Appointments of directors are made 
based on recommendations from the 
nominations committee, are 
transparent and formal and are a 
matter for the board as a whole. New 
appointments and rotations are ratified 
by shareholders annually at the annual 
general meeting (“AGM”).

In terms of the memorandum of 
incorporation (“MOI”), one-third of the 
non-executive directors retire each 
year, providing that all the non-
executive directors retire every three 
years. All directors are subject to 
election by shareholders at the first 
opportunity after their initial 
appointment by the board. In terms of 
the MOI, directors must retire at the 
age of 75.

Share trading
The group has a formal policy, 
established by the board and 
implemented by the company 
secretary, prohibiting dealing in the 
company’s shares by directors, 
officers and other selected employees 
from the end of each reporting period 
to the date of announcement of the 
financial results or in any other period 
when directors and senior 
management could be in possession 
of price-sensitive information. The 
group has a written policy which 
regulates the share dealings of 
directors and ensures disclosures are 
made as required by the JSE Listings 
Requirements. This policy is monitored 
by the company secretary. No trading 
by directors is authorised without prior 
clearance being received from the 
chairman of the board. Should the 
chairman wish to trade in his shares, 
clearance must be obtained from the 
board prior to any dealing. This policy 
is reviewed and updated from time to 
time to ensure that it is compliant with 
any changes in legislation and 
regulations.

Shareholder communication
Communication with investors and 
shareholders is conducted via SENS 
announcements of all relevant and 
required information, the annual and 
interim reports and the AGM. 
Accéntuate has a comprehensive 
website which is regularly updated 
and is constantly accessed by 
interested parties, including existing 
and potential shareholders, analysts, 
researchers, customers and suppliers. 
The company holds regular meetings 
with analysts, institutional and other 
significant shareholders primarily 
following the announcement of the full-
year and interim results.

The company secretary
Paresh Dayah is the company 
secretary for all entities in the group. 
He has a BCompt degree from the 
University of South Africa, majoring in 
auditing and finance, and provides the 
board collectively, and each director 
individually, with detailed guidance on 
the discharge of their duties and 
responsibilities in terms of the specific 
legislation, regulatory requirements 
and best practice. The board has 
considered, reviewed and satisfied 
itself that the company secretary has 
the necessary competence, 
qualifications and experience to fulfil 
this function based on the manner in 
which it has been performed. The 
board has ascertained from 
discussions with directors, senior 
management, internal auditors and 
independent auditors that the 
company secretary is independent 
and has maintained an arm’s-length 
relationship with board members and 
management.

Designated adviser
The company has appointed Bridge 
Capital Advisors (Pty) Limited as its 
designated adviser. Their services 
include advising the board on the 
interpretation of and compliance with 
the JSE Listings Requirements and 
reviewing all notices required in terms 
of statutes and JSE rules and 
regulations. Bridge Capital attends all 
board meetings and is invited to attend 
all audit committee meetings.
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Audit and risk committee report

Members of the committee
Name Qualification

A Mjamekwana (chairman) BCompt, BCom (Hons), CA(SA)
RB Patmore BCom MBL
NE Ratshikhopha BA (Hons) Sociology

The chief executive officer, the chief 
financial officer and the designated 
adviser are invited to attend all the 
meetings. The internal and 
independent auditors have unrestricted 
access to the committee members 
and also attend all the meetings.

Changes during the year 
Andile Mjamekwana was appointed as 
an alternate director and as interim 
chairman of the audit and risk 
committee on 1 August 2014 following 
the resignation of Dineo Molefe on 
30  June 2014. He was appointed 
chairman of the committee by the 
board on 23 September 2014.

Duties 
The committee operates in terms of a 
formal mandate that sets out the 
functions and duties of the committee. 
These functions are based on the 
relevant provisions of the Companies 
Act as well as relevant corporate 
governance codes and the JSE 
Listings Requirements. These include, 
inter alia, to:
■■ review the annual financial 

statements to ensure that they 
present a true, balanced and  
understandable reflection of the 
financial position and performance 
of the group; 

■■ ensure appropriate accounting 
policies and practices are adopted 
by the group; 

■■ identify the major risk factors which 
could affect the group and monitor 
actions taken to mitigate such risks;

■■ ensure an effective internal control 
environment in the group; 

■■ nominate the independent auditor 
for appointment by shareholders 
after satisfying itself that the  audit 
firm and the designated audit 
partner are independent; 

■■ determine the fees to be paid to the 
independent auditor as well as their 
terms of engagement; 

■■ review the scope and results of the 
internal and independent auditors; 

■■ evaluate the effectiveness of the 
internal and independent auditors;

■■ ensure that the appointment of the 
independent auditor complies with 
the provisions of the  Companies 
Act and other relevant legislation 
and regulations; 

■■ approve the policy which determines 
the nature and extent of any non-
audit services which the  independent 
auditor may provide; and 

■■ pre-approve any proposed contract 
with the independent auditor for the 
provision of non-audit services to 
the company.

The committee has considered the 
above matters during the year and is 
satisfied that it can report satisfactorily 
to the shareholders on all of these 
issues. The committee has also 
reviewed and satisfied itself with the 

appropriateness of the expertise and 
experience of the chief financial 
officer,  Chris Povall, CA(SA), as 
required in terms of the JSE Listings 
Requirements.

The board is responsible for the total 
risk management process. The audit 
and risk committee supports the 
board in formulating the risk 
management strategy, which is based 
on the need to identify, assess, 
manage and monitor all material forms 
of risk across the  group. The board 
defines the group’s tolerance for risk 
and has the responsibility to ensure 
that the group has implemented an 
effective ongoing process to identify 
risk, to measure its impact against a 
broad set of assumptions and then to 
activate processes required to 
proactively manage these risks. The 
committee is satisfied that the risk 
management process is effective. 
Further information is contained in 
“management of risk” on page 30 of 
the integrated annual report.

Meetings and attendance

Meetings attended

Meetings held while 
a member/invitee of 

the committee

Name Member Invitee

A Mjamekwana 3 3
RB Patmore 3 3
NE Ratshikhopha 3 3
FC Platt 3 3
CJ Povall 3 3

The committee discharges its duties 
with regard to the operating 
subsidiaries in the same meetings that 
are held for Accéntuate Limited.
  
Independent audit 
The board appointed Mazars 
(Gauteng) Inc. to perform an 
independent and objective audit on 
the group’s annual financial 
statements. The financial statements 
are prepared in terms of the Companies 
Act and IFRS. The committee has 
considered the extent of non-audit 
services provided by the independent 
auditors and is satisfied that their 
independence is not compromised.

Internal audit 
The group internal audit function 
reports directly to the chairman of the 

committee. The internal audit function 
is regarded as being sufficiently 
independent of the activities being 
audited. The internal audit plan is 
reviewed and adjusted on a continual 
basis to ensure effectiveness and is 
based on the relevant degree of 
inherent risk of the business.

Annual financial statements 
The committee has reviewed the 
annual financial statements and 
recommended the board approval 
thereof.

A Mjamekwana 
Chairman of audit and risk committee
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Remuneration committee report

Members of the committee
Name Designation

PS Kriel (chairman)* Non-executive director
RB Patmore Independent non-executive director
NE Ratshikhopha Independent non-executive director
MDC Motlatla (resigned  
7 March 2015) Independent non-executive director

The chief executive officer and the chief financial officer are invited to attend all the 
meetings but may not participate in discussions on their own remuneration.

Meetings and attendance

Meetings attended

Meetings held while 
a member/invitee of 

the committee

Name Member Invitee

PS Kriel (chairman)* 0
RB Patmore 3 3
NE Ratshikhopha 2 3
MDC Motlatla 2 3
FC Platt 3 3
CJ Povall 3 3

*Pieter Kriel was appointed as chairman of the remuneration committee on 27 May 2015 following 
the appointment of Ralph Patmore as the chairman of the Accéntuate Limited board on the same 
day. Ralph was chairman of the remuneration committee until then, and remains a member of the 
committee.

Duties and philosophy
The remuneration committee operates 
in line with the terms of reference 
approved by the board. The committee 
assists in developing a remuneration 
strategy and philosophy for the board. 
The committee determines the 
remuneration arrangements, profit 
participation and benefits of the 
executive directors and executive 
management and ensures 
remuneration policies implemented 
are aligned with the strategy of the 
group and linked to individual 
performance.

The remuneration philosophy reflects 
Accéntuate’s commitment to be 
compliant with best practice in the 
areas of remuneration, retention and 
reward to ensure that the group 
attracts and retains exceptional talent. 
The remuneration packages and 
incentives are regularly evaluated 
against market-related surveys. The 
interests of shareholders and the 
financial and commercial well-being of 

the group are taken into account by 
the committee. Directors’ remuneration 
packages are structured on a 
cost-to-company basis and include 
contributions to healthcare, disability, 
life insurance and retirement benefits.

The remuneration committee 
considers and recommends to the 
board matters relating to employee 
benefits and short-term and long-term 
incentives. Executive incentive 
schemes are subject to the approval of 
the remuneration committee and are 
based on market conditions and the 
achievement of prescribed and 
measurable performance targets.

Other key roles of the remuneration 
committee are to provide a mandate 
for the group’s annual remuneration 
increases and to recommend the fees 
payable to non-executive directors.

Executive directors’ 
remuneration
Executive remuneration comprises 
three components: 
■■ Guaranteed remuneration, which 

includes the monthly basic cash 

salary as well as other benefits  
such as travel and vehicle 
allowances, retirement funding and 
medical aid contributions. 

■■ A cash-based short-term 
performance incentive, linked to the 
performance of the company and  
the personal performance of the 
individual concerned. These 
incentives are based on a sliding  
scale of the profit earned for the 
year, subject to the profit before 
interest and tax being greater than 
80% of the previous year and a 
minimum return of capital employed 
(“ROCE”) of 6%, and are further 
adjusted based on the level of cash 
generation by the relevant business 
units. 

■■ A long-term incentive, which 
comprises a combination of a cash-
settled share appreciation rights  
plan and share options. The share 
options in issue are intended to 
utilise the shares already owned by 
the share trust. Further details are 
set out in note 22 to the financial 
statements.

The executive directors’ guaranteed 
pay and incentive awards are reviewed 
annually by the remuneration 
committee. The individual salaries of 
directors are adjusted in light of their 
own performance, experience, level of 
responsibility and group performance. 
Executive directors do not receive 
directors’ fees for attending board and 
sub-committee meetings. 

Directors’ emoluments are detailed in 
note 28 of the annual financial 
statements.

Succession planning
The remuneration committee reviews 
the group’s succession plan and 
communicates any areas of concern 
to the board. The group presently has 
adequate succession planning for all 
senior executive positions. The 
development of the plan is ongoing 
and is formally reviewed at least 
annually.



Accéntuate I integrated annual report 2015 37

Non-executive remuneration
Non-executive directors’ fees consist of an annual retainer fee and a meeting fee per meeting attended. It is proposed that the 
non-executive directors be paid as follows:

Annual retainer fee

Designation 2014/2015 2015/2016 

Independent chairman of the board R360 000 R250 000
Lead independent director R145 000 –
Other independent directors R72 450 R76 800

Fee per meeting (payable in addition to the annual retainer fee)

Designation 2014/2015 2015/2016 

Main board (four scheduled meetings per annum), chairman and board members R12 100 R12 830
Audit and risk committee (three scheduled meetings per annum), chairman and board 
members R12 100 R12 830
Remuneration committee (three scheduled meetings per annum), chairman and board 
members R6 100 R6 500
Social and ethics committee (two scheduled meetings per annum), chairman and board 
members R6 100 R6 500

Non-executive directors enjoy no 
benefits from the company for their 
services as directors other than their 
fees.

The non-executive directors have not 
been paid the full fees for the 2014/15 
year as the company has agreed with 
the JSE not to further implement the 
special resolution approving the 
proposed fee structure which was 
voted on at the AGM in February 2015. 
The directors’ fees due but not yet 
paid for the 2014/15 financial year 
have been accounted for and are 
reflected as a liability in the annual 
financial statements.

PS Kriel
Chairman of remuneration committee
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Social and ethics committee report

The social and ethics committee was formed in 2012 in line with best practice and in accordance with regulatory requirements.

Members of the committee

Name Designation

NE Ratshikhopha (chairman) Independent non-executive director
PS Dayah Company secretary

The chief executive officer is invited to attend all committee meetings.

CR Garner was a member of the committee until he retired at the end of May 2015. Once a replacement has been confirmed, 
shareholders will be advised accordingly.

Meetings and attendance

Meetings attended

Meetings held while 
a member/invitee of 

the committee

Name Member Invitee

NE Ratshikhopha (chairman) 2 2
CR Garner 2 2
PS Dayah 2 2
FC Platt 2 2

The committee agreed that two 
meetings would be held per 
annum and this would allow it to fulfil 
the duties within its mandate.

Terms of reference 
The committee is guided by the social 
and ethics policy, the relevant 
legislation pertaining to its functions 
together with best practice in these 
aspects including the principles 
contained in the UN Global 
Compact. The relevant legislation 
includes the Companies Act, Labour 
Relations Act, Employment Equity Act, 
B-BBEE Act, Consumer Protection 
Act, Occupational Health and Safety 
Act, Competition Act, and Protection 
of Private Information Act. 

Functions 
In line with the social and ethics policy 
which has been adopted by the 
committee, a copy of which is available 
on the company website, it has set up 
reporting mechanisms to monitor the 
activities within the group against 
predetermined targets on a variety of 
issues including: 
■■ The environment, health and public 

safety. 
■■ Ethical standards. 
■■ Social and economic development. 
■■ Good corporate citizenship. 
■■ Consumer relations. 
■■ Labour and employment practices. 

Stakeholders 
The following diagram identifies the various stakeholders of the group:

Shareholder 
and investor 
community

Employees

BEE partners

Communities 
and civil society

Banks,  
funders, 

insurance 
companies  

and JSETrade
unions

Media

Government

Customers

Suppliers

Accéntuate
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The key aspects which the committee 
monitors include the following:

Shareholders 
The company strives to provide an 
attractive return to shareholders and 
valid, accurate and relevant information 
which complies with all related 
legislation through the shareholder’s 
selected channel of communication. 

Employees 
Ensuring that employees are provided 
with fair employment practices, a safe 
working environment and appropriate 
training while ensuring non-
discrimination, protection of human 
rights and freedom of association 
through the implementation of agreed 
policies and procedures. 

Customers 
The company meets or exceeds 
customers’ expectations, complies 
with the Consumer Protection Act 
(“CPA”) and ensures timely and 
accurate communication to all 
customers. 

Suppliers 
Accéntuate understands the value of 
strong and effective relationships with 
suppliers. The group encourages the 
use of procurement as a tool in the 
transformation of society. For this 
reason, the company will not support 
suppliers who use forced or child 
labour. Wherever possible, sustainable 
and renewable resources will be used. 
Accéntuate supports the provisions of 
B-BBEE within its procurement 
activities.

Communities 
The company views itself as a 
responsible corporate citizen and 
ensures investment into the 
communities within which it operates. 
Responsible production and 
operations meeting high-quality ISO 
standards are practised, always 
bearing in mind the health and safety 
of the communities within which it 
operates and the environmental 
impact on them. 

Government 
Management strives to comply with all 
legislative and regulatory requirements. 

JSE 
Ensuring compliance with the JSE 
Listings Requirements and related 
corporate governance guidance and 
best practice such as King III. 

Financial institutions 
Timely and accurate information is 
provided to bankers and ensuring 
compliance with agreed covenants.

B-BBEE 
The target set for all operating entities 
in the group is a minimum of level 4. 
The current B-BBEE status for the 
main trading operations are: 

FloorworX  Level 3 
Safic    Level 4
Ion Exchange Safic  Level 4

Employment equity 
Both FloorworX and Safic have made 
good progress towards achieving their 
targets in terms of employment equity. 

Progress 
Substantial progress has been made 
in standardising and  formalising the 
group reporting structures that enable 
the committee to monitor the 
compliance of subsidiaries with the   
group policies and review matters 
within its responsibility. The adequacy 
of the group policies are reviewed 
annually to ensure that all areas 
identified are addressed. At all levels, a 
variety of positive and constructive 
interactions were undertaken with all 
the Accéntuate stakeholders during 
the year under review.

Safety standards are continuously 
reviewed and monitored. The group 
had no fatalities and there were only 
four recordable lost-time injuries 
during the year which resulted in a loss 
of 508 work hours. FloorworX and 
Safic have both received the following 
certifications: 
■■ ISO 9001 – Quality Management 

System. 
■■ ISO 14001 – Environmental 

Management System. 
■■ OHSAS 18001 – Health and Safety 

Management System. 

The corporate social investment 
expenditure for the group 
was  R196  000 and the enterprise 

development expenditure was 
R599 000. These are in line with the 
targets set by the committee. 

The total number of employees in 
the  group at 30 June 2015 
was  278,  comprising 164 males 
and  114  females; 69% of the 
total  employees are categorised 
as  previously disadvantaged for 
employment equity reporting. 

Skills development expenditure in the 
group was R318 000. The staff 
turnover rate for the year under review 
was 6,8% which is acceptable and 
similar to previous years. A total of 
15 458 man hours were lost during the 
year as a result of industrial action, all 
in July 2014. The committee is satisfied 
that the employee policies and 
practices are appropriate. 

The committee is not aware of any 
instances by the group or its 
employees in respect of human rights 
abuses, restrictions on freedom of 
association, use of forced or child 
labour, discrimination of employment, 
contraventions of environmental 
responsibility or use of bribery and 
corruption.

NE Ratshikhopha 
Chairman of social and ethics 
committee
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Shareholders’ analysis

Analysis of ordinary shareholders as at 30 June 2015

Size of holdings
Number of 

shareholders
% of total 

shareholders
Number of 

shares
% of shares 

in issue

1 – 1 000 shares 94 19,8 36 189 0,1
1 001 – 10 000 shares 210 44,1 1 165 834 0,9
10 001 – 100 000 shares 116 24,4 4 022 833 3,2
100 001 – 1 000 000 shares 34 7,1 10 287 152 8,3
1 000 001 shares and over 22 4,6 108 536 749 87,5

Total 476 100,0 124 048 757 100,0

Distribution of shareholders
Number of 

shareholders
% of total 

shareholders
Number of 

shares
% of shares 

in issue

Retail shareholders 427 89,7 40 948 351 33,0
Private companies 15 3,1 41 754 480 33,7
Trusts 17 3,6 17 281 401 13,9
Close corporations 7 1,5 8 810 827 7,1
Managed funds 1 0,2 7 561 648 6,1
Share schemes 1 0,2 4 697 167 3,8
Public companies 2 0,4 2 200 034 1,8
Investment partnerships, stockbrokers and 
nominees 5 1,1 130 348 0,1
Treasury 1 0,2 664 501 0,5

Total 476 100,0 124 048 757 100,0

Shareholder type
Number of 

shareholders
% of total 

shareholders
Number of 

shares
% of shares 

in issue

Public shareholders  445 93,5  74 933 773 60,4
Non-public shareholders (analysed as follows):  31 6,5  49 114 984 39,6
Directors of the company  3 0,6  9 073 408 7,3

FC Platt – direct holding  1  1 167 833 0,9
FC Platt – indirect holding  1  5 405 575 4,4
DE Platt – direct holding  1  2 500 000 2,0

Other non-public holders  28 5,9  40 041 576 32,3
Other group management and staff  24  2 524 554 2,1
Holders owning more than 10%  2  32 155 354 25,9
Accentuate Limited Share Trust  1  4 697 167 3,8
Treasury shares  1  664 501 0,5

Total 476 100 124 048 757 100,0

The shareholding of directors did not change during the year or subsequent to the year end.
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Shareholders with a holding greater than 3% of the shares in issue
Number of 

shares
% of shares 

in issue

Thebe Investment Corporation (Pty) Limited* 17 653 443 14,2 
Mr RC Von Seidel** 14 501 911 11,7 
Jacana Assets Limited 11 200 000 9,0 
Pruta Securities (Jersey) Limited 7 561 648 6,1 
Willow Securities CC** 7 300 000 5,9 
The Elm Trust** 7 210 000 5,8 
Kotula Trust 5 405 575 4,4 
Mr MI Sacks 5 301 276 4,3 
Inyanga Trading 167 (Pty) Limited 5 271 096 4,2 
Accéntuate Limited Share Trust 4 697 167 3,8 
Garner Family Trust 4 199 066 3,4 

Total 90 301 182 72,8 

*  Thebe Investment Corporation, over and above its beneficial holding of 4 300 000 shares, has an indirect beneficial interest of 13 353 443 shares held 
by Marble Gold 127 (Pty) Limited.

** Post the financial year end these holdings were sold to Trustee Board Investments (“TBI”).    

    
Share price performance

Closing price 30 June 2014 R0,56
Closing price 30 June 2015 R0,50
Closing high for the period R0,70
Closing low for the period R0,45
Volume weighted average trading price for year R0,54

Number of shares in issue 124 048 757
Volume traded during period 24 055 586
Ratio of volume traded to shares in issue (%) 19,4
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Shareholders’ analysis continued
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Interaction with shareholders
Accéntuate maintains an open dialogue with its key financial audiences including private shareholders and analysts. An investor 
relations consultancy has been appointed which further disseminates information to the market, and shareholders are also 
encouraged to contact Accéntuate management or the consultancy, Keyter Rech Investor Solutions, directly for additional 
information. The group adopts a proactive attitude to the timely dissemination of appropriate information to stakeholders and 
shareholders through print and electronic news releases and the statutory publication of the group’s financial performance. 
Accéntuate regularly has shareholder briefings in which the results, prospects and the operating environment are discussed. 
Site visits are also regularly undertaken. The group’s website provides the latest and historical financial information, as well as 
information on the management of the group and the operations. Shareholders are encouraged to attend the annual general 
meeting, notice of which is contained in this annual report, where shareholders will have the opportunity to put questions to 
the board and management present.

Shareholders’ diary
2015 2016

30 June 28 September October 27 November 31 December March

Year end Announcement of 
results

Posting of 
integrated annual 

report

Annual general 
meeting

Interim period Announcement of 
interim results
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Directors’ responsibility and approval

Certification by company secretary

The directors are responsible for the preparation, integrity 
and fair presentation of the financial statements and other 
financial information included on pages 35, 40 and 46 to 
93  in this report. In presenting the accompanying financial 
statements, International Financial Reporting Standards, the 
JSE Listings Requirements, the Companies Act of South 
Africa, the SAICA Financial Reporting Guides as issued by 
the Accounting Practices Committee have been followed; 
applicable accounting assumptions have been used while 
prudent judgements and estimates have been made.

The going-concern basis has been adopted in preparing the 
financial statements. The directors have no reason to believe 
that the company or the group will not be a going concern in 
the foreseeable future based on forecasts and available cash 
resources. The financial statements support the viability of 
the company and the group.

The financial statements have been audited by the 
independent accounting firm Mazars (Gauteng) Inc., as 
indicated in their report, which was given unrestricted access 

to all financial records and related data, including all 
resolutions and minutes of all meetings of the shareholders, 
and the board of directors and committees of the board. The 
directors believe that all representations made to the 
independent auditor during the audit were valid and 
appropriate.

The financial statements were approved by the directors on 
22 September 2015 and are signed on their behalf.

FC Platt    CJ Povall
Chief executive officer  Chief financial officer

Johannesburg
22 September 2015

In terms of section 88(2)(e) of the Companies Act of South Africa, I declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, the 
company has lodged with the Companies and Intellectual Properties Commission all such returns as are required of a public 
company in terms of the Companies Act of South Africa and that all such returns are true, correct and up to date.  
   

 
 
 

P Dayah 
Company secretary

Johannesburg
22 September 2015
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Directors’ report

Directors’ shareholding in Accéntuate Limited
The directors’ shareholdings are set out in the shareholders’ 
analysis on page 40 of the integrated annual report, and 
have not changed between the year end and date of issuing 
this report.
Interest in subsidiaries
Details of the company’s investments in subsidiaries are set 
out in note 10 of the financial statements.

Share options and share appreciation rights
The directors are authorised to issue, allot and grant options 
to acquire up to a maximum of 25 000 000 ordinary shares 
of the company in terms of the share incentive scheme. As 
at 30 June 2015, this represented 20,2% of shares in issue. 
Details of share options outstanding under the scheme and 
details of the share options granted to the directors are 
reflected in note 22 of the financial statements. Share 
appreciation rights (“SARs”) have been awarded to identified 
senior executive management. Refer to note 22 of the 
financial statements for further details of the scheme and 
details of the SARs awarded to and exercised by directors.

Dividends
No dividends were declared during the period under review.

Borrowing limitations
In terms of the Memorandum of Incorporation of the 
company, the directors may exercise all the powers of the 
company to borrow money as they consider appropriate. 
The group’s borrowing facilities are as described in note 17.

Directors’ emoluments
Details of the directors’ emoluments are set out in note 28 of 
the financial statements.

Litigation statement
On 25 March 2011 an action was launched against the 
vendors of CGA Fenestrations (“CGA”) in which Accéntuate 
is suing the vendors for damages arising from a breach of 
certain warranties provided by the vendor when Accéntuate 
purchased the shares in CGA in 2007. A settlement was 
reached with two of the minor vendors during the previous 
year. The outstanding claim by Accéntuate against the two 
major vendors is R6,1 million. 

Directors’ interest in contracts
None of the directors’ of Accéntuate Limited have any 
disclosable interest in any party with which the group has 
contracted during the year.

Independent auditors
Mazars (Gauteng) Inc. continued in office as the group’s 
auditors in accordance with section 90 of the Companies 
Act. At the annual general meeting, shareholders will be 
requested to reappoint Mazars (Gauteng) Inc. as auditors to 
the group.

There are no other significant matters or circumstances 
arising since the end of the financial year on 30 June 2015. 

RB Patmore
Chairman of the board

22 September 2015

The directors submit their report for the year ended 30 June 
2015.

Review of activities
Main business and operations
The Accéntuate group is engaged in the manufacturing, 
distribution and installation of flooring solutions; the 
manufacturing and supply of chemical infrastructural 
maintenance solutions; and the supply of water treatment 
chemicals and equipment. The group principally operates in 
southern Africa. The operating results and state of affairs of 
the group are fully set out in the attached financial statements 
and elsewhere in the integrated annual report, and do not in 
our opinion require any further comment.

The non-executive directors’ fees for the 2012, 2013 and 
2014 financial years were expensed and paid in the 2015 
year following the judgement which ruled the company had 
been correct in its treatment of voting at the 2013 AGM and 
that all the resolutions from that meeting were validly 
approved. In order to give shareholders a better 
understanding of the true comparative performance of the 
group, a normalised earnings per share figure has been 
reported in note 5 which reflects the headline earnings if the 
directors’ fees had been expensed in the financial year to 
which they actually related.

Directors
The directors of the company during the year and at the date 
of this report are as follows:
RB Patmore*  – appointed director 30 September 2011 

– appointed chairman 27 May 2015
PS Kriel** – appointed 1 July 2014
FC Platt (chief executive officer) – appointed 6 December 
2004
DE Platt (executive director) – appointed 1 June 2006
CJ Povall (chief financial officer) – appointed 1 June 2012
NE Ratshikhopha* – appointed 30 September 2011
A Mjamekwana** (alternate director) – appointed 1 August 
2014
MDC Motlatla* – chairman until resignation 7 March 2015

*  Denotes independent non-executive
**  Denotes non-executive

All the directors are South African.

Company secretary
The secretary of the company is PS Dayah.

Going concern
The financial statements have been prepared on the going-
concern basis. This basis presumes that management 
neither intends to cease trading nor has no realistic alternative 
but to do so.

Compliance with financial reporting standards
The Accéntuate Limited annual financial statements comply 
with International Financial Reporting Standards, the 
Companies Act, the SAICA Financial Reporting Guides and 
the JSE Listings Requirements.

Authorised and issued share capital
During the year under review 344 735 shares were issued. 
The Accéntuate group did not repurchase any Accéntuate 
shares during the year under review. Refer to note 18 of the 
financial statements for further details.
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Independent auditor’s report

To the shareholders of Accéntuate Limited
We have audited the consolidated and separate financial 
statements of Accéntuate Limited set out on pages 40 and 
46 to 93, which comprise the statements of financial position 
as at 30 June 2015, and the statements of comprehensive 
income, statements of changes in equity and statements of 
cash flows for the year then ended, and the notes, comprising 
a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information. 

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated 
financial statements
The company’s directors are responsible for the preparation 
and fair presentation of these consolidated and separate 
financial statements in accordance with International 
Financial Reporting Standards, the SAICA Financial 
Reporting Guides as issued by the Accounting Practices 
Committee, the requirements of the Companies Act of South 
Africa, and for such internal control as the directors determine 
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated and 
separate financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
consolidated and separate financial statements based on 
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require 
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the consolidated and separate financial statements 
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the 
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements 
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. 
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in 
all material respects, the consolidated and separate financial 
position of Accéntuate Limited as at 30 June 2015 and its 
consolidated and separate financial performance and 
consolidated and separate cash flows for the year then 
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards, the SAICA Financial Reporting Guides as 
issued  by the Accounting Practices Committee, and the 
requirements of the Companies Act of South Africa.

Other reports required by the Companies Act 
As part of our audit of the consolidated and separate financial 
statements for the year ended 30 June 2015, we have read 
the directors’ report, the audit and risk committee’s report 
and the company secretary’s certificate for the purpose of 
identifying whether there are material inconsistencies 
between these reports and the audited consolidated and 
separate financial statements. These reports are the 
responsibility of the respective preparers. Based on reading 
these reports we have not identified material inconsistencies 
between these reports and the audited consolidated and 
separate financial statements. However, we have not audited 
these reports and accordingly do not express an opinion on 
these reports.

Mazars (Gauteng) Inc.

Director: Manoj M Manilal
Registered Auditor

22 September 2015
Johannesburg
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for the year ended 30 June 2015

Statement of comprehensive income 

GROUP COMPANY

Note
2015

R’000 
 2014
R’000 

 2015
R’000 

 2014
R’000 

Revenue 1 318 609  308 101 –  – 
Cost of sales (154 138) (147 297) –  – 

Gross profit 164 471  160 804 –  – 
Other income 1 840 1 876 100  132 
Other operating expenses (156 832)  (153 131) (33)  (33) 

Operating profit 2 9 479  9 549 67 99
Finance costs 3 (2 485)  (2 101) –  (31) 

Profit before taxation  6 994  7 448 67 68
Taxation 4 (2 283)  (2 308) –  – 
Share of loss from associate  –  –   

Profit for the year 4 711  5 140 67 68

Other comprehensive income for the year
Amounts not classified to profit or loss:
– Revaluation of land and buildings – 8 746  –
– Tax effect – (3 266)  –

Total comprehensive income attributable to 
owners of the parent 4 711 10 620 67 68

Earnings per share 
– Basic (cents per share) 5 3,97 4,48

– Diluted (cents per share) 5 3,97 4,46
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as at 30 June 2015

Statement of financial position

GROUP COMPANY

Note
2015

R’000 
 2014
R’000 

 2015
R’000 

 2014
R’000 

ASSETS 
Non-current assets 92 468 94 249 70 515
Property, plant and equipment 6 50 845  52 576 – –
Goodwill 7 36 963  36 963 – –
Intangible assets 8 1 816  1 864 – –
Investments in subsidiaries 10 70 798 70 515
Deferred taxation 12 2 844 2 846 – –

Current assets 138 370 147 043 7 291 7 304
Inventories 13 76 280  76 018 – –
Trade and other receivables 14 55 515  54 086 – –
Other financial assets 15 4 530  7 175 2 597 2 597
Taxation receivables 1 875  2 173 4 4
Loans to group companies 16 4 650 4 650
Cash and bank 17 170  7 591 40 53

Total assets 230 838  241 292 78 089 77 819

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share capital 18 136 993  136 710 143 191 142 908
Revaluation reserve 22 406 22 793 – –
Share-based payment reserve 226 37 – –
Accumulated loss (2 063)  (7 161) (78 056) (78 123)

Total equity 157 562 152 379 65 135 64 785

Non-current liabilities 9 354  9 389 – –
Deferred taxation 12 9 354  9 389 – –

Current liabilities 63 922 79 524 12 954 13 034

Trade and other payables 19 35 731 45 612 528 428
Other financial liabilities 20 – 390 – –
Loans from group companies 16 12 426 12 606
Operating lease liabilities 2 387  2 559 – –
Current tax payables 1 236  758 – –
Bank overdraft 17 24 568 30 205 – –

Total liabilities 73 276 88 913 12 954 13 034

Total equity and liabilities 230 838 241 292 78 089 77 819
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Statement of changes in equity

Attributable to equity holders of the parent

 Group
Share

capital
R’000 

Share
premium

R’000 

 Revaluation
reserve

R’000

 Share-based
payment

reserve
R’000

 Accumu-
lated
loss

R’000 

 Total
equity
R’000 

Balance at 30 June 2013  1  126 381 22 215 – (14 047) 134 550
Profit for the year 5 140 5 140
Other comprehensive income for 
the year 5 480 – – 5 480 
Net transfer of reserves (4 902) – 1 746 (3 156)
Shares issued for acquisition of 
assets (note 9) * 10 328 10 328
Share-based payment expense  37 37

Balance at 30 June 2014  1 136 709 22 793 37 (7 161) 152 379
Profit – total comprehensive income 
for the year 4 711 4 711
Transfer of revaluation reserve (387)  387 –
Shares issued for acquisition of 
assets (note 9) * 283 283
Share-based payment expense 189 189

Balance at 30 June 2015  1 136 992 22 406 226 (2 063) 157 562

Note 18 18 

*  Amounts less than R500.

Attributable to equity holders of the parent

Company 
Share

capital
R’000 

Share
premium

R’000 
 Reserves

R’000

 Accumu-
lated
loss

R’000 

 Total
equity
R’000 

Balance at 30 June 2013  1 132 579 – (78 191)  54 389 
Profit for the year 68 68
Other comprehensive income for the year – –
Shares issued for acquisition of assets (note 9) * 10 328 10 328

Balance at 30 June 2014 1 142 907  – (78 123) 64 785
Profit for the year 67 67
Shares issued for acquisition of assets (note 9) * 283 283

Balance at 30 June 2015 1 143 190 – (78 056) 65 135

Note  18 18

*  Amounts less than R500.
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Statement of cash flows

GROUP COMPANY

Note
2015

R’000 
 2014
R’000 

 2015
R’000 

 2014
R’000 

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated by/(used in) operations 23 3 617 (3 624) 167  (49) 
Taxation (paid)/refund 24 (1 539) (904) – 80
Finance costs (2 485) (2 101) – (31)

Net cash from operating activities (407) (6 629) 167 –

Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment 451  155 –  – 
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment for cash (3 673) (3 934) –  – 
Acquisition of intangible assets for cash (196) (95) – –
Payment of loans to group company (180) –
Proceeds from loans to group companies   – 2 823
(Increase) in financial assets – (209) –  – 
Decrease in financial assets 2 041 – – –

Net cash used in investing activities (1 377) (4 083) (180) 2 823

Cash flows from financing activities
(Decrease) in financial liabilities – (2 850) – (2 850)

Net cash (used in)/generated by financing activities – (2 850) – (2 850)

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (1 784) (13 562) (13) (27)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year (22 614) (9 052) 53  80 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 17 (24 398) (22 614) 40  53 
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Accounting policies

1. Reporting entity
  Accéntuate Limited is a company domiciled in the Republic of South Africa. The consolidated financial statements of 

the group as at and for the year ended 30 June 2015 comprise the company and its subsidiaries (together referred to 
as the group and individually as group entities) and the group’s interest in associates. 

2. Basis of preparation
 (a) Statement of compliance
   The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in compliance with the Companies Act of South 

Africa, 2008, International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”), the SAICA Financial Reporting Guides as 
issued by the Accounting Practices Committee, and the JSE Listings Requirements that are relevant to its 
operations and have been effective for the annual reporting period ended 30 June 2015. 

 (b) Basis of measurement
   The consolidated and separate financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for 

the following items, which are measured on an alternative basis on each reporting date:
  Items     Measurement bases
  Financial instruments   Accounted for in terms of IAS 39
  Land and buildings   Revalued in terms of IAS 16

 (c) Significant estimates, judgements and assumptions
   The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make judgements, 

estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, 
income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and 
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the 
basis of making the judgements about carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent 
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

   The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates 
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period 
of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

   In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgements in applying 
accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements 
are also described in the accounting policy notes that follow and the following financial statement notes:

  Note 6 – Plant, property and equipment
  Note 7 – Goodwill
  Note 12 – Deferred taxation
  Note 13 – Inventories
  Note 14 – Trade and other receivables
  Note 15 – Other financial assets
  Note 22 – Share-based payments 

   Further information, assumptions and judgements made in measuring fair values are included in the notes to the 
financial statements specific to that asset or liability.

  Determination of fair values
   Some of the group’s accounting policies and disclosures require the determination of fair value, for both financial 

and non-financial assets and liabilities. When measuring the fair value of an asset or liability, the group uses 
market observable data as far as possible. Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy 
based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

  Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

   Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either 
directly (ie as prices) or indirectly (ie derived from prices).

  Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
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   If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or liability might be categorised in different levels of the 
fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value 
hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement. The group recognises transfers 
between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change has 
occurred. 

   Further information, assumptions and judgements made in measuring fair values are included in the notes to the 
financial statements specific to that asset or liability.

   Fair values have been determined for measurement and/or disclosure purposes based on the following methods: 
  
   IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement
   IFRS 13 establishes a single framework for measuring fair value and making disclosures about fair value 

measurements when such measurements are required or permitted by other IFRS. The standard defines fair 
value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date. It replaces and expands the disclosure requirements 
about fair value measurements in other IFRS, including IFRS 7. 

  Business combinations
   Fair values of all identifiable assets and liabilities included in the business combination are determined by 

reference to market values of those or similar items, where available, or by discounting expected future cash 
flows using the group’s discount rate to present values.

  Consolidation
   In terms of IFRS 10 requirements the group has determined that the share trust is controlled by Accéntuate 

Limited.

  Equity and debt securities
   The fair value of equity and debt securities is determined by reference to their quoted closing bid price at the 

reporting date, or if unquoted, determined using a valuation technique. Valuation techniques employed include 
market multiples and discounted cash flow analysis using expected future cash flows and a market-related 
discount rate. 

  Loans and other receivables
   The fair value of loans and other receivables is estimated at the present value of future cash flows, discounted 

at the market rate of interest at the reporting date. This fair value is determined for disclosure purposes or when 
acquired in a business combination.

  Other liabilities at amortised cost
   Fair value, which is determined for disclosure purposes, is calculated based on the present value of future 

principal and interest cash flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at the reporting date. For finance 
leases the market rate of interest is determined by reference to similar lease agreements.

  Share-based payments
   Fair value of the options is measured using the Black-Scholes option-pricing models where applicable. The 

expected life used in the models has been adjusted, based on management’s best estimate, for the effects of 
non-transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations such as volatility, dividend yield and the 
vesting period. The fair value takes into account the terms and conditions on which these incentives are granted.

  Impairment testing
   The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units and individual assets have been determined based on the 

higher of value-in-use calculations and fair values less costs to sell. These calculations for impairment require 
the use of estimates and assumptions. It is reasonably possible that the revenue growth rates and operating 
margins assumptions may change, which may then impact the estimations made and may then require a 
material adjustment to the carrying amount of goodwill and intangible assets.
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Accounting policies continued

2. Basis of preparation continued
 (c) Significant estimates, judgements and assumptions continued
  Impairment testing continued
   The group reviews and tests the carrying amount of assets when events or changes in circumstances suggest 

that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. In addition, goodwill is tested on an annual basis for 
impairment. Assets are grouped at the lowest level for which identifiable cash flows are largely independent of 
cash flows of other assets and liabilities. If there are indications that impairment may have occurred, estimates 
are prepared of expected future cash flows for each group of assets. Expected future cash flows used to 
determine the value in use of goodwill and intangible assets are inherently uncertain and could materially change 
over time. They are significantly affected by a number of factors including production estimates, supply demand, 
project demands, tender-specific jobs, operating margins and long-term contracts together with economic 
factors such as inflation, interest rates, exchange rates and other industry-specific factors.

  Taxation
   Judgement is required in determining the provision for income taxes due to the complexity of legislation. There 

are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary 
course of business. The group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of 
whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts 
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period 
in which such determination is made.

   The group recognises the net future tax benefit related to deferred income tax assets to the extent that it is 
probable that the deductible temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future. Assessing the 
recoverability of deferred income tax assets requires the group to make significant estimates related to 
expectations of future taxable income. Estimates of future taxable income are based on forecast cash flows 
from operations and the application of existing tax laws in each jurisdiction. To the extent that future cash flows 
and taxable income differ significantly from estimates, the ability of the group to realise the net deferred tax 
assets recorded at the reporting date could be impacted.

  IFRS 12 disclosure
   The group has assessed that the investments in the associate and the share trust are not material in terms of 

IFRS 12 and therefore limited disclosure has been provided (refer notes 10 and 11).

 (d) Subsidiaries
   Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the group. Control is achieved when the group is exposed, or has rights, 

to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its 
power over the investee.

   The group also considers the following facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an 
investee:

  (a) Contractual arrangements.
  (b) Rights arising from contractual arrangements.
  (c) Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

   The group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate changes to the 
elements of control.

 (e) Functional and presentation currency
   These consolidated and separate financial statements are presented in South African rand (“ZAR”), which is the 

company’s functional currency. All financial information presented in rand has been rounded to the nearest 
thousand.

 (f) Going concern
  The consolidated and separate financial statements are prepared on the going-concern basis.
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3. Significant accounting policies
  The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these consolidated 

financial statements. 

 3.1 Presentation of financial statements   
   The presentation of items of other comprehensive income in the statement of comprehensive income is to 

present separately items that would be reclassified to profit or loss. The group has revaluation reserves on land 
and buildings which do not get reclassified through profit and loss.

 3.2 Basis of consolidation
  (a) Business combinations
     The group accounts for business combinations using the acquisition method when control is transferred 

to the group. A business may comprise an entity, group of entities or an unincorporated operation 
including its operating assets and associated liabilities.

     On acquisition date, the consideration transferred is generally measured at fair value, as are the 
identifiable net assets acquired. The consideration transferred is the fair value of the group’s contribution 
to the business combination in the form of assets transferred, shares issued, liabilities assumed or 
contingent consideration at the acquisition date. Any goodwill that arises is tested annually for impairment. 
Any gain on bargain purchase is recognised in profit or loss immediately. Transaction costs are expensed 
as incurred, except if related to the issue of debt or equity securities.

     The consideration does not include amounts related to the settlement of pre-existing relationships. Such 
amounts are generally recognised in profit or loss.

     Any contingent consideration payable is measured at fair value at the acquisition date. If the contingent 
consideration is classified as equity, then it is not remeasured and settlement is accounted for within the 
equity. Otherwise, subsequent changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration are recognised 
in profit or loss.

    If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in 
which the combination occurs, the group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the 
accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement period, or 
additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts and 
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts 
recognised at that date. 

     The measurement period is the period from the date of acquisition to the date the group obtains complete 
information about facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date – and is subject to a 
maximum of one year.

   (i) Non-controlling interest (“NCI”)
     NCI is measured at its proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets at the 

acquisition date. 

     Changes in the group’s interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted 
for as equity transactions.

   (ii) Loss of control
      Upon the loss of control, the group derecognises the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, any 

non-controlling interests and the other components of equity related to the subsidiary. Any 
surplus or deficit arising on the loss of control is recognised in profit or loss.
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Accounting policies continued

3. Significant accounting policies continued
 3.2 Basis of consolidation continued
  (b) Consolidation
    The consolidated financial statements reflect the financial results of the group. All financial results are 

consolidated with similar items on a line-by-line basis except for investments in associates, which are 
included in the group’s results as set out below.

 
    Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-

group transactions, are eliminated. Unrealised gains arising from transactions with equity-accounted 
investees are eliminated against the investment to the extent of the group’s interest in the investee. 
Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is 
no evidence of impairment.

    In respect of associates, unrealised gains and losses are eliminated to the extent of the group’s interest 
in these entities. Unrealised gains and losses arising from transactions with associates are eliminated 
against the investment in the associate.

   (i) Subsidiaries
      Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the group. The group controls an entity when it is exposed 

to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect 
those returns through its power over the entity. The financial results of subsidiaries are consolidated 
into the group’s results from acquisition date until the date of loss of control.

     Investments in subsidiaries in the company’s separate annual financial statements are stated at 
cost less any impairment losses. Transaction costs relating to the acquisition of a subsidiary are 
expensed during the year they occur in profit or loss.

   (ii) Associates
     The group’s interests in equity-accounted investees comprise interests in associates. Associates 

are those entities in which the group has significant influence, but not control, over the financial 
and operating policies. Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method 
(equity-accounted investees) and are recognised initially at cost. The cost of the investment 
includes transaction costs.

     The consolidated financial statements include the group’s share of the profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income of equity-accounted investees, from the date that significant influence 
commences until the date that significant influence ceases. When the group’s share of losses 
exceeds its interest in an equity-accounted investee, the carrying amount of that interest, 
including any long-term investments, is reduced to zero, and the recognition of further losses is 
discontinued except to the extent that the group has an obligation or has made payments on 
behalf of the investee.

   (iii) Acquisition of non-controlling interests
     The recognition of an increase and decrease in ownership interests in subsidiaries without a 

change in control is accounted for as an equity transaction in the consolidated financial 
statements. Accordingly, any premium or discount on subsequent purchases of an equity 
instrument from the non-controlling interest is recognised directly in the parent shareholders’ 
equity.

 3.3 Foreign currency translation
   Items included in the financial results of each entity are measured using the functional currency of that entity. 

  (a) Foreign currency transactions
    Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of group 

companies at exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

    Foreign currency gains and losses are recognised in profit and loss in the period in which they are 
incurred.
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3. Significant accounting policies continued
 3.4 Financial instruments
   All financial instruments are measured at fair value upon initial recognition when the group becomes party to the 

contractual terms of the instruments. Initial recognition of financial instruments other than those carried at fair 
value through profit and loss includes transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, these instruments are 
measured as follows:

  (a) Financial assets
    The group’s financial assets are loans, trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, and 

investments.

   Loans and receivables
    Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an 

active market. Such assets are recognised initially at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction 
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest method, less any impairment losses. 

    Appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts are recognised in profit or loss when there 
is objective evidence that the asset is impaired. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability 
that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments 
(more than 60 days overdue) are considered indicators that the trade receivable is impaired. The 
allowance recognised is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the 
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate computed at initial 
recognition.

   Loans and receivables
    The carrying amount of trade and other receivables is reduced through the use of an allowance account, 

and the amount of the loss is recognised in profit or loss within operating expenses. When a trade 
receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account for trade receivables. Subsequent 
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against operating expenses in profit or loss.

    Loans and receivables comprise loans, trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, and other 
receivables.

    For all financial instruments carried at amortised cost where the effects of time value of money are not 
considered to be material, the instruments are not discounted as their face values approximate their 
amortised cost.

   Cash and cash equivalents
    Subsequent to initial recognition, cash and cash equivalents are measured at amortised cost. For 

statement of cash flow purposes, bank overdrafts are offset against cash and cash equivalents. Cash 
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and deposits held on call with banks.

  (b) Financial liabilities
    The group’s financial liabilities are classified as financial liabilities at amortised cost. These liabilities 

consist of trade and other payables, loans, interest-bearing borrowings and non-interest-bearing 
borrowings.

   Trade and other payables
   All trade and other payables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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Accounting policies continued

3. Significant accounting policies continued
 3.4 Financial instruments continued
  (b) Financial liabilities continued
   Interest-bearing borrowings
    Interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any difference between cost and 

redemption value being recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings on an effective 
interest basis.

   Non-interest-bearing borrowings
   Non-interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost.

    For all financial instruments carried at amortised cost, where the effects of time value of money are not 
considered to be material, the instruments are not discounted as their face values approximate their 
amortised cost.

  (c) Derecognition of financial instruments
    Financial assets are derecognised if the group’s contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial 

assets expire, or if the group transfers the financial assets to another party without retaining control or 
substantially all risks and rewards of the asset.

    Financial liabilities are derecognised if the group’s obligations specified in the contract expire or are 
discharged or cancelled.

 3.5 Financial liabilities and equity instruments
  Classification as debt or equity
   Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in 

accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements, and the definitions of a financial liability and an 
equity instrument.

  Equity instruments
   An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting 

all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the group are recognised as the proceeds received, net of direct 
issue costs.

 3.6 Share capital
  Ordinary shares
   Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares are 

recognised as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.

  Repurchase, disposal and reissue of share capital (treasury shares)
   When share capital recognised as equity is repurchased, the amount of the consideration paid, which includes 

directly attributable costs, net of any tax effects, is recognised as a deduction from equity. Repurchased shares 
are classified as treasury shares. When treasury shares are sold or reissued subsequently, the amount received 
is recognised as an increase in equity, and the resulting surplus or deficit on the transaction is presented in share 
premium.

 3.7 Dividends
  Dividends are recognised as a liability in the period in which they are declared.
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3. Significant accounting policies continued
 3.8 Property, plant and equipment
  Owned assets
   Items of property, plant and equipment, except for land and buildings, are measured at cost less accumulated 

depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

   Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-constructed 
assets includes the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the assets 
to a working condition for their intended use, and the costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring 
the site on which they are located.

   The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined by comparing the 
proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of the property, plant and equipment, and is recognised net 
within other income/other expenses in profit or loss.

  Leased assets
   Leases in terms of which the group assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified 

as finance leases. Upon initial recognition, the leased asset is measured at an amount equal to the lower of its 
fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments. Subsequent to initial recognition, the asset is 
accounted for in the same manner as owned items of property, plant and equipment.

   Other leases are operating leases and the leased assets are not recognised in the group’s statement of financial 
position.

  Subsequent costs
   The group recognises in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment, the cost of replacing 

part of such an item when that cost is incurred, when it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied 
with the part will flow to the group and if its cost can be measured reliably, the carrying amount of the replaced 
part is derecognised. The costs of day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised in profit 
or loss as incurred.

  Revaluation
   Revaluation is performed every three years on land and buildings such that the carrying amount does not differ 

materially from that which would be determined using fair value at the end of the reporting period.

   The income approach (discounted cash flows) is used to determine the fair value of the property, when the 
property is recovered principally through use. Refer to note 6 which describes the detail relating to the income 
approach valuation method. 

   When an item of property, plant and equipment is revalued, any accumulated depreciation at the date of the 
revaluation is restated proportionately with the change in the gross carrying amount of the asset so that the 
carrying amount of the asset after revaluation equals its revalued amount.

   Any increase in an asset’s carrying amount, as a result of a revaluation, is recognised to other comprehensive 
income and accumulated in the revaluation surplus in equity. Any decrease is recognised in other comprehensive 
income to the extent of any credit balance existing in the revaluation surplus in respect of that asset. The 
decrease recognised in other comprehensive income reduces the amount accumulated in the revaluation 
surplus in equity.
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   The revaluation surplus in equity related to a specific item of property, plant and equipment is transferred directly 
to retained earnings as the asset is used. The amount transferred is equal to the difference between depreciation 
based on the revalued carrying amount and depreciation based on the original cost of the asset.

3. Significant accounting policies continued
 3.8 Property, plant and equipment continued
  Depreciation
  Depreciation is based on the cost of an asset less its residual value.

   Depreciation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each 
component of an item of property, plant and equipment. Leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the 
lease term and the useful life of the asset. If it is reasonably certain that the group will obtain ownership by the 
end of the lease term, the asset is then depreciated over the useful life of the asset.

   The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative years are as follows:
  

Item Average useful life

Land Indefinite
Buildings 40 years
Leasehold improvements Shorter of useful life or term of lease
Plant and machinery 5 to 12 years
Furniture and fixtures 8 to 10 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Office equipment 5 to 10 years
IT equipment 3 to 5 years

   The residual value, useful life and depreciation methods for each asset are reviewed at the end of each financial 
year and adjusted if appropriate. Land is not depreciated.

   Assets under construction are not depreciated and only depreciated when they are available for use. The 
estimation of the useful lives of property, plant and equipment is based on historic performance, as well as 
expectations about future use and therefore requires a significant degree of judgement to be applied by 
management. These depreciation rates represent management’s current best estimate of the useful lives of the 
assets.

   The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in profit 
or loss when the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, 
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying 
amount of the item.

 3.9 Goodwill
   For the measurement of goodwill at initial recognition, refer to accounting policy note 3.2 (a).

   Goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. On disposal of the relevant cash-
generating unit, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the profit or loss on 
disposal. Impairments on goodwill are not reversed subsequently. 

 3.10 Intangible assets
   Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.

   The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed at the end of each 
financial year and adjusted if appropriate. Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a 
straight-line basis, over the finite useful life of the asset.
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3. Significant accounting policies continued
 3.10 Intangible assets continued
   Amortisation methods and remaining useful lives are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and 

adjusted if appropriate. The amortisation of intangible assets is included in other operating expenses in profit or 
loss.

   The estimation of the useful lives of intangible assets is based on historic performance, as well as expectations 
about future use and therefore requires a significant degree of judgement to be applied by management. These 
rates represent management’s best estimate of the useful lives of these assets.

 3.11 Inventories
   Inventories are measured at the lower of cost or net realisable value. The cost of inventories comprises all costs 

of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location 
and condition. The cost includes transport and handling costs, but excludes interest charges. 

  Costs are determined on the following bases: 
■■ Raw materials are valued on a first in, first out (“FIFO”) basis. 
■■ Work in progress and finished goods are valued on the weighted average basis.
■■ Manufactured finished goods are valued on a weighted average basis. 
■■ Purchased finished goods are valued on a FIFO basis. 

   Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of 
completion and selling expenses. Write-downs to net realisable value and inventory losses are expensed in the 
period in which the write-downs or losses occur. 

   The amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories, arising from an increase in net realisable value, is 
recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the 
reversal occurs. The amount of the reversal of the inventory write-down is limited to the carrying amount of the 
inventory had no write-down been recognised initially.

 3.12 Impairment
  (a) Financial assets
    A financial asset is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any objective evidence 

that it is impaired. A financial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that one 
or more events have had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset.

    An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the 
difference between its carrying amount, and the present value of the estimated future cash flows 
discounted at the original effective interest rate. 

    Individually significant financial assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis. The remaining 
financial assets are assessed collectively in groups that share similar credit risk characteristics.

    An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be related objectively to an event occurring after the 
impairment loss was recognised. For financial assets measured at amortised cost the reversal is 
recognised in profit or loss.

  (b) Non-financial assets
    The carrying amounts of the group’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, 

are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any 
such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

   Goodwill is tested for impairment in terms of IAS 36 at least annually. 
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3. Significant accounting policies continued
 3.12 Impairment continued
  (b) Non-financial assets continued
    The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair 

value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their 
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of 
money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped 
together into the smallest groups of assets that generate cash inflows from continuing use that are 
largely independent of the cash flows of other assets or groups of assets (the “cash-generating unit”). 
The goodwill acquired in a business combination, for the purpose of impairment testing, is allocated to 
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

    An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset, or its cash-generating unit, 
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised through profit and loss.

    Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce the 
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to cash-generating units (group of units) and then, to reduce 
the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit (group of units) on a pro rata basis.

    The recoverable amount of the group’s non-financial assets carried at amortised cost is calculated as the 
present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate (ie the 
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition of these financial assets).

    The recoverable amount of other assets is the greater of their fair value less costs to sell and value in use. 
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a 
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks 
specific to the asset. For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the 
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

   An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

    In respect of other assets, impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting 
date for any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if 
there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.

    An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the 
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment 
loss had been recognised.

 3.13 Provisions
   A provision is recognised in the statement of financial position when the group has a present legal or constructive 

obligation, that can be estimated reliably, as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of 
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. If the effect is material, provisions are determined by 
discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time 
value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.

   The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present 
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the 
obligation. 
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 3.14 Income tax
  (a) Income tax expense
    Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax is recognised in 

profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination, or items recognised directly 
in equity or in other comprehensive income.

    Current tax and deferred taxes are charged or credited directly to equity or other comprehensive income 
if the tax relates to items that are credited or charged, in the same or a different period, directly to equity 
or in other comprehensive income.

  (b) Current taxation
    Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using 

tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in 
respect of previous years.

    Current tax for current and prior periods is, to the extent unpaid, recognised as a liability. If the amount 
already paid in respect of current and prior periods exceeds the amount due for those periods, the 
excess is recognised as an asset.

  (c) Deferred taxation
    Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and 

liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable 
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax 
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable 
that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. 
Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill 
or from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a 
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit/loss nor the accounting profit/loss.

    Deferred tax liabilities are not recognised for taxable temporary differences associated with investments 
in subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the group is able to control 
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse 
in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated 
with such investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be 
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are 
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

    The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced 
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part 
of the asset to be recovered.

    Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period 
in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been 
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax 
liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the group 
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and 
liabilities.

    Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax 
assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation 
authority, and the group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

 3.15 Revenue
   Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sales of goods and the 

rendering of services in the ordinary course of the group’s activities. Revenue is shown net of indirect taxes, 
estimated returns, rebates and trade discounts and after eliminating sales within the group. 
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3. Significant accounting policies continued
 3.15 Revenue continued
  Goods sold and services rendered
   Revenue from sale of goods and rendering of services is recognised when it is probable that the economic 

benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the group and the amount of revenue, and associated costs 
incurred or to be incurred, can be measured reliably. The amount of revenue is not considered to be reliably 
measurable until all contingencies relating to the sale have been resolved.

  (a) Sale of goods
    Revenue from sale of goods is recognised in profit and loss when a significant portion of the risks and 

rewards of ownership have been transferred to the third party and the group no longer retains managerial 
involvement or control over the goods.

  (b) Rental income
    Rental income from subleased property is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease 

in line with IAS 17.

  (c) Interest received
   Interest is recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest rate method.

  (d) Dividends received
    Dividends are recognised in profit or loss when the company’s right to receive payment has been 

established.

 3.16 Employee benefits
  Short-term employee benefits
   The cost of short-term employee benefits is recognised in the period in which the service is rendered and is not 

discounted.

   The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employees render services 
that increase their entitlement, or in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absence occurs.

   The expected cost of profit sharing and bonus payments is recognised as an expense when there is a legal or 
constructive obligation to make such payments as a result of past performance.

  Defined contribution plans
   Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are charged as an expense as related service is 

rendered. The plan is governed by the Pension Funds Act.

  Share-based payments
   The group issues equity-settled share options to its executive employees and management. The fair value of 

options granted is recognised as an expense with a corresponding increase in equity or a liability if the options 
were acquired in a cash-settled share-based payment transaction. The fair value is measured at grant date and 
is spread over the period during which the employees become unconditionally entitled to the option. Fair value 
is measured using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model taking into account the term and conditions upon 
which the options were granted. The group revises at each reporting date its estimate of the number of options 
that are expected to vest based on the non-market vesting conditions. The impact of the revision to original 
estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

   The group issues cash-settled share options to its group employees. The fair value of options granted is 
recognised as an expense with a corresponding increase in liability. The fair value is measured at grant date and 
is spread over the period during which the employees become unconditionally entitled to payment. The fair 
value of the share options is measured based on the Black-Scholes option-pricing model, taking into account 
the terms and conditions upon which the options were granted. Any changes in fair value of the liability are 
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income or profit/loss. The fair value of the obligation is assessed 
at each reporting date.
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 3.16 Employee benefits continued
  Share-based payments continued
   Share-based payments granted that do not vest until the counterparty completes a specified period of service, 

are accounted for as the services rendered by the counterparty.

   The key assumptions for staff turnover per annum, early-exercise multiple, risk-free rate, share price volatility 
and dividend yield are based on management’s best estimate at the date of valuation.

  Refer to note 22 of the financial statements for further details.

 3.17 Expenses
  Lease payments
  Operating lease payments
   Payments made under operating leases are recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of 

the lease. 

 3.18 Investment income and finance costs
   Finance income comprises interest income on funds invested and dividend income and are recognised in profit 

and loss using the effective interest method in the period in which they are received.

   Finance costs comprise interest expense on borrowings, finance leases and bank overdrafts and are recognised 
in profit and loss in the period in which they are incurred.

 3.19 Earnings per share and headline earnings per share
  (a) Earnings per share 
    The group presents basic and diluted earnings per share data for its ordinary shares. Basic earnings per 

share is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the group by the 
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year, adjusted for own shares held. 
Diluted earnings per share is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders 
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding, adjusted for own shares held and for 
the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

  (b) Headline earnings per share
    Headline earnings per share is calculated as per the rules set out in Circular 2/2013 – Headline Earnings.

 3.20 Segment reporting
   An operating segment is a component of the group that engages in business activities from which it may earn 

revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the 
group’s other components. All operating segments’ operating results are reviewed regularly by the group’s 
executive committee to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and to assess its 
performance, and for which discrete financial information is available.

   Segment results that are reported to the group executive committee include items directly attributable to a 
segment, as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items comprise mainly 
corporate assets, head office expenses, and income tax assets and liabilities.

   Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the year to acquire property, plant and equipment, 
and intangible assets other than goodwill.
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4. New standards and interpretations
 4.1 Standards and interpretations in issue not yet effective
   At the date of the authorisation of these financial statements, the following standards and interpretations that 

may be expected to impact the group were in issue but not effective: 

  IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards  
■■ Amendment: Transition provision to paragraph 44AA of IFRS 7 may be applied. Effective annual periods 

beginning on or after 1 January 2016.
     
  IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations

■■ Amendment: Changes in methods of “disposal”, now includes “distributions to owners”. Effective annual 
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016 (prospectively).       

  IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures
■■ Amendments: Guidance is now given regarding continuing involvement extended to include servicing 

equipment. Effective annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016.    
■■ Amendments: Disclosure requirements for transferred assets:

– that are not derecognised in their entirety; and
– that are derecognised but have continuing managerial involvement at yearend. Effective annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2016 (prospectively).

■■  Clarity: Offsetting disclosures are not specifically required for all interim periods, when its inclusion would be 
required in accordance with the general requirements of IAS 34. Effective annual periods beginning on or 
after 1 January 2016.

  IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
■■ New standard that replaces IAS 39. The standard incorporates classification and measurement requirements 

that are driven by cash flow characteristics and the group business model. Financial instruments are classified 
into one of three classes: amortised cost, fair value through profit or loss and fair value through other 
comprehensive income. The standard also incorporates a forward looking “expected loss” impairment. 
Hedge accounting has been substantially modified and is more aligned with risk management activities. 
Effective annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.   

  IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements 
■■ Amendment: Accounting for a gain/loss on a disposal of a subsidiary to an associate or joint venture which 

is accounted for under the equity method. Effective annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016 
(prospectively).

■■ Clarification: Application of the exemption from preparing consolidated financial statements of an investment 
entity. Effective annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016 (prospectively).

  
  IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

■■ Amendment: Requires the acquirer of an interest in a joint operation in which the activity constitutes a 
business (as defined in IFRS 3) to apply all of the principles and disclosure requirements for business 
combinations in IFRS 3 and other IFRS, except where those principles conflict with the guidance of IFRS 11. 
Effective annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016 (prospectively).

  IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
■■ Clarification: Disclosures required for investment entities that are fair valued. Effective annual periods 

beginning on or after 1 January 2016.

  IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 
■■ New standard that establishes a single, comprehensive and robust framework for the recognition, 

measurement and disclosure of revenue. Effective annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 
(prospectively).    

■■ New standard that establishes a single, comprehensive and robust framework for the recognition, 
measurement and disclosure of revenue. Effective annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 
(transition provisions apply).
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  IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements       
■■ Amendment: As part of a major initiative to improve presentation and disclosure in financial reports, designed 

to further encourage companies to apply professional judgement in determining what information to disclose 
in their financial statements. Such as the following:

■■ Materiality consideration.
■■ Line items in the statement of financial position and statement of comprehensive income can be aggregated 

or disaggregated as relevant.
■■ Examples added to show how notes can be ordered to help understandability and comparability. 
■■ Effective annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016.

  IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment        
■■ Clarification: A depreciation method based on revenue is not appropriate. Effective annual periods beginning 

on or after 1 January 2016 (prospectively).       
■■ Amendment: Defines bearer plants and includes them within the scope of IAS 16. Effective annual periods 

beginning on or after 1 January 2016.

  IAS 19 Employee benefits         
■■ Amendment: Discount rate used in actuarial assumptions for currencies for which there is no deep market in 

high-quality corporate bonds, the market yields (at the end of the reporting period) on government bonds 
denominated in that currency must be used. Effective annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016  
(as early as possible).

  IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements
■■ Amendment: Reinstating the equity method as an accounting option for investments in subsidiaries, joint 

ventures and associates in an entity’s separate financial statements. Effective annual periods beginning on or 
after 1 January 2016.

  IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures      
■■ Amendment: Included accounting for a gain/loss on a disposal of a subsidiary to an associate or joint venture 

which is accounted for under the equity method. Effective annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 
2016.

■■ Clarification: When applying the equity method to an associate or a joint venture, a non-investment entity 
investor in an investment entity may retain the fair value measurement applied by the associate or joint 
venture to its interests in subsidiaries. Effective annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. 

  IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting     
■■ Amendment: Certain disclosures shall be given either in the interim financial statements or incorporated by 

cross-reference to another statement on the same terms and at the same time which is available to all users. 
Effective annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016.

  IAS 38 Intangible assets
■■ Amendment: Includes a rebuttable presumption that an amortisation method that is based on revenue is 

inappropriate. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016 (prospectively).

   The group is considering what the impact of these new standards on the group and company will be. All 
standards and interpretations applicable to the entity will be adopted at their effective dates.   
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Notes to the annual financial statements

GROUP COMPANY

2015
R’000 

 2014
R’000 

 2015
R’000 

 2014
R’000 

1. Revenue
Sale of goods 318 609 308 101 – –

2. Operating profit 
Operating profit for the year is stated after accounting for 
the following:  
Amortisation 244 262 – –
Depreciation 4 955 6 262 – –
Foreign exchange (gain)/loss (83) 181 – –
Fair value adjustment on financial liabilities (107) – – –
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment (2) (30) –
Operating lease rentals 15 467 14 745 – –
– Premises 10 038 9 416 –
– Equipment 859 834 – –
– Motor vehicles 4 570 4 495 – –

Employee costs 64 983 61 018 – –

Auditors’ remuneration  – –

– Audit services 775 867 – –
– Other services 3 12 – –

3. Finance costs
Bank 2 476 1 982 – –
Financial liabilities – 86 – 31
Other interest paid 9 33 – –

2 485 2 101 – 31

4. Taxation
South African normal tax
– Current year 2 315 926 – –
Deferred taxation
– Temporary differences (32) 1 382 – –

2 283 2 308 – –

Reconciliation of rate of taxation  %  %  % 
South African normal tax rate 28,00  28,00  28,00  28,00 
Non-taxable income (0,14) (0,04)
Non-deductible expenses 2,97 2,78 –
Utilised tax losses (0,05) – – –
Assessed losses not recognised 1,86 0,25 (28,00) (28,00)

Effective rate 32,64 30,99 0 0

Refer to note 12 for details on the assessed losses not 
recognised.



67Accéntuate I integrated annual report 2015

GROUP

2015
cents

 2014
cents

5. Earnings and value per share
Earnings per share 3,97 4,48
Diluted earnings per share 3,97 4,46
Headline earnings per share 3,97 4,46
Diluted headline earnings per share 3,97 4,45
Normalised earnings per share 5,07 4,00
Diluted normalised earnings per share 5,07 3,98
Net asset value per share 127 123
Tangible net asset value per share 96 92

5.1 Earnings/headline earnings 
Profit for the year used in the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share 4 711  5 140 

Headline earnings attributable to ordinary shareholders 4 710 5 118

 Gross 
R’000

 Tax 
R’000

 Net 
R’000

5.2 Reconciliation between earnings and headline earnings

2015
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders 4 711
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment (2) 1 (1)

Headline earnings attributable to ordinary shareholders 4 710

2014
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders 5 140
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment (30) 8 (22)

Headline earnings attributable to ordinary shareholders 5 118

5.3 Reconciliation between headline earnings and normalised earnings

2015
Headline earnings attributable to ordinary shareholders (note 5.2) 4 710
Adjustment for directors’ fees if paid in correct period 1 809 (507) 1 302

Normalised earnings 6 012

2014
Headline earnings attributable to ordinary shareholders 5 118
Adjustment for directors’ fees if paid in correct period (739) 207 (532)

Normalised earnings 4 586

2015
Shares

 2014
Shares

5.4 Weighted average number of shares and diluted weighted average 
number of shares 
Weighted average number of shares 118 628 531 114 635 975
Diluted weighted average number of shares 118 628 531 115 111 585
Total shares in issue 124 048 757 123 704 022
Reconciliation between the number of shares used for earnings per share and 
diluted earnings per share 
Number of shares used for earnings per share 118 628 531 114 635 975
Shares to be issued for acquisitions – 475 610

Number of shares used for diluted earnings per share 118 628 531 115 111 585
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6. Property, plant and equipment
2015 2014

Cost/
valuation

R’000 

Accumu-
lated

depreciation
R’000

Carrying
amount

R’000 

 Cost/
valuation

R’000

 Accumu-
lated

depreciation
R’000 

 Carrying
amount

R’000 

Group
Land 10 000  – 10 000 10 000 – 10 000
Buildings 28 439 (743) 27 696 27 700 – 27 700
Leasehold property 4 684 (2 814) 1 870 4 337 (2 440) 1 897
Plant and machinery 22 610 (14 365) 8 245 20 605 (12 627) 7 978
Furniture and fixtures 3 481 (2 622) 859 3 478 (2 355) 1 123
Motor vehicles 949 (468) 481 1 101 (365) 736
Office equipment 3 526 (2 751) 775 3 112 (2 281) 831
IT equipment 3 831 (3 226) 605 3 546 (2 443) 1 103
Assets under construction 314 – 314 1 208 – 1 208

77 834 (26 989) 50 845 75 087 (22 511) 52 576

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment

Opening
balance

R’000 
Additions

R’000

Revalua-
tion

R’000 
 Disposals

R’000
 Transfers

R’000

 Deprecia-
tion

R’000 

 Closing
balance

R’000 

Group – 2015
Land 10 000 – – – – 10 000
Buildings 27 700 739 – – (743) 27 696
Leasehold property 1 897 347 – – (373) 1 871
Plant and machinery 7 978 1 538 (316) 1 208 (2 144) 8 264
Furniture and fixtures 1 123 3 – – (286) 840
Motor vehicles 736 29 (129) – (155) 481
Office equipment 831 414 – – (471) 774
IT equipment 1 103 289 (4) – (783) 605
Assets under construction 1 208 314 – (1 208) – 314

52 576 3 673 (449) – (4 955) 50 845

Group – 2014
Land  5 000 – 5 000 – – 10 000
Buildings  24 484 165 3 746 – (695) 27 700
Leasehold property  2 117 195 – (415) 1 897
Plant and machinery 9 714 1 443 – (3 179) 7 978
Furniture and fixtures  1 574 13 – (464) 1 123
Motor vehicles  336 707 (64) (243) 736
Office equipment  540 737 (1) (445) 831
IT equipment  1 121 863 (60) (821) 1 103
Assets under construction  416 792 – – 1 208

 45 302 4 915* 8 746  (125) (6 262) 52 576

* Additions to property, plant and equipment include R981 000 of additions resulting from the acquisition of businesses (refer note 9).
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6. Property, plant and equipment continued
The estimation of the useful lives of property, plant and equipment is based on historic performance, as well as 
expectations about future use and therefore requires a significant degree of judgement to be applied by management. 
These depreciation rates represent management’s current best estimate of the useful lives of the assets. 

Revaluations 
Land and buildings are revalued independently every three years or if any indicators of impairment exists, as per the 
group policy.

The effective date of the latest valuation was 1 June 2014. Revaluations were performed by independent professional 
valuer, Valuation Network Property Valuers and Consultants. Valuation Network is not connected to the group. The fair 
value measurement for the property has been categorised as a level 3 fair value based on the inputs to the valuation 
technique used.

Valuation techniques and significant unobservable inputs 
The following table shows the valuation technique used in measuring the fair value of investment property, as well as 
significant unobservable inputs used: 

Valuation technique
Significant unobservable 
inputs

Inter-relationship 
between key 
unobservable inputs

Net income capitalisation approach: The estimated fair value 
would increase 
(decrease) if: 

The net income capitalisation method of valuation was 
used to determine the value of this property:

Market rentals of R25/sqm 
– R35/sqm (unchanged 
from 2014)

Expected market rental per 
square metre were higher 
(lower)

This method determines the net normalised annual 
income of the property, assuming the property is fully let 
at market-related rentals, and market escalations. 

Vacancy rate 3% (2014: 
3%) 

The vacancy rate were 
(higher) lower 

Market-related operating expenses incurred are 
deducted, resulting in a net annual income which is then 
capitalised at a market-related rate. 

Expenditure rate 30.98% 
(2014: 30.98%)   
  

The expenditure rate were 
(higher) lower   
  

The capitalisation rate is determined from the market (ie 
the rate at which similar assets have traded recently), 
and is influenced by: rates of return of similar properties, 
risk, obsolescence, inflation, market rental growth rates, 
rates of return on other investments, as well as prevailing 
mortgage rates. 

Capitalisation rate 11% 
(2014: 11%)   
  

The risk-adjusted discount 
rate were lower (higher)  
   

Management estimates that the carrying amount of the land and buildings at year end approximates their fair value 
and that no impairment indicators were present at year end suggesting otherwise.

The carrying amount of the revalued assets under the cost model would have been:

Group

2015
R’000

 2014
R’000

Land 998 998
Buildings 6 742 6 223

7 740 7 221

A register containing the information required by Regulation 25(3) of the Companies Regulations, 2011, is maintained 
at the registered office of the company.
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7. Goodwill GROUP
2015 2014

Cost
R’000 

Accumu-
lated

impairment
R’000

Carrying
amount

R’000 

 Cost
valuation

R’000

 Accumu-
lated

impairment
R’000 

 Carrying
value

R’000 

Group 36 963 – 36 963 36 963 – 36 963

Reconciliation of goodwill

2015 2014

Opening
balance

R’000 

Additions/
impairments

R’000

Closing
balance

R’000 

 Opening
balance

R’000

 Additions
through

business
combina-

tions
R’000 

 Closing
balance

R’000 

Group 36 963 – 36 963 34 928 2 035 36 963

Goodwill is reviewed annually at each reporting date for impairment, or more frequently when there are indicators that 
impairment may have occurred, by comparing the carrying amount to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are 
included in other operating expenses in profit or loss.

Key assumptions used in impairment testing for goodwill impaired in the current period 
The cash-generating capabilities of all cash-generating units (“CGUs”) were determined by discounting the expected 
future cash flows.

The recoverable amount of each operation’s goodwill is based on value-in-use calculations. The calculations are based 
upon discounting expected pre-tax cash flows at a risk adjusted interest rate appropriate to the CGU, the determination 
of both of which requires the exercise of judgement. The estimation of pre-tax cash flows is sensitive to the periods for 
which forecasts are available and to assumptions regarding the long-term sustainable cash flows. While forecasts are 
compared with actual performance and external economic data, expected cash flows naturally reflect management’s 
view of future performance.

The cash flow projections were based on the approved budgeted 2016 results, growth for a further three years thereafter 
and a reasonable growth rate is applied thereafter based on current market conditions. In assessing future cash flows, 
management has considered the assumptions relating to the sustainable growth, market opportunities, as well as 
changes to the cost structures based on business plans.

The discount rates used in the discounted cash flow models are calculated using the principles of the capital asset 
pricing model, taking into account the current market conditions.

A pre-tax weighted average cost-of-capital rate that ranges between 18,5% and 19,5% per annum was used in 
discounting the projected cash flows. Growth rates applied for the three-year period beyond the 2016 budget was 5% 
(2014: 5%). Perpetuity growth rates applied was 4,5% (2014: 4,5%). The growth rate does not exceed the long-term 
average growth rate for the markets in which the entity operates and is consistent with the long-term average of the 
industry.

The values assigned to the key assumptions represent management’s assessment of future trends in the industry and 
are based on both external sources and internal sources (historical data).
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7. Goodwill continued
Goodwill allocation
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to the group’s subsidiaries or group of subsidiaries which 
are each considered to be a CGU and represent the lowest level within the group at which the goodwill is monitored for 
internal management purposes.

A CGU is the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash 
inflows from other assets or group of assets. The aggregate goodwill allocated to each CGU is as follows:

Cost
R’000 

Additions
through

business
combinations

R’000 

 Accumu-
lated

impairment
R’000

 Carrying
value
R’000 

2015
FloorworX CGU 13 462 – – 13 462
Safic CGU 23 501 – – 23 501

36 963 – – 36 963

2014
FloorworX CGU 12 162 1 300 – 13 462
Safic CGU 22 766 735 – 23 501

34 928 2 035 – 36 963
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8. Intangible assets GROUP
2015 2014

Cost
R’000 

Accumu-
lated

amortisation
and

impairment
R’000

Carrying
value
R’000 

 Cost
R’000

 Accumu-
lated

amortisation
and

impairment
R’000 

 Carrying
value

R’000 

Group

Computer software 577 (526) 51  577  (441)  136 
Patents, trademarks and 
other intangibles 2 307 (542) 1 765  2 111  (383)  1 728 

2 884 (1 068) 1 816 2 688  (824)  1 864 

Reconciliation of intangible assets

Opening
balance

R’000 

Additions
through

business
combina-

tions
R’000

Additions
R’000 

 Amortisation
R’000

 Closing 
balance

R’000 

Group
2015
Computer software 136 – – (85) 51
Patents, trademarks and 
other intangibles 1 728 – 196 (159) 1 765

1 864 – 196 (244) 1 816

2014
Computer software  193 –  95 (152)  136 
Patents, trademarks and 
other intangibles  338 1 500 – (110)  1 728 

 531  1 500 95  (262)  1 864 

The current remaining useful life of the intangible assets is estimated to be as follows:

2015
Years

 2014
Years

Computer software 1 – 5 2 – 5
Patents, trademarks and other intangibles 3 – 15 3 – 15
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9. Business combinations
2014
On 1 September 2013, the group, through its subsidiaries Safic (Pty) Limited and FloorworX Africa (Pty) Limited, 
acquired certain of the assets and liabilities of Degrachem (Pty) Limited and Suntups Wooden Flooring (Pty) Limited. The 
Degrachem business acquired is principally involved in the supply of speciality metal treatment products and the 
Suntups business acquired is principally involved in the supply of engineered wooden flooring and decking products.

In the 10 months to 30 June 2014, Suntups and Degrachem contributed revenue of R20,8 million and operating profit 
of R1,457 million to the group’s results. If the acquisitions had occurred on 1 July 2013, management estimates that 
Suntups and Degrachem would have contributed R25 million revenue and R1,75 million operating profit to the group.

Goodwill and intangible assets arising from the acquisitions consist largely of the synergies and economies of scale 
expected from combining the operations of the entities, know-how and market knowledge of management, a well-
established customer base, formulae for manufacturing some complex and unique products, and certain agency and 
distribution agreements.

All the assets and liabilities acquired were assessed at the acquisition date for fair value. There were warranties which 
resulted in an adjustment to the purchase price for current assets not recovered within six months of the acquisitions.

Recognised fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed 

 Degrachem 
R’000

 Suntups 
R’000

 Recognised
values on

 acquisition
R’000

Property, plant and equipment  667 314 981
Trade and other receivables 785 243 1 028
Inventory 303 6 284 6 587
Trade and other payables  (656) (336) (992)

Net identifiable assets and liabilities 1 099 6 505 7 604
Goodwill on acquisition 735  1 300 2 035
Intangible assets 1 500 – 1 500
Deferred tax (420) – (420)

Total consideration 2 914 7 805 10 719

Consideration settled by issue of shares 2 914 7 805 10 719

There was a contingent consideration of R390 000 at 30 June 2014, dependent on the profit achieved by Degrachem 
up to 31 August 2014.

The warranted profits were not completely achieved. This resulted in a R107 000 fair value adjustment to the financial 
liability reported at 30 June 2014 after final settlement of R283 000 by the issue of shares at 82 cents each.
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10. Investments in subsidiaries COMPANY

%
holding

2015 

 %
holding

2014

 Carrying
amount

2015
R’000 

 Carrying
amount

2014
R’000 

Safic (Pty) Limited 100  100 21 651 21 368
FloorworX Africa (Pty) Limited 100  100 49 147 49 147
Accéntuate Management Services (Pty) Limited 100  100  *  * 
Empowerment Financial Investment Company 
(Pty) Limited 100  100  *  * 
Glassace 12 (Pty) Limited (formerly CGA Fenestration 
(Pty) Limited) 100  100  *  * 
Safic Environmental Services (Pty) Limited 100  100  *  * 
Structworx (Pty) Limited 100  100  *  * 
Accéntuate Limited Share Trust    *  * 

70 798  70 515 

All above companies are registered and operate in South Africa.
*Amount less than R500.

11. Investment in associate GROUP

Listed/
unlisted

%
holding

2015 

 %
holding

2014

 Carrying
amount

2015
R’000 

 Carrying
amount

2014
R’000 

Ion Exchange Safic (Pty) Limited Unlisted 40  40 – –

The investment in Ion Exchange Safic is equity accounted for as an associated company in line with the group 
accounting policy. The group has written down the investment in this associate to nil.

Net share of accumulated losses is R1 324 000 (2014: R588 000).
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GROUP COMPANY

 2015 
 R’000

 2014 
 R’000

 2015 
 R’000

 2014 
 R’000

12. Deferred taxation
Represented by:
Provision for doubtful debts 185 55
Provision for obsolete inventory 110 82
Leave pay accrued 746 305
Employee cost accruals/provisions 894 544
Operating lease accrual 668 717
Tax losses 1 492 1 143 – –
Accelerated allowances (3 789) (2 543)
Revaluation (6 816) (6 846)

(6 510) (6 543) – –

Represented by:
Deferred tax asset 2 844 2 846 – –
Deferred tax liability (9 354) (9 389) – –

(6 510) (6 543) – –

Reconciliation:
Opening balance 6 542 1 474 – –
Deferred taxation on acquisition – 420 – –
Revaluation charged to other comprehensive income – 3 266 – –
Charge to statement of comprehensive income (32) 1 382 – –

Balance at end of the year 6 510 6 542 – –

The group and company consider it probable that sufficient taxable income will be available in the future to realise the 
deferred tax asset raised based on future income to be generated. The sufficiency of future taxable income was 
supported by budgets for the 2016 financial year as well as the historical trading results of the various subsidiaries 
within the group.

The amount of unused tax losses for which no deferred tax asset is recognised on the statement of financial position is 
R2 733 000 (2014: R3 634 000).
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Notes to the annual financial statements continued

GROUP COMPANY

 2015 
 R’000

 2014 
 R’000

 2015 
 R’000

 2014 
 R’000

13. Inventories
Raw materials 3 306 3 742 – –
Work in progress 4 990 3 771 – –
Finished goods 65 559 65 509 – –
Machinery spares and production consumables 2 819 3 288 – –

76 674 76 310 – –
Inventory write-downs (394) (292) – –

76 280 76 018 – –

The cost of inventories recognised as an expense during the period was R154 138 000 (2014: R147 297  000).  
The value of inventory written down in the current year was R102 000 (2014: R56 000).

The total inventory was pledged as security for banking facilities as detailed in note 17.

An allowance is made to write stock down to the lower of cost or net realisable value. Management has made estimates 
of the selling price and direct cost to sell on certain inventory items. The write-down is included in cost of sales. 

GROUP COMPANY

 2015 
 R’000

 2014 
 R’000

 2015 
 R’000

 2014 
 R’000

14. Trade and other receivables
Financial instruments
Trade receivables 33 117 39 454
Deposits 1 133 639

34 250 40 093 – –

Non-financial instruments
Prepayments 20 772 13 403
VAT 493 590

21 265 13 993 – –

Trade and other receivables 55 515 54 086 – –

Trade receivables were pledged as security for banking facilities as detailed in note 17.

Fair value of trade and other receivables
The directors estimate the carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximate their fair value. Trade receivables 
disclosed above are classified as loans and receivables and are therefore measured at amortised cost. 

Trade receivables disclosed above include amounts (see below for age analysis) that are past due at the end of the 
reporting period but against which the group has not recognised an allowance for doubtful receivables because there 
has not been a significant change in credit quality and the amounts are still considered recoverable. The group assesses 
its trade and loans receivables for impairment at each reporting date. In determining whether an impairment loss should 
be recorded in profit or loss, the group makes judgements as to whether there is observable data indicating a measurable 
decrease in the estimated future cash flows. The impairment for trade and loans receivable is calculated on a specific 
basis and includes assessment of historical loss ratios.
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GROUP

 2015 
 R’000

 2014 
 R’000

14. Trade and other receivables continued
Exposure to credit risk
The carrying amount of trade and other receivables represents the maximum credit 
exposure.

Credit quality
The following represents information on the credit quality of trade receivables that are 
neither past due nor impaired:
Group 1 (%) – recurring customers 90 90
Group 2 (%) – other customers 10 10

Refer to note 27 for detailed information regarding the credit risk of trade and other 
receivables.

Trade and other receivables past due but not impaired
Trade and other receivables amounting to R4 182 000 (2014: R2 527 000) which are 
past due are not considered to be impaired. The ageing of amounts past due but not 
impaired is as follows:
One month past due 1 627 1 471
Two months past due 1 397 526
Three months past due 1 158 530

Trade and other receivables impaired
Trade and other receivables impaired and allowed for 882  769 

Reconciliation of allowance for impairment of trade and other receivables
Opening balance 260  1 207 
Provision for impairment 622 –
Amounts written off against provision – (947)

882 260

The allowance for impairment is based on past experience and the prevailing trading conditions relating to specific 
reportable segments and individual debtors, where risk of non-payment is perceived to be high and where outstanding 
balances are dated.
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GROUP COMPANY

2015
R’000 

 2014
R’000 

 2015
R’000 

 2014
R’000 

15. Other financial assets
Loans receivable  

Purchaser of Kalahari Environmental Mining Supplies 
(Pty) Limited 368 368 368 368

Sellers of Silver Falcon Trading (Pty) Limited 2 229 2 229 2 229 2 229

WYS Investments (Pty) Limited – 2 041 – –

Amount due by vendor secured by cession of shares* 1 350 1 972 – –

Ion Exchange Safic (Pty) Limited 583 565 – –

4 530 7 175 2 597 2 597

Current

Loans receivable 4 530 7 175 2 597 2 597

4 530 7 175 2 597 2 597

Purchaser of Kalahari Environment Mining Supplies (Pty) Limited
The above loan is unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed terms of repayment. Legal action has been initiated to 
recover this amount.

Sellers of Silver Falcon Trading (Pty) Limited
Legal action has been initiated to recover this amount from certain of the vendors in terms of warranties received.

WYS Investments (Pty) Limited
This loan has been fully repaid.

The carrying value of the amount due by vendor secured by cession of shares is shown net of an allowance for 
impairment of the shares ceded amounting to R622 000.

Ion Exchange Safic (Pty) Limited
The above loan is unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed terms of repayment. 

Fair values of financial assets
The above financial assets are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. The directors 
consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets recorded at amortised cost in the financial statements approximate 
their fair values.
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COMPANY

 2015 
 R’000

 2014 
 R’000

16. Loans to/(from) group companies
Subsidiaries
Accéntuate Management Services (Pty) Limited (10 381) (10 561)
Safic (Pty) Limited (290) (290)
Glassace 12 (Pty) Limited (formerly CGA Fenestration (Pty) Limited) (1 755) (1 755)
Accéntuate Limited Share Trust 4 650 4 650

(7 776) (7 956)

Current assets 4 650 4 650
Current liabilities (12 426) (12 606)

(7 776) (7 956)

The above loans are unsecured, interest-free and are repayable on demand. The loan to the Accéntuate Limited Share 
Trust has been provided to purchase Accéntuate shares to be used for the share option scheme.

GROUP COMPANY

 2015 
 R’000

 2014 
 R’000

 2015 
 R’000

 2014 
 R’000

17. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances 170 7 591 40 53
Bank overdraft (24 568) (30 205) – –

(24 398) (22 614) 40 53

The amount of undrawn primary lending facility available 
for future operating activities and commitments 12 932 7 295  

Credit quality
The credit quality of bank balances and short-term 
deposits, excluding cash on hand, that are neither past 
due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to 
external credit ratings (if available) or historical information 
about counterparty default rates: 
Credit rating
As per Absa Bank credit rating 170 7 591 40  53 

Facilities
Total facilities granted are:
■■ Primary lending facility: R37,5 million

■■ Forward exchange contract facility: R14 million

Facilities are secured by a general notarial bond to the value of R40 million over all movable assets of Accéntuate group 
in favour of Absa Bank Limited and a first ranking cession and pledge by the group of its rights, title and interest in:
■■ all trade receivables;
■■ all bank accounts, retentions, deposits, prepayments, cash and the like; and

■■ all insurance policies, with Absa’s interest therein specifically noted.
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GROUP COMPANY

 2015 
 R’000

 2014 
 R’000

 2015 
 R’000

 2014 
 R’000

18. Share capital
Authorised

500 000 000 ordinary shares of 0,001 cents each  5  5  5  5 

Issued
124 048 757 (2014: 123 704 022) ordinary shares of 
0,001 cents each  1  1  1  1 
Share premium 136 992  136 709 143 190  142 907 

136 993  136 710 143 191  142 908 

Reconciliation of number of shares issued
Reported as at 30 June 2014  118 342 354  105 746 451  123 704 022  111 108 119 
Issue of ordinary shares for acquisitions (note 9) 344 735 12 595 903 344 735 12 595 903

118 687 089  118 342 354 124 048 757 123 704 022

Included in the number of issued shares by the company are 4 697 167 shares owned by the Accéntuate Limited Share 
Trust and 664 501 treasury shares which have been eliminated in the group share capital (unchanged from 2014).

The unissued shares are under the control of the directors until the forthcoming annual general meeting.

GROUP COMPANY

 2015 
 R’000

 2014 
 R’000

 2015 
 R’000

 2014 
 R’000

19. Trade and other payables
Financial instruments
Trade payables 24 464 33 932 484 384

24 464 33 932 484 384

Non-financial instruments 
Bonus accrued 1 916 1 944 – –
Leave pay accrued 2 664 2 428 – –
VAT 453 444 – –
Payroll accruals 1 774 1 785 – –
Amounts received in advance 409 409 – –
Directors’ fees accrued 284 – – –
Accrued operating expenses and other 3 767 4 670 44 44

11 267 11 680 44 44

Trade and other payables 35 731 45 612 528 428

Fair value of trade and other payables
Due to the short-term nature of the group’s trade and other payables, the carrying value approximates their fair value. 
Trade payables are subject to normal industry settlement terms.
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GROUP COMPANY

 2015 
 R’000

 2014 
 R’000

 2015 
 R’000

 2014 
 R’000

20. Other financial liabilities
Degrachem (Pty) Limited – 390 – –

– 390 – –

Reflected as follows:
Current liabilities    
At amortised cost – 390 – –

– 390 – –

Fair values of financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are measured at fair value through profit or loss using the effective interest rate method. The directors 
consider that the carrying amounts of financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the financial statements 
approximate their fair values.

 Loans and
 receivables

R’000 

 Financial
 liabilities at

 amortised
 cost

R’000 
 Total
R’000 

21. Financial instruments by category
Group – 2015
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 170 170
Trade and other receivables 34 250 34 250
Other financial assets 4 530 4 530

Total financial assets 38 950 38 950

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables (24 464) (24 464)
Bank overdraft (24 568) (24 568)

Total financial liabilities (49 032) (49 032)

Group – 2014
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 7 591 7 591
Trade and other receivables 40 093 40 093
Other financial assets 7 175 7 175

Total financial assets 54 859 54 859

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables (33 932) (33 932)
Other financial liabilities (390) (390)
Bank overdraft (30 205) (30 205)

Total financial liabilities (64 527) (64 527)
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 Loans and
 receivables

R’000 

 Financial
 liabilities at

 amortised
 cost

R’000 
 Total
R’000 

21. Financial instruments by category continued
Company – 2015
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 40 40
Loans to group companies 4 650 4 650
Other financial assets 2 597 2 597

Total financial assets 7 287 7 287

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables (484) (484)
Loans from group companies (12 426) (12 426)

Total financial liabilities  (12 910) (12 910)

Company – 2014
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 53 53
Trade and other receivables – –
Loans to group companies 4 650 4 650
Other financial assets 2 597 2 597

Total financial assets 7 300 7 300

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables (383) (383)
Loans from group companies (12 606) (12 606)

Total financial liabilities  (12 989)  (12 989) 
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22. Share-based payments
22.1 During the year the following expenses/(reversals) were recognised in profit or loss regarding share-based payment 

schemes:

GROUP COMPANY

 2015 
 R’000

 2014 
 R’000

 2015 
 R’000

 2014 
 R’000

Cash settled
– Share appreciation rights scheme  –  (407) – –
Equity settled
– Share option scheme  189  37 – –

 189  (370) – –

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payment expense is calculated at grant date and expensed over the 
vesting period of the share options.

Share appreciation rights scheme
The group has implemented a share appreciation rights (“SARs”) scheme to identified senior executive management. 
The SARs are mostly exercisable equally over five years on 1 April each year, with the SARs issued in 2014 only being 
exercisable in years four and five. The scheme entitles participants to a cash-settled bonus payment. The amount of 
the payment is determined by the increase in the company’s share price between grant date and the exercise date, 
subject to a minimum increase in the share price of CPI plus 2% per annum.

Share option scheme
Options are issued to senior staff at the discretion of the board of directors in terms of the share option scheme which 
has been approved by shareholders. The options vest over three years at 33,3% per annum and expire 90 days after 
the date of vesting. All options not exercised after 90 days are forfeited. 

The conditions relating to the schemes are:

Issue 
date

Earliest 
vesting date

Latest 
vesting date

Number of 
rights/

options 
granted

Vesting 
period

Average 
remaining 

contractual 
life (years)

Share appreciation rights 
(“SARs”) 1 April 2012 1 April 2013 1 April 2017 22 082 000 5 years 1,75

1 April 2013 1 April 2014 1 April 2018 5 732 200 5 years 2,75
1 April 2014 1 April 2018 1 April 2019 3 509 080 5 years 3,75
1 April 2015 1 April 2016 1 April 2020 8 427 578 5 years 4,75

Share options 1 April 2014 1 April 2015 1 April 2017 5 361 668 3 years 1,75
1 April 2015 1 April 2016 1 April 2018 1 522 722 3 years 2,75

The vesting condition applicable to all the SARs and options is that the participant must remain in service until the date 
of exercise.
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22. Share-based payments continued
22.1 The following summarises the number of rights/options: continued

2015 2014

Number of
options/

rights

Weighted
 average
exercise

price
R

Number of
options/

rights

Weighted
 average
exercise

price
R

Share appreciation rights scheme
Outstanding at beginning of the year 21 344 040 0,640  23 397 800  0,666 
Issued 8 427 578 0,600 3 509 080 0,597
Forfeited (6 264 656) 0,654 (5 562 840) 0,634
Exercised –  _  

Outstanding at end of the year* 23 506 962 0,637 21 344 040 0,640

Exercisable at end of the year – –

*The exercise prices are between 59,7 and 76,6 cents

Share option scheme
Outstanding at beginning of the year 5 361 668 0,597 – 
Issued 1 522 722 0,600 5 361 668 0,597 
Forfeited (1 787 223) – 
Exercised – – 

Outstanding at end of the year* 5 097 167 0,598 5 361 668 0,597 

Exercisable at end of the year – – 

*The exercise prices are between 59,7 and 60,0 cents

 Share appreciation
 rights scheme 

 Share
option scheme 

Valuation model
 Black-Scholes option-

pricing model 
 Black-Scholes option-

pricing model 
Measurement date  30 June 2015 1 April 2014/15
Weighted average share price (cents) 63,7 59,8
Exercise price (cents)  59,7 – 76,6  59,7 
Risk-free interest rate 7,6 – 8,1% 7,6 – 8,1%
Expected volatility 40% 40%
Expected dividend yield 0 0 
Vesting period  5  3 
Fair value of rights/options (cents) 5 – 12 8

The risk-free rate for periods within the contractual term of the share rights was based on the South African long-term 
government bond rate in effect at the time of the grant. The expected volatility in the value of the share rights granted 
was determined using the historical normalised volatility of the Accéntuate share price. A dividend yield of 0% was used 
as no discrete dividends were forecast for the foreseeable future at grant date.

The valuation of the share-based payment expense requires a significant degree of judgement to be applied by 
management.
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22. Share-based payments continued
22.2 Directors’ share appreciation rights

 Outstanding
 at beginning 

of the year 

Issued 
during 

year

Exercised 
during 

year

Forfeited 
during 

year

 Outstanding 
at end 

of the year

FC Platt – issued in 2012 at R0,634 4 164 060 –  1 388 020 2 776 040 
 – issued in 2013 at R0,766 1 441 200 –  360 300 1 080 900 
 – issued in 2014 at R0,597 1 102 880 1 102 880 
 – issued in 2015 at R0,060  2 667 000 2 667 000 

6 708 140 2 667 000 – 1 748 320 7 626 820 

CJ Povall – issued in 2012 at R0,634 3 123 000 –  1 041 000 2 082 000 
 – issued in 2013 at R0,766 1 080 960 –  270 240 810 720 
 – issued in 2014 at R0,597 827 120  827 120 
 – issued in 2015 at R0,060  2 000 200 2 000 200 

5 031 080 2 000 200 – 1 311 240 5 720 040 

DE Platt  – issued in 2012 at R0,634 3 123 000 –  1 041 000 2 082 000 
 – issued in 2013 at R0,766 1 080 960 –  270 240 810 720 
 – issued in 2014 at R0,597 827 120  827 120 
 – issued in 2015 at R0,060  2 000 200 2 000 200 

5 031 080 2 000 200 – 1 311 240 5 720 040 

22.3 Directors’ share options

 Outstanding
 at beginning 

of the year 

Issued 
during 

year

Exercised 
during 

year

Forfeited 
during 

year

 Outstanding 
at end 

of the year

FC Platt  – issued in 2014 at R0,597 1 496 500 –  498 833 997 667 
 – issued in 2015 at R0,060  481 900 481 900

1 496 500 481 900 – 498 833 1 479 567 

CJ Povall  – issued in 2014 at R0,597 1 122 400 – 374 133 748 267 
 – issued in 2015 at R0,060  361 400 361 400

1 122 400 361 400 – 374 133 1 109 667 

DE Platt  – issued in 2014 at R0,597 1 122 400 –  374 133 748 267 
 – issued in 2015 at R0,060  361 400 361 400

1 122 400 361 400 – 374 133 1 109 667 
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GROUP COMPANY

2015
R’000 

 2014
R’000 

 2015
R’000 

 2014
R’000 

23. Cash generated by operations
Operating profit 9 479 9 549 67 99
Adjustments for non-cash items:
– Depreciation and amortisation 5 199 6 524 –
– Allowance for impairment of other financial asset 622 – – –
– Fair value adjustment of financial liabilities (107) –
– Unrealised (gain)/loss on foreign exchange (83) 12
– Profit on disposal of fixed assets (2) (30)
– Share-based payment expense 189 37
– Movement in operating lease accruals (172) 420 –
–  Cash generated by operations before changes in 

working capital 15 125 16 512 67 99

(Increase)/decrease in working capital:
– Inventories (264) (17 916) –
– Trade and other receivables (1 455) (13 176) (100)
– Trade and other payables (9 789) 10 956 100 (48)

3 617 (3 624) 167 (49)

24. Taxation paid
Balance at beginning of the year 1 415  1 437 (4) 84
Current normal tax charge (refer note 4) (2 315) (926) – –
Balance at end of the year (639) (1 415) (4) (4)

Tax (paid)/refunded (1 539) (904) – 80
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GROUP COMPANY

 2015 
 R’000

 2014 
 R’000

 2015 
 R’000

 2014 
 R’000

25. Commitments
Group
The following operating lease charges are payable on 
equipment and premises:
– Due within one year 9 086 10 382 – –
– Due within two to five years 36 802 39 289 – –
– Due after five years – 11 356 – –

45 888 61 027 – –

Operating lease payments by the group represent rentals payable by the subsidiaries for certain of its office properties, 
motor vehicles and plant and machinery. All leases are negotiated for an average term of three to five years for plant, 
machinery, motor vehicles and equipment, and up to 10 years for properties. Rentals are subject to an annual escalation. 
No contingent rent is payable.

26. Related parties
Relationships
Subsidiaries directly owned  Refer to note 10   
Subsidiaries indirectly owned  Safic Black Empowerment Enterprises (Pty) Limited 

 Safic Facilities Management Services (Pty) Limited 
Associate company  Ion Exchange Safic (Pty) Limited 
Share trust  Accéntuate Limited Share Trust 
Company owned by key management (until 
30 September 2013)  Dovelight Trading 26 (Pty) Limited 

Key senior management
The directors and prescribed officers are defined as key senior management. Details of the directors’ emoluments are 
disclosed in note 28, and shareholding is disclosed in the shareholders’ analysis. The following were regarded as 
prescribed officers: EW Platt (CEO of Safic), PS Dayah (company secretary) and CR Garner (group treasurer until 
retired 31 May 2015).

Company
Related-party balances and transactions
Details on loan accounts owing (to)/by related parties are set out in note 16 of the financial statements.

Rent paid to related parties:

GROUP COMPANY

 2015 
 R’000

 2014 
 R’000

 2015 
 R’000

 2014 
 R’000

Dovelight Trading 26 (Pty) Limited –  174 – –

Inter-company transactions
Transactions between subsidiaries have been eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed in this note. A fee of 
R100 000 (2014: R100 000) was charged by the company to a subsidiary.
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27. Financial risk management
Introduction and overview
The group is exposed to a variety of financial risks from its use of financial assets and liabilities:
■■ Credit risk
■■ Liquidity risk
■■ Market risk

   – Interest rate risk
   – Foreign exchange risk
■■ Capital risk management

This note presents information about the group’s exposure to each of the above risks, the group’s objectives, policies 
and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the group’s management of capital. Further quantitative 
disclosures are included throughout these consolidated financial statements.

Risk management framework
The board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the group’s risk management 
framework. The board has established the audit and risk committee, which is responsible for developing and monitoring 
the group’s risk management policies. The committee reports regularly to the board of directors on its activities.

The group’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the group, to set 
appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and 
systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the group’s activities. The group, through 
its training and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control 
environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The group audit and risk committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the group’s risk management 
policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by 
the group. The group audit and risk committee is assisted in its oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes 
both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the 
audit committee.

There have been no changes to the objectives, policies and processes for managing the risk and methods used to 
manage the risk from the prior year.

Credit risk 
Credit risk relates to the risk of financial loss to the group relating to customers, loans receivables and other financial 
instruments that fail to meet contractual obligations. The potential exposure on these financial instruments is inherent 
in trade receivables, loans, and bank and call deposits. 

Trade and other receivables
The group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. However, 
management also considers the demographics of the group’s customer base, including the industry and role within the 
supply chain as these factors may have an influence on credit risk.

The group has established a credit policy under which each new customer is analysed individually for creditworthiness 
before the group’s standard payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered.

Many of the group’s customers have been transacting with the group for a number of years. In monitoring customer 
credit risk, customers are assessed according to their credit characteristics, including whether they are an individual or 
legal entity, geographic location, industry, ageing profile, maturity, existence of previous financial difficulties and sureties 
and guarantees provided. Trade and other receivables relate to a wide spread of customers.
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27. Financial risk management continued
Trade and other receivables continued
The group establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of trade 
and other receivables. The main components of this allowance are a specific loss component that relates to individually 
significant exposures. The collective loss allowance is determined based on historical data of payment statistics for 
similar financial assets.

At the reporting date, the group did not consider there to be any significant concentration of credit risk which has not 
been adequately provided for. 

The board has delegated the responsibility of managing the credit risk to the managing executives of each subsidiary, 
who are responsible for: 
■■ establishing the authorisation structure for the approval and renewal of credit facilities;
■■ reviewing and assessing credit risk;
■■ monitoring the financial position of customers on an ongoing basis; and
■■ formulating credit policies in relation to the subsidiary’s business and customer base.

Financial assets exposed to credit risk at year end were as follows:

GROUP COMPANY

 2015 
 R’000

 2014 
 R’000

 2015 
 R’000

 2014 
 R’000

Financial instrument
Trade and other receivables 34 250 40 093 – –
Cash and cash equivalents 170 7 591 40 53
Financial assets 4 530 7 175 – –
Loans to group companies  4 650 4 650

38 950 54 859 4 690 4 703

Liquidity risk 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial 
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The group’s approach to managing liquidity is to 
ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal 
and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the group’s reputation.

Typically the group ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand or borrowing facilities to meet expected operational 
expenses for a period of 60 days, including the servicing of financial obligations. This excludes the potential impact of 
extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted, such as natural disasters. 

Other financial liabilities and loans to group companies are considered as unlikely to affect liquidity.
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27. Financial risk management continued
An analysis of the group’s financial assets and liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period 
at the reporting date to contractual maturity date are as follows based on undiscounted cash flows:

COMPANY GROUP

Less than
one year

R’000

One year to
five years

R’000
Total

R’000

Less than
one year

R’000

One year to
five years

R’000
Total

R’000

2015
Financial assets
Cash and cash 
equivalents 40 40 170 – 170
Trade and other 
receivables 34 250 – 34 250
Other financial assets 2 597 2 597 4 530 – 4 530
Loans to group 
companies 4 650 4 650
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables (528) (528) (24 464) – (24 464)
Bank overdraft (24 568) – (24 568)
Loans from group 
companies (12 426) (12 426)
2014
Financial assets
Cash and cash 
equivalents 53 53 7 591 – 7 591
Trade and other 
receivables 2 597 2 597 40 093 – 40 093
Other financial assets 7 175 – 7 175
Loans to group 
companies 4 650 4 650
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables (428) (428) (33 932) – (33 932)
Bank overdraft (30 205) – (30 205)
Loans from group 
companies (12 606) (12 606)

Interest rate risk
The group’s cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate owing 
to changes in the market interest rates. The fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument 
will fluctuate because of changes in the market interest rates. The group assumes exposure to the effects of fluctuations 
in the prevailing levels of market interest rates on both the fair value and cash flow risks. 

Interest rate sensitivity
If the interest rate had increased or decreased by 100 basis points, with all other variables held constant, the impact 
on profit and loss would increase or decrease by R269 000 (2014: R232 000).

Foreign exchange risk
The group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising primarily with respect to the US dollar and euro. Foreign exchange 
risk arises from commercial transactions in foreign currencies.

The group has set up policies that require group companies to manage their foreign exchange risk using forward 
exchange contracts, transacted with financial institutions. Foreign exchange risk arises when commercial transactions 
are denominated in a currency that is not the entity’s functional currency.
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27. Financial risk management continued
Exchange rates used for conversion of foreign items to rand were:

CLOSING AVERAGE

 2015  2014  2015  2014 

Currency
US dollar (USD) 12,28 10,628 11,45 10,684
Euro (EUR) 13,63 14,461 13,73 14,089

Capital risk
The group’s objective when managing capital is to safeguard the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that 
it can continue to provide returns for shareholders, benefits for others stakeholders and to provide an adequate return 
to shareholders by pricing products and services adequately with a moderate level of risk.

The group sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk. The group manages the capital structure and makes 
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In 
order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the group may issue dividends to shareholders, issue new shares, or 
sell assets to reduce debt.

The group monitors capital on the basis of net debt to total equity ratio.

The group’s strategy is to maintain the net debt to equity ratio below 0,60, in order to secure access to finance at a 
reasonable cost. The group’s overall strategy remains unchanged. The debt to equity ratio is as follows:

GROUP

 2015 
 R’000

 2014 
 R’000

Total liabilities 73 276 88 916
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (170) (7 591)
  Deferred tax (9 354) (9 389)

Net debt 63 752 71 936

Total equity 157 562 152 379

Debt to equity ratio 0,40 0,47

There were no changes in the group’s approach to capital management during the year.
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28. Directors’ emoluments
28.1 Executive directors’ remuneration – group

Guaranteed
remuneration

(short term)
R’000

Retirement
fund

contributions
(short term)

R’000

Performance-
based
bonus

(short term)
R’000

Gains on
exercise of

options
and SARs
(long term)

R’000

Total
emoluments

R’000

2015
FC Platt 2 585 195 0 0 2 780
CJ Povall 1 609 129 0 0 1 738
DE Platt 2 211 382 0 0 2 593
Prescribed officers 1 1 967 141 0 0 2 108
Prescribed officers 2 1 298 98 0 0 1 396
Prescribed officers 3 809 111 0 0 921

10 479 1 056 0 0 11 536

2014
FC Platt 2 383 180 138 183 2 884
CJ Povall 1 484 120 104 137 1 845
DE Platt 2 105 360 250 137 2 852
Prescribed officers 1 1 701 134 158 77 2 070
Prescribed officers 2 1 338 101 0 0 1 439
Prescribed officers 3 737 93 40 0 870

9 749 988 690 534 11 961

GROUP COMPANY

 2015 
R’000

 2014
R’000 

 2015 
R’000

 2014
R’000 

28.2 Non-executive directors’ fees
RB Patmore 860 0 0 0
E Ratshikhopha 660 0 0 0
MDC Motlatla 880 180 0 0
Thebe Investment Corporation (PS Kriel) 206 0 0 0

2 606 180 0 0

These amounts include fees of R797 000 for the 2014/15 year, of which R284 000 has not yet been paid following the 
agreement with the JSE not to further implement the special resolution approving the proposed fee voted on at the 
AGM in February 2015.

29. Contingent asset and liability
Contingent asset
On 25 March 2011, an action was launched against the vendors of CGA Fenestrations (“CGA”) in which Accéntuate is 
suing the vendors for damages arising from a breach of certain warranties provided by the vendor when Accéntuate 
purchased the shares in CGA in 2007. A settlement was reached with two of the minor vendors in the previous financial 
year. The outstanding claim by Accéntuate against the two major vendors is R6,1 million.
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30. Segment report
The group has three reportable segments, as described below, which are the group’s strategic divisions. The strategic 
divisions offer different products and services, and are managed separately because they operate in different markets. 
For each of the strategic divisions, the group executive committee reviews internal management reports on a monthly 
basis.

Information regarding the results of each reportable segment is included below. Performance is measured based on 
segment profit before income tax, as included in the internal management reports.

Flooring
Environmental 

solutions Water treatment
Corporate and 

eliminations Consolidated

 2015
R’000 

 2014
R’000 

 2015
R’000 

 2014
R’000 

 2015
R’000 

 2014
R’000 

 2015
R’000 

 2014
R’000 

 2015
R’000 

 2014
R’000 

Total sales 250 578 238 956 74 943 75 519
Less: Inter-segmental sales (6 912) (6 374)

Revenue 250 578  238 956 74 943 75 519 (6 912) (6 374) 318 609  308 101 

Gross profit 121 854 117 645 42 617 43 159 – – 164 471 160 804

Operating profit 6 452 6 605 1 287 697 1 740 2 247 9 479 9 549
Finance costs (214) (124) (1 112) (1 096) (1 159) (881) (2 485)  (2 101) 

Profit/(loss) before tax 6 238 6 481 175 (399) 581 1 366 6 994 7 448

Share of loss from associate  –  –  –  –  –  – 

Other information 
Capital expenditure 3 367 3 819 371 2 617 131 74 3 869 6 510 
Depreciation and amortisation (3 801) (3 964) (1 131) (2 489) (267) (71) (5 199) (6 524)
Segment assets 169 992 175 076 29 140 32 413 31 706 33 803 230 838 241 292
Segment liabilities 36 342 46 056 19 445 22 919 17 489 19 941 73 276 88 916

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as the group’s accounting policies.
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Notice of annual general meeting

This document is important and requires your immediate 
attention. If you are in any doubt as to what action you 
should take arising from the following resolutions, 
please consult your CSDP, stockbroker, banker, attorney, 
accountant or professional adviser immediately.

ACCÉNTUATE LIMITED
(Registration number: 2004/029691/06)
JSE share code: ACE
ISIN: ZAE000115986
(“Accéntuate” or “the company”)

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the annual general meeting 
of shareholders of Accéntuate Limited, in respect of the year 
ended 30 June 2015, will be held at Accéntuate Business 
Park, 404 Southern Klipriviersberg Road, Steeledale, 
Johannesburg, on Friday, 27 November 2015 at 10:00 am. 
Shareholder registration will commence from 09:30 am.

This notice of annual general meeting includes the attached 
form of proxy.

Record dates
The record date for the purpose of determining which 
shareholders of the company are entitled to receive the 
notice of the annual general meeting is 23 October 2015. 

The record date for purposes of determining which 
shareholders of the company are entitled to participate in 
and vote at the annual general meeting is Friday, 20 November 
2015.

Accordingly, only shareholders who are registered in the 
register of members of the company on Friday, 20 November 
2015 will be entitled to attend, speak and vote at the annual 
general meeting. The last day to trade in the company’s 
shares in order to be included in the register for voting will be 
13 November 2015.

Attendance and voting
All attendees and participants at the meeting may be required 
to provide identification reasonably satisfactory to the 
chairman of the meeting.

On a show of hands, every shareholder who is present or 
represented by proxy shall have one vote, and, on a poll, 
every shareholder present in person or by proxy shall have 
one vote for each share held by him/her.

Purpose of the meeting
The purpose of the meeting is to:
■■ present the audited annual financial statements of the 

group for the year ended 30 June 2015;
■■ present the audit committee report;
■■ present the social and ethics committee report;
■■ consider any matters raised by shareholders; and
■■ consider and, if deemed fit, to pass, with or without 

modification, the resolutions set out below.

Unless otherwise indicated, in order for the ordinary 
resolutions to be adopted, the support of at least 50% (fifty 
percent) plus one vote of the total number of votes, which 
the shareholders present or represent by proxy at this 
meeting are entitled to cast, is required. In order for the 
special resolutions to be adopted, the support of at least 
75% (seventy-five percent) of the total number of votes, 
which the shareholders present or represented by proxy at 
this meeting are entitled to cast, is required.

Annual financial statements
The annual financial statements have been sent to registered 
shareholders who requested copies and are also available 
on the company’s website: www.accentuateltd.co.za.

Ordinary resolution number 1: Adoption of the annual 
financial statements
“Resolved that the annual financial statements for the 
company and the group for the year ended 30 June 2015, 
including the independent auditor’s report thereon, the audit 
committee report, and the social and ethics committee 
report, be and are hereby received and confirmed.”

Ordinary resolution number 2: Election of director
“Resolved that RB Patmore, who retires by rotation in terms 
of the MOI and who is eligible and available for re-election, is 
re-elected as a director of the company.”
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Ordinary resolution number 3: Election of audit 
committee member
“Resolved that A Mjamekwana be re-elected as a member of 
the audit committee.”

Ordinary resolution number 4: Election of audit 
committee member
“Resolved that RB Patmore be re-elected as a member of 
the audit committee.”

Ordinary resolution number 5: Election of audit 
committee member
“Resolved that NE Ratshikhopha be re-elected as a member 
of the audit committee.”

Abbreviated curricula vitae of the aforementioned directors 
are set out on pages 16 and 17 of the integrated annual 
report.

Ordinary resolution number 6: Authorise the audit 
committee to determine the remuneration of the 
auditors for the past year’s audit
“Resolved that the audit committee be authorised to 
determine the remuneration of the auditors for the past 
year’s audit.”

Ordinary resolution number 7: Reappointment of 
auditors
“Resolved that Mazars (Gauteng) Inc. be reappointed 
as  auditors of the company for the financial year ending 
30 June 2016.”

Ordinary resolution number 8: Remuneration policy
“Resolved to approve, by way of a non-binding, advisory 
vote, the remuneration policy of the company as set out on 
pages 36 and 37 of the integrated annual report.”

Ordinary resolution number 9: The general authority to 
issue unissued, but authorised shares for cash
“Resolved that the directors be authorised pursuant, inter 
alia, to the company’s MOI, until this authority lapses at the 
next annual general meeting of the company, unless it is then 
renewed at the next annual general meeting of the company 
and provided that it shall not extend beyond 15 (fifteen) 
months, to allot and issue any ordinary shares for cash 
subject to the JSE Listings Requirements on the following 
bases:

1.   The allotment and issue of the shares must be made to 
persons qualifying as public shareholders as defined in 
the JSE Listings Requirements.

2.   The shares which are the subject of the issue for cash 
must be of a class already in issue.

3.   The number of shares issued for cash shall not in the 
aggregate in any one financial year exceed 50% (fifty 
percent) of the company’s issued share capital of 
ordinary shares. The number of ordinary shares which 
may be issued shall be based on the number of ordinary 
shares in issue at the date of such issue less any ordinary 
shares issued during the current financial year, provided 
that any ordinary shares to be issued pursuant to a 
rights issue (announced, irrevocable and fully 
underwritten) or acquisition (concluded up to the date of 
application including announcement of the final terms) 
may be included as though they were shares in issue at 
the date of application.

4.   The maximum discount at which ordinary shares may 
be issued is 10% (ten percent) of the weighted average 
traded price on the JSE of those shares over the 
30 (thirty) business days prior to the date that the price 
of the issue is determined or agreed by the directors of 
the company.

5.   After the company has issued shares for cash which 
represent, on a cumulative basis within a financial year, 
5% (five percent) or more of the number of shares in 
issue prior to that issue, the company shall publish an 
announcement containing full details of the issue 
(including the number of shares issued, the average 
discount to the weighted average traded price of the 
shares over the 30 business days prior to the date that 
the price of the issue is determined or agreed to by the 
directors and the effect of the issue on net asset value 
and earnings per share), or any other announcements 
that may be required in such regard in terms of the JSE 
Listings Requirements which may be applicable from 
time to time.”

In terms of the JSE Listings Requirements, a 75% (seventy- 
five percent) majority of the votes cast by shareholders 
present or represented by proxy at the general meeting must 
be cast in favour of ordinary resolution number 10 for it to be 
approved.
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Notice of annual general meeting continued

Ordinary resolution number 10: Unissued ordinary 
shares
“Resolved that all the authorised but unissued ordinary 
shares in the capital of the company be and are hereby 
placed at the disposal and under the control of the directors, 
and that the directors be and are hereby authorised to allot, 
issue and otherwise to dispose of all or any of such shares at 
their discretion in terms of and subject to the provisions of 
the Companies Act and the JSE Listings Requirements and 
subject to the proviso that the aggregate number of ordinary 
shares which may be allotted and issued in terms of this 
ordinary resolution 11 shall be limited to 30% (thirty percent) 
of the number of ordinary shares in issue from time to time.”

Ordinary resolution number 11: Amendments to 
Accéntuate Limited Share Trust
“Resolved that, in accordance with provisions of the 
Accéntuate Limited Share Trust (“the Scheme”), the Scheme 
is amended as follows:
■■ Clause 21.1.1 is amended by deleting the phrase 

“90 (ninety) days” and replacing it with the phrase 
“3 (three) years”; and

■■ Clause 21.3.2 is amended by deleting the phrase 
“90 days” in the second line and replacing it with the 
phrase “2 (two) years”.

Explanation
The change has been proposed in order to lengthen the 
period during which participants in the Scheme can exercise 
share options to enhance the long-term incentivisation of 
such participants.

In terms of the Scheme rules and the JSE Listings 
Requirements, a 75% (seventy-five percent) majority of votes 
cast by shareholders present or represented by proxy at the 
general meeting must be cast in favour of ordinary resolution 
number 12 for it to be approved. 

Ordinary resolution number 12: Signature of 
documentation
“Resolved that any director or the company secretary of the 
company be and is hereby authorised to sign all 
documentation and do all such things as may be necessary 
for or incidental to the implementation of all special resolutions 
and all ordinary resolutions passed at the annual general 
meeting.”

Special resolutions
Special resolution number 1: Share repurchases
“Resolved, as a special resolution, that the directors be 
authorised pursuant, inter alia, to the company’s MOI until 
this authority lapses at the next annual general meeting of 
the company, unless it is then renewed at the next annual 

general meeting of the company and provided that this 
authority shall not extend beyond 15 (fifteen) months from 
date of passing this special resolution, for the company or 
any subsidiary of the company to acquire shares of the 
company, subject to the JSE Listings Requirements, 
provided that:
1.   any such repurchase of securities (which includes 

shares) must be effected through the order book 
operated by the JSE trading system and done without 
any prior understanding or arrangement between the 
company and the counterparty;

2.   the company or any subsidiary of the company may 
only appoint one agent to effect any repurchases on its 
behalf;

3.   the company or any subsidiary of the company must be 
authorised thereto by its MOI, upon the adoption 
thereof;

4.   the number of shares which may be acquired pursuant 
to this authority in any financial year (which commenced 
1 July 2015) may not in the aggregate exceed 20% 
(twenty percent) of the company’s issued share capital 
as at the date of passing of this special resolution;

5.   repurchases of shares may not be made at a price 
greater than 10% (ten percent) above the weighted 
average of the market value of the securities for the 
5  (five) business days immediately preceding the date 
on which the transaction was effected;

6.   repurchases may not be undertaken by the company or 
one of its wholly owned subsidiaries during a prohibited 
period (as defined in paragraph 3.67 of the Listings 
Requirements of the JSE);

7.   after the company has acquired shares which constitute, 
on a cumulative basis, 3% (three percent) of the number 
of shares in issue at the time that authority from 
shareholders for the repurchase is granted, the company 
shall publish an announcement to such effect, or any 
other announcements that may be required in such 
regard in terms of the Listings Requirements of the JSE 
which may be applicable from time to time; and

8.  the company’s designated adviser shall confirm the 
adequacy of the company’s working capital for purposes 
of undertaking their purchase of shares in writing to the 
JSE prior to entering the market to proceed with any 
repurchase.

In accordance with the Listings Requirements of the JSE, 
the directors record as follows:

Although there is no immediate intention to effect a 
repurchase of securities (which includes shares) of the 
company, the directors would utilise the general authority to 
repurchase securities as and when suitable opportunities 
present themselves, which opportunities may require 
expeditious and immediate action.
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The directors, after considering the maximum number of 
securities (which includes shares) which may be repurchased 
and the price at which the repurchases may take place 
pursuant to the buy-back general authority, are of the opinion 
that for a period of 12 (twelve) months after the date of notice 
of this annual general meeting:
■■ the company and the group will be able to pay their debts 

in the ordinary course of business;
■■ the consolidated assets of the company and of the group 

fairly valued in accordance with international financial 
reporting standards, will exceed the consolidated liabilities 
of the company and of the group after the buy-back;

■■ the share capital and reserves of the company and of the 
group will be adequate for the purposes of the business 
of the company and its subsidiaries; and

■■ the working capital available to the company and its 
subsidiaries will be adequate for the purposes of the 
business of the company and its subsidiaries.” 

The following additional information, some of which may 
appear elsewhere in the annual report of which this notice 
forms part, is provided in terms of paragraph 11.26 of the 
Listings Requirements of the JSE for purposes of this general 
authority:
■■ Directors – pages 16 to 19.
■■ Significant shareholders – page 41.
■■ Directors’ interests in ordinary shares – page 40.
■■ Share capital of the company – page 80.

Litigation statement
Accéntuate has instituted legal proceedings against vendors 
of the CGA business for alleged breaches of warranties. 
Refer to the annual report for further details.

Directors’ responsibility statement
The directors whose names appear on pages 16 to 19 of the 
annual report collectively and individually accept full 
responsibility for the accuracy of the information pertaining 
to this special resolution and certify that, to the best of their 
knowledge and belief, there are no facts that have been 
omitted which would make any statement false or misleading, 
that all reasonable enquiries to ascertain such facts have 
been made and that the special resolution contains all 
information required in terms of the JSE Listings 
Requirements.

Material changes
Other than the facts and developments reported on in the 
integrated annual report, there have been no material 
changes in the affairs or financial position of the company 
and its subsidiaries since 30 June 2015 up to the date of this 
notice.

Reasons for and effects of special resolution number 1 
The reason for special resolution number 1 is to afford 
directors of the company or a subsidiary of the company a 
general authority to effect a buy-back of the company’s 
shares on the JSE. The effect of the resolution will be that the 
directors will have the authority, subject to the JSE Listings 
Requirements and the Companies Act, to effect acquisitions 
of the company’s shares on the JSE. 

Special resolution number 2: Approval of non-executive 
directors’ fees
“Resolved that the non-executive directors’ fees for services 
as directors for the period ended 30 June 2016, as set out 
below, be and are hereby approved and that such fees be 
payable for two years after the annual general meeting 
unless amended at a subsequent general meeting.”

Annual fees

Designation 2015/16

Independent chairman of the board R250 000
Other independent directors R76 800

Fees for each meeting attended payable in addition to the 
annual fees (payable to each non-executive director):

2015/16

Main board R12 830
Audit and risk committee R12 830
Remuneration committee R6 500
Social and ethics committee R6 500

Special resolution number 3: Approval of non-executive 
directors’ fees
“Resolved that the non-executive directors’ fees for services 
as directors for the periods ended 30 June 2015, as set out 
below, be and are hereby approved.”
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Annual fees

2014/15

Independent chairman of the board R360 000
Lead independent director R145 000

Other independent directors R72 450

Fees for each meeting attended payable in addition to the 
annual fees (payable to each non-executive director):

2015 

Main board R12 100
Audit and risk committee R12 100
Remuneration committee R6 100
Social and ethics committee R6 100

Explanation
Special resolutions number 2 and 3 are required in terms of 
section 66 of the Companies Act to authorise the company 
to pay remuneration to directors of the company in respect 
of their services as directors. Only non-executive directors 
are remunerated for services rendered as directors.

Special resolution number 4: Financial assistance to 
related or inter-related entities of the company
“Resolved that the board of directors is authorised, in terms 
of and subject to the provision of section 45 of the Companies 
Act, to cause the company to provide any financial assistance 
to any company or corporation that is related or inter-related 
to the company (including, without limitation, its subsidiaries) 
and the provision of such financial assistance is hereby 
approved under this special resolution number 3.”

Reason and effect
Special resolution number 4 is required in terms of section 
45 of the Companies Act to grant the directors of 
the  company the authority to cause the company to 
provide financial assistance to any entity which is related or 

inter-related to the company. This special resolution does not 
authorise the provision of financial assistance to a director or 
prescribed officer of the company.

Special resolution number 5: Financial assistance for 
subscription of securities in the company or to related 
or inter-related entities
“Resolved that the board of directors is authorised, in terms 
of and subject to the provisions of section 44 of the 
Companies Act, to cause the company to provide any 
financial assistance to any persons (as considered by the 
board as appropriate) for the purpose of, or in connection 
with, the subscription of any option, or any securities issued 
or to be issued by the company, or a related or inter-related 
company, or for the purchase of any securities of the 
company or a related or inter-related company, and that the 
provision of such financial assistance is hereby approved 
under this special resolution number 5.”

Reason and effect
Special resolution number 5 is required in terms of section 
44 of the Companies Act to grant the directors of the 
company the authority to cause the company to provide 
financial assistance for the subscription or purchase of 
securities in the company or any entity which is related or 
inter-related to the company. This special resolution does not 
authorise the provision of financial assistance to a director or 
prescribed officer of the company.

A form of proxy and notes for the use of the form of proxy are 
attached.

By order of the board

Paresh Dayah
Company secretary

Johannesburg
22 September 2015
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Form of proxy

ACCÉNTUATE LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Republic of South Africa)
(Registration number 2004/029691/06)
JSE code: ACE ISIN: ZAE000115986
(“Accéntuate” or “the company”)

Form of proxy for the annual general meeting of the company to be held at 10:00 am on 27 November 2015 at the company’s registered offices 
at Accéntuate Business Park, 404 Southern Klipriviersberg Road, Steeledale (“the annual general meeting”). For use by certificated 
shareholders, nominee companies of Central Securities Depository Participants (“CSDP”), brokers’ nominee companies and shareholders who 
have dematerialised their shares and who have elected “own name” registration, who wish to vote on the ordinary and special resolutions per 
the notice of the annual general meeting to which this form is attached. Shareholders who have dematerialised their shares through a CSDP 
or broker must not complete this form of proxy and must provide their CSDP or broker with their voting instructions, except for shareholders 
who elected “own name” registration in the subregister through a CSDP, which shareholders must complete this form of proxy and lodge it 
with Computershare Investor Services (Pty) Limited. Holders of dematerialised shares other than with “own name” registration wishing to 
attend the annual general meeting must inform their CSDP or broker of such intention and request their CSDP or broker to issue them with the 
necessary written authorisation to attend.

I/We (name in block letters)

of (address)

being the holder/s of (number) ordinary shares in the company, do hereby appoint

1. or failing him/her

2.  or failing him/her

3. the chairperson of the annual general meeting

as my/our proxy to act for me/us and on my/our behalf at the annual general meeting of the company, which will be held for the purpose of 
considering and, if deemed fit, passing, with or without modification, the ordinary and special resolutions to be proposed thereat and at any 
adjournment thereof, and to vote in favour of and/or against the resolutions and/or abstain from voting in respect of the ordinary shares 
registered in my/our name/s, in accordance with the following instructions (refer to notes to the form of proxy):

Number of votes on a poll (one vote per ordinary share) In favour Against Abstain

To pass ordinary resolutions:

1. To receive and adopt the annual financial statements

2. To re-elect RB Patmore as a director of the company

3. To re-elect A Mjamekwana as a member of the audit committee

4. To re-elect RB Patmore as a member of the audit committee

5. To re-elect NE Ratshikhopha as a member of the audit committee

6. To authorise the audit committee to determine the remuneration of the auditors 
for the past year’s audit

7. To reappoint Mazars (Gauteng) Inc. as the company’s auditors

8. To approve the remuneration policy of the company

9. The general authority to issue unissued but authorised shares for cash

10. To place the unissued shares under the control of the directors

11. To approve the amendments to the Share Trust

12. To authorise the signature of documentation

To pass special resolutions:

Special resolution number 1: Authorisation of share repurchases

Special resolution number 2: Approval of the non-executive directors’ fees

Special resolution number 3: Approval of the non-executive directors’ fees

Special resolution number 4: Financial assistance to related or inter-related entities of 
the company

Special resolution number 5: Financial assistance for subscription of securities in the 
company or related or inter-related entities

Signed at  on    2015

Signature   

Assisted by (if applicable)  



Accéntuate I integrated annual report 2015

for the year ended 30 June 2015

100

Notes to the form of proxy

A shareholder entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is 
entitled to appoint an individual as its proxy to attend, 
participate in, speak and vote at the meeting in the place of 
the shareholder. A proxy may delegate the proxy’s authority 
to act on behalf of the shareholders to another person.

A proxy need not be a shareholder of the company.
1.   A shareholder may insert the name(s) of one or more 

proxies (none of whom need be a company shareholder) 
in the space provided, with or without deleting the words 
“the chairperson of the annual general meeting”. The 
person whose name stands first on the form of proxy 
and has not been deleted and who is present at the 
annual general meeting will be entitled to act as proxy to 
the exclusion of those whose names follow. In the event 
that no names are indicated, the proxy shall be exercised 
in favour of all resolutions by the chairperson.

2.   A shareholder’s instructions to the proxy must be 
indicated by the insertion of an “X” or the relevant 
number of votes exercisable by that shareholder in the 
appropriate box provided. Failure to comply with the 
above will be deemed to authorise the proxy to vote as 
he/she deems fit. Where the proxy is the chairperson, 
such failure shall be deemed to authorise the chairperson 
to vote in favour of the ordinary and special resolutions 
in respect of all the shareholders’ votes exercisable 
thereat.

3.   The completion and lodging of this form of proxy shall in 
no way preclude the shareholder from attending, 
speaking and voting in person at the annual general 
meeting to the exclusion of any proxy appointed in 
terms hereof, subject to the shareholder notifying the 
chairman prior to the commencement of the annual 
general meeting.

4.   Should this form of proxy not be completed and/or 
received in accordance with these notes, the chairperson 
may accept or reject it, provided that, in respect of its 
acceptance, the chairperson is satisfied as to the 
manner in which the shareholder wishes to vote.

5.   Documentary evidence establishing the authority of the 
person signing this form of proxy in a representative 
capacity must be attached to this form of proxy unless 
previously recorded by the company’s transfer 
secretaries or waived by the chairperson of the meeting.

6.   Where this form of proxy is signed under power of 
attorney, such power of attorney must accompany this 
form unless it has previously been registered with the 
company's transfer secretaries.

7.   Where shares are held jointly, all joint holders are required 
to sign.

8.   A minor must be assisted by his/her parent or guardian, 
unless the relevant documents establishing his/her legal 
capacity have been produced or have been registered 
by the transfer secretaries of the company.

9.   Any alteration or correction made to this form of proxy 
must be signed in full and not initialled by the signatories.

10.   This form of proxy must be lodged with, or posted to, 
the transfer secretaries, Computershare Investor 
Services (Pty) Limited, 70 Marshall Street, Johannesburg, 
2001 (PO Box 61051, Marshalltown, 2107), so as to be 
received by not later than 10:00 am on Wednesday, 
25 November 2015.

11.   The completion and lodging of this form of proxy by the 
shareholders holding certificated shares, nominee 
companies of CSDPs or brokers and the shareholders 
who have dematerialised their shares and who have 
elected “own name” registration will not preclude the 
relevant shareholder from attending the annual general 
meeting and speaking and voting in person thereat, to 
the exclusion of any proxy appointed in terms thereof. 
The shareholders who have dematerialised their shares 
other than with “own name” registration, and who wish 
to attend and vote at the annual general meeting, must 
instruct their CSDP or broker to issue them with the 
necessary written authority to attend and vote on behalf 
of the registered shareholder.
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BASTION GRAPHICS

Nature of business and principal activities
The group is engaged in the manufacturing, distribution 
and installation of flooring solutions, the manufacture and 
supply of chemical cleaning and infrastructural 
maintenance solutions, and the supply of chemicals and 
equipment for water treatment solutions.

Country of incorporation and domicile 
South Africa

Company registration number
2004/029691/06

Share code
ACE

ISIN
ZAE000115986

Non-executive directors
RB Patmore (chairman)
NE Ratshikhopha
PS Kriel
A Mjamekwana (alternate)

Executive directors
FC Platt (chief executive officer)
CJ Povall (chief financial officer)
DE Platt

Company secretary
PS Dayah

Registered office and business address
Accéntuate Business Park
32 Steele Street
Steeledale
Johannesburg 
2197

Postal address
PO Box 1754 
Alberton 
1450

Telephone
+27(0) 11 406 4100

Email
info@accent.co.za

Website
www.accentuateltd.co.za

Twitter
@AccentuateLtd

Facebook
www.facebook.com/AccentuateLtd

Investor relations
Keyter Rech Investor Solutions
vrech@kris.co.za
Website: www.kris.co.za

Bankers
ABSA Bank Limited

Auditors
Mazars (Gauteng) Inc.
Registered auditors
Chartered accountants (SA)
Registration number: 2000/026635/21

Attorneys
Fullard Mayer Morrison
4 Morris Street West  
Rivonia 
2191
PO Box 4475 
Rivonia 
2128

Designated advisers
Bridge Capital Advisors (Pty) Limited
27 Fricker Road
Illovo
2196
Johannesburg
PO Box 651010
Benmore
2010

Transfer secretaries
Computershare Investor Services (Pty) Limited
70 Marshall Street
Johannesburg
2001
PO Box 61051
Marshalltown
2107
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